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Note 10 — Property, Plant and Equipment  

Property, plant and equipment comprise the following at September 30:  

Note 11 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets  

Goodwill and other intangible assets comprise the following at September 30:  

The increase in goodwill and other intangibles during Fiscal 2009 principally reflects the effects of foreign currency 
translation and acquisitions. We amortize customer relationships and noncompete agreement intangibles over their estimated 
periods of benefit which do not exceed 15 years. Amortization expense of intangible assets was $18.4 in Fiscal 2009, $18.8 in 
Fiscal 2008 and $16.9 in Fiscal 2007. Estimated amortization expense of intangible assets during the next five fiscal years is as 
follows: Fiscal 2010 — $17.2; Fiscal 2011 — $16.8; Fiscal 2012 — $16.7; Fiscal 2013 — $16.1; Fiscal 2014 — $14.2.  

Note 12 — Series Preferred Stock  

UGI has 10,000,000 shares of UGI Series Preferred Stock authorized for issuance, including both series subject to and 
series not subject to mandatory redemption. We had no shares of UGI Series Preferred Stock outstanding at September 30, 2009 
or 2008.  

UGI Utilities has 2,000,000 shares of UGI Utilities Series Preferred Stock authorized for issuance, including both series 
subject to and series not subject to mandatory redemption. At September 30, 2009 and 2008, there were no shares of UGI 
Utilities Series Preferred Stock outstanding.  
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    2009     2008   
Utilities:                  

Distribution    $ 1,813.2     $ 1,520.3   
Transmission      76.8       28.5   
General and other      166.9       120.2   
     

  
    

  
  

Total Utilities      2,056.9       1,669.0   
     

  
    

  
  

Non-utility:                  
Land      96.0       81.8   
Buildings and improvements      192.0       160.6   
Transportation equipment      110.6       94.5   
Equipment, primarily cylinders and tanks      1,970.6       1,762.7   
Electric generation      119.8       84.9   
Other      146.5       111.1   
     

  
    

  
  

Total non-utility      2,635.5       2,295.6   
     

  
    

  
  

Total property, plant and equipment    $ 4,692.4     $ 3,964.6   
     

  

    

  

  

                  
    2009     2008   
Goodwill (not subject to amortization)    $ 1,582.3     $ 1,489.7   
     

  
    

  
  

                   
Other intangible assets:                  

Customer relationships, noncompete agreements and other    $ 219.1     $ 197.3   
Trademark (not subject to amortization)      49.7       47.8   

     
  
    

  
  

Gross carrying amount      268.8       245.1   
Accumulated amortization      (103.3 )     (90.1 ) 

     
  
    

  
  

Net carrying amount    $ 165.5     $ 155.0   
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Note 13 — Common Stock and Equity-Based Compensation  

UGI Common Stock share activity for Fiscal 2007, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2009 follows:  

Equity-Based Compensation  

The Company grants equity-based awards to employees and non-employee directors comprising UGI stock options, grants 
of UGI stock-based equity instruments and grants of AmeriGas Partners equity instruments as further described below. We 
recognized total pre-tax equity-based compensation expense of $17.6 ($11.4 after-tax), $11.8 ($7.7 after-tax) and $12.4 ($8.5 
after-tax) in Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, respectively.  

UGI Equity-Based Compensation Plans and Awards. Under the UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan 
Amended and Restated as of December 5, 2006 (the “OECP”), we may grant options to acquire shares of UGI Common Stock, 
stock appreciation rights (“SARs”), UGI Units (comprising “Stock Units” and “UGI Performance Units”) and other equity-based 
awards to key employees and non-employee directors. The exercise price for options may not be less than the fair market value 
on the grant date. Awards granted under the OECP may vest immediately or ratably over a period of years, and stock options can 
be exercised no later than ten years from the grant date. In addition, the OECP provides that awards of UGI Units may also 
provide for the crediting of dividend equivalents to participants’ accounts. Except in the event of retirement, death or disability, 
each grant, unless paid, will terminate when the participant ceases to be employed. There are certain change of control and 
retirement eligibility conditions that, if met, generally result in accelerated vesting or elimination of further service requirements. 

Under the OECP, awards representing up to 15,000,000 shares of UGI Common Stock may be granted. The maximum 
number of shares that may be issued pursuant to grants other than stock options or SARs is 3,200,000. Dividend equivalents on 
UGI Unit awards to employees will be paid in cash. Dividend equivalents on non-employee director awards are paid in 
additional Stock Units. UGI Unit awards granted to employees and non-employee directors are settled in shares of Common 
Stock and cash. Beginning with Fiscal 2006 grants, UGI Unit awards granted to Antargaz employees are settled in shares of 
Common Stock. With respect to UGI Performance Unit awards, the actual number of shares (or their cash equivalent) ultimately 
issued, and the actual amount of dividend equivalents paid, is generally dependent upon the achievement of market performance 
goals and service conditions. It is our practice to issue treasury shares to satisfy substantially all option exercises and UGI Unit 
awards. We do not expect to repurchase shares for such purposes during Fiscal 2010.  
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    Issued     Treasury     Outstanding   
                           
Balance September 30, 2006      115,152,994       (9,698,632 )     105,454,362   
Issued:                          

Employee and director plans      —      1,104,824       1,104,824   
Dividend reinvestment plan      —      87,700       87,700   

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

Balance September 30, 2007      115,152,994       (8,506,108 )     106,646,886   
Issued:                          

Employee and director plans      94,700       1,028,843       1,123,543   
Dividend reinvestment plan      —      90,533       90,533   

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

Balance September 30, 2008      115,247,694       (7,386,732 )     107,860,962   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Issued:                          
Employee and director plans      13,600       776,074       789,674   
Dividend reinvestment plan      —      96,071       96,071   

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

Balance September 30, 2009      115,261,294       (6,514,587 )     108,746,707   
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In June 2008, the Company cancelled and regranted UGI Unit awards and UGI stock option awards previously granted to 
certain key employees of Antargaz. The cancellation and regrants did not affect the number of UGI Units or stock options 
awarded and we did not record any incremental expense as a result of these cancellations and regrants.  

UGI Stock Option Awards . Stock option transactions under the OECP and predecessor plans for Fiscal 2007, Fiscal 2008 
and Fiscal 2009 follow:  

Cash received from stock option exercises and associated tax benefits was $6.3 and $2.2, $15.4 and $3.7, and $10.7 and 
$4.0 in Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, respectively. As of September 30, 2009, there was $3.8 of unrecognized 
compensation cost associated with unvested stock options that is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 
1.8 years.  

The following table presents additional information relating to stock options outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 
2009:  
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                            Weighted   
            Weighted     Total     Average   
            Average     Intrinsic     Contract Term   
    Shares     Option Price     Value     (Years)   
Shares under option — September 30, 2006      5,843,852     $ 17.06                   
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Granted      1,326,800     $ 27.12                   
Exercised      (812,573 )   $ 13.20     $ 11.8           
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Shares under option — September 30, 2007      6,358,079     $ 19.65                   
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Granted      1,423,800     $ 27.25                   
Cancelled      (147,300 )   $ 27.03                   
Exercised      (982,334 )   $ 15.64     $ 11.2           
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Shares under option — September 30, 2008      6,652,245     $ 21.71     $ 30.9       6.6   
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Granted      1,411,200     $ 24.65                   
Forfeited      (87,334 )   $ 25.81                   
Exercised      (474,618 )   $ 13.30     $ 6.0           
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Shares under option — September 30, 2009      7,501,493     $ 22.74     $ 23.2       6.4   
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Options exercisable — September 30, 2007      3,568,746     $ 16.75                   
Options exercisable — September 30, 2008      3,960,778     $ 18.93                   
Options exercisable — September 30, 2009      4,744,054     $ 21.00     $ 21.9       5.3   
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Non-vested options — September 30, 2009      2,757,439     $ 25.74     $ 1.3       8.3   
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

                          
    Range of exercise prices   
    $6.88 -     $16.25 -     $22.38 -   
    $15.65     $21.73     $28.02   
Options outstanding at September 30, 2009:                          

Number of options      529,325       2,653,102       4,319,066   
Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years)      2.8       4.7       7.8   
Weighted average exercise price    $ 11.82     $ 19.52     $ 26.07   

                           
Options exercisable at September 30, 2009                          

Number of options      529,325       2,533,102       1,681,627   
Weighted average exercise price    $ 11.82     $ 19.47     $ 26.19   
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UGI Stock Option Fair Value Information. The per share weighted-average fair value of stock options granted under our option 
plans was $4.13 in Fiscal 2009, $5.06 in Fiscal 2008, and $5.71 in Fiscal 2007. These amounts were determined using a Black-
Scholes option pricing model which values options based on the stock price at the grant date, the expected life of the option, the 
estimated volatility of the stock, expected dividend payments and the risk-free interest rate over the expected life of the option. 
The expected life of option awards represents the period of time during which option grants are expected to be outstanding and is 
derived from historical exercise patterns. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of the price of UGI’s Common 
Stock. Expected dividend yield is based on historical UGI dividend rates. The risk free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury 
bonds with terms comparable to the options in effect on the date of grant.  

The assumptions we used for valuing option grants during Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007 are as follows:  

UGI Unit Awards . UGI Stock and UGI Performance Unit awards entitle the grantee to shares of UGI Common Stock or cash 
once the service condition is met and, with respect to UGI Performance Unit awards, subject to market performance conditions. 
UGI Performance Unit grant recipients are awarded a target number of Performance Units. The number of UGI Performance 
Units ultimately paid at the end of the performance period (generally three-year periods) may be higher or lower than the target 
amount, or even zero, based on UGI’s Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) percentile rank relative to companies in the Standard & 
Poor’s Utilities Index (“UGI comparator group”). Based on the TSR percentile rank, grantees may receive 0% to 200% of the 
target award granted. If UGI’s TSR ranks below the 40th percentile compared to the UGI comparator group, the employee will 
not receive an award. At the 40th percentile, the employee will be paid an award equal to 50% of the target award; at the 50th 
percentile, 100%; and at the 100th percentile, 200%. The actual amount of the award is interpolated between these percentile 
rankings. Dividend equivalents are paid in cash only on UGI Performance Units that eventually vest.  

The fair value of UGI Stock Units on the grant date is equal to the market price of UGI Stock on the grant date. Under 
GAAP, UGI Performance Units are equity awards with a market-based condition which, if settled in shares, results in the 
recognition of compensation cost over the requisite employee service period regardless of whether the market-based condition is 
satisfied. The fair values of UGI Performance Units are estimated using a Monte Carlo valuation model. The fair value 
associated with the target award is accounted for as equity and the fair value of the award over the target, as well as all dividend 
equivalents, is accounted for as a liability. The expected term of the UGI Performance Unit awards is three years based on the 
performance period. Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of UGI Common Stock over a three-year period. The 
risk-free interest rate is based on the yields on U.S. Treasury bonds at the time of grant. Volatility for all companies in the UGI 
comparator group is based on historical volatility.  

The following table summarizes the weighted average assumptions used to determine the fair value of UGI Performance 
Unit awards and related compensation costs:  
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    2009     2008     2007   
Expected life of option    5.75 years   5.75 – 6.75 years   6 – 6.75 years 
Weighted average volatility      23.7%       20.9%       21.5%   
Weighted average dividend yield      3.0%       2.8%       2.9%   
                           
Expected volatility      20.3% – 23.7%       20.3% – 20.9%       20.8% – 21.5%   
Expected dividend yield      2.9% – 3.2%       2.8% – 2.9%       2.8% – 2.9%   
Risk free rate      1.7% – 3.0%       3.4% – 3.6%       4.3% – 4.7%   

                          
    Grants Awarded in Fiscal   
    2009     2008     2007   
Risk-free rate      1.0%       2.7%       4.7%   
Expected life    3 years   3 years   3 years 
Expected volatility      27.1%       20.5%       19.6%   
Dividend yield      3.2%       3.1%       2.6%   
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The weighted-average grant date fair value of UGI Performance Unit awards was estimated to be $27.91 for Units granted 
in Fiscal 2009, $29.70 for Units granted in Fiscal 2008, and $26.84 for Units granted in Fiscal 2007.  

The following table summarizes UGI Unit award activity for Fiscal 2009:  

During Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, the Company paid UGI Performance Unit and UGI Stock Unit awards in 
shares and cash as follows:  
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    Total     Vested     Non-Vested   
            Weighted             Weighted             Weighted   
            Average             Average             Average   
    Number of     Grant Date     Number of     Grant Date     Number of     Grant Date   
    UGI     Fair Value     UGI     Fair Value     UGI     Fair Value   
    Units     (per Unit)     Units     (per Unit)     Units     (per Unit)   
September 30, 2008      881,675     $ 21.82       527,061     $ 18.32       354,614     $ 27.01   
UGI Performance Units:                                                  

Granted      216,250     $ 27.91       —    $ —      216,250     $ 27.91   
Forfeited      (25,666 )   $ 28.67       —    $ —      (25,666 )   $ 28.67   
Vested      —    $ —      192,753     $ 25.92       (192,753 )   $ 25.92   
Unit awards paid      (158,150 )   $ 21.01       (158,150 )   $ 21.01       —    $ —  
Performance criteria not met      —    $ —      —    $ —      —    $ —  

UGI Stock Units:                                                  
Granted (a)      52,767     $ 24.60       —    $ —      52,767     $ 24.60   
Vested      —    $ —      62,367     $ 24.85       (62,367 )   $ 24.85   
Unit awards paid      (88,449 )   $ 17.30       (88,449 )   $ 17.30       —    $ —  

     
  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

September 30, 2009      878,427     $ 23.89       535,582     $ 21.20       342,845     $ 28.09   
     

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

  

      

(a)   Generally, shares granted under UGI Stock Unit awards are paid approximately 70% in shares. UGI Stock Unit awards 
granted in Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007 were 37,732 and 44,729, respectively.  

                          
    2009     2008     2007   
UGI Performance Unit awards:                          

Number of original awards granted      163,450       185,300       193,600   
Fiscal year granted      2006       2005       2004   
Payment of awards:                          

Shares of UGI Common Stock issued      117,847       0       117,987   
Cash paid    $ 3.1     $ 0     $ 2.8   

                           
UGI Stock Unit awards:                          

Number of original awards granted      88,449       40,000       86,000   
Payment of awards:                          

Shares of UGI Common Stock issued      58,376       20,000       51,400   
Cash paid    $ 0.8     $ 0.6     $ 1.1   
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During Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, we granted UGI Unit awards representing 269,017, 253,325, and 242,371 
shares, respectively, having weighted-average grant date fair values per Unit of $27.26, $29.34, and $26.78, respectively.  

As of September 30, 2009, there was a total of approximately $6.7 of unrecognized compensation cost associated with 
878,427 UGI Unit awards outstanding that is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.8 years. The total 
fair values of UGI Units that vested during Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008, and Fiscal 2007 were $7.6, $7.1 and $6.9, respectively. As 
of September 30, 2009 and 2008, total liabilities of $8.9 and $6.3, respectively, associated with UGI Unit awards are reflected in 
“Other current liabilities” and “Other noncurrent liabilities” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

At September 30, 2009, 5,572,930 shares of Common Stock were available for future grants under the OECP, of which up 
to 1,855,956 may be issued pursuant to grants other than stock options or SARs.  

AmeriGas Partners Equity-Based Compensation Plans and Awards. Under the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2000 Long-Term 
Incentive Plan (“2000 Propane Plan”), the General Partner may award to key employees the right to receive a total of 500,000 
AmeriGas Partners Common Units (“AmeriGas Performance Units”), or cash equivalent to the fair market value of such 
Common Units. In addition, the 2000 Propane Plan authorizes the crediting of Common Unit distribution equivalents to 
participants’ accounts. AmeriGas Performance Unit grant recipients are awarded a target number of AmeriGas Performance 
Units. The number of AmeriGas Performance Units ultimately paid at the end of the performance period (generally three years) 
may be higher or lower than the target amount based upon the performance of AmeriGas Partners Common Units as compared 
with a peer group. Percentile rankings and payout percentages are generally the same as those used for the UGI Performance 
Unit awards. Any distribution equivalents earned are paid in cash. Except in the event of retirement, death or disability, each 
grant, unless paid, will terminate when the participant ceases to be employed by the General Partner. There are certain change of 
control and retirement eligibility conditions that, if met, generally result in accelerated vesting or elimination of further service 
requirements.  

Under GAAP, AmeriGas Performance Units are equity awards with a market-based condition which, if settled in Common 
Units, results in the recognition of compensation cost over the requisite employee service period regardless of whether the 
market-based condition is satisfied. The fair values of AmeriGas Performance Units are estimated using a Monte Carlo valuation 
model. The fair value associated with the target award and the award above the target, if any, which will be paid in AmeriGas 
Units, is accounted for as equity and the fair value of all distribution equivalents, which will be paid in cash, is accounted for as a 
liability. The expected term of the AmeriGas Performance Unit awards is three years based on the performance period. Expected 
volatility is based on the historical volatility of AmeriGas Partners Common Units over a three-year period. The risk-free interest 
rate is based on the rates on U.S. Treasury bonds at the time of grant. Volatility for all limited partnerships in the peer group is 
based on historical volatility.  

The following table summarizes the weighted-average assumptions used to determine the fair value of AmeriGas 
Performance Unit awards and related compensation costs:  

We also have a nonexecutive AmeriGas Partners Common Unit plan under which the General Partner may grant awards of 
up to a total of 200,000 Common Units (comprising “AmeriGas Units”) to key employees who do not participate in the 2000 
Propane Plan. Generally, awards under the nonexecutive plan vest at the end of a three-year period and are paid in Common 
Units and cash. The General Partner made awards under the 2000 Propane Plan and the nonexecutive plan representing 60,200, 
40,050 and 49,650 Common Units in Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, respectively, having weighted-average grant date 
fair values per Common Unit of $31.94, $37.91 and $33.63, respectively. At September 30, 2009 and 2008, awards representing 
147,600 and 126,100 Common Units, respectively, were outstanding. At September 30, 2009, 227,986 and 135,700 Common 
Units were available for future grants under the 2000 Propane Plan and the nonexecutive plan, respectively.  
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    Grants Awarded in Fiscal   
    2009     2008     2007   
Risk-free rate      1.0%       3.1%       4.7%   
Expected life    3 years   3 years   3 years 
Expected volatility      32.0%       17.7%       17.6%   
Dividend yield      9.1%       6.8%       7.1%   
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The following table summarizes AmeriGas Unit and AmeriGas Performance Unit award activity for Fiscal 2009:  

During Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, the Partnership paid AmeriGas Performance Unit and AmeriGas Unit 
awards (collectively, “Awards”) in Common Units and cash as follows:  

As of September 30, 2009, there was a total of approximately $2.0 of unrecognized compensation cost associated with 
147,600 AmeriGas Common Unit awards that is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.8 years. The 
total fair values of Common Units that vested during Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008, and Fiscal 2007 were $1.6, $2.1, and $1.2, 
respectively. As of September 30, 2009 and 2008, total liabilities of $1.4 and $1.0 associated with Common Unit awards are 
reflected in “Employee compensation and benefits accrued” and “Other noncurrent liabilities” in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets.  

Note 14 — Partnership Distributions  

The Partnership makes distributions to its partners approximately 45 days after the end of each fiscal quarter in a total 
amount equal to its Available Cash for such quarter. Available Cash generally means:  

The General Partner may establish reserves for the proper conduct of the Partnership’s business and for distributions during 
the next four quarters. In addition, certain of the Partnership’s debt agreements require reserves be established for the payment of 
debt principal and interest.  

   

F-37  

                                                  
    Total     Vested     Non-Vested   
    Number of     Weighted     Number of     Weighted     Number of     Weighted   
    AmeriGas     Average     AmeriGas     Average     AmeriGas     Average   
    Partners     Grant Date     Partners     Grant Date     Partners     Grant Date   
    Common     Fair Value     Common     Fair Value     Common     Fair Value   
    Units     (per Unit)     Units     (per Unit)     Units     (per Unit)   
September 30, 2008      126,100     $ 33.44       39,966     $ 32.03       86,134     $ 34.10   
Granted      60,200     $ 31.94       —    $ —      60,200     $ 31.94   
Forfeited      (1,500 )   $ 30.70       —    $ —      (1,500 )   $ 30.70   
Vested      —    $ —      48,818     $ 31.70       (48,818 )   $ 31.70   
Unit awards paid      (37,200 )   $ 29.56       (37,200 )   $ 29.56       —    $ —  
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

September 30, 2009      147,600     $ 33.83       51,584     $ 33.49       96,016     $ 34.02   
     

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

  

                          
    2009     2008     2007   
Number of original Awards granted      38,350       39,767       52,200   
Fiscal year granted      2006       2005       2004   
Payment of Awards:                          

AmeriGas Partners Common Units issued      36,437       21,249       25,392   
Cash paid    $ 0.9     $ 0.8     $ 0.6   

  1.   all cash on hand at the end of such quarter,  
  
  2.   plus all additional cash on hand as of the date of determination resulting from borrowings after the end of such quarter, 
  
  3.   less the amount of cash reserves established by the General Partner in its reasonable discretion.  

WPD-6  
Screening Data 
Page 2028 of 2401



Table of Contents  

UGI Corporation and Subsidiaries  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  
(Millions of dollars and euros, except per share amounts and where indicated otherwise)  

Distributions of Available Cash are made 98% to limited partners and 2% to the General Partner (representing a 1% 
General Partner interest in AmeriGas Partners and 1.01% interest in AmeriGas OLP) until Available Cash exceeds the Minimum 
Quarterly Distribution of $0.55 and the First Target Distribution of $0.055 per Common Unit (or a total of $0.605 per Common 
Unit). When Available Cash exceeds $0.605 per Common Unit in any quarter, the General Partner will receive a greater 
percentage of the total Partnership distribution (the “incentive distribution”) but only with respect to the amount by which the 
distribution per Common Unit to limited partners exceeds $0.605. Because the Partnership made quarterly distributions to 
Common Unitholders in excess of $0.605 per limited partner unit beginning with the quarterly distribution paid May 18, 2007, 
the General Partner has received a greater percentage of the total Partnership distribution than its aggregate 2% general partner 
interest in AmeriGas OLP and AmeriGas Partners. The General Partner distribution based on its general partner ownership 
percentage interest alone totaled $7.8 in Fiscal 2009, $3.6 in Fiscal 2008 and $6.8 in Fiscal 2007. The amount of the distributions 
received by the General Partner during Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007 in excess of its ownership percentage totaled 
$4.5, $0.7 and $3.7, respectively.  

On July 27, 2009, the General Partner’s Board of Directors approved a distribution of $0.84 per Common Unit payable on 
August 18, 2009 to unitholders of record on August 10, 2009. This distribution included the regular quarterly distribution of 
$0.67 per Common Unit and $0.17 per Common Unit reflecting a distribution of a portion of the proceeds from the Partnership’s 
November 2008 sale of its California storage facility.  

On July 30, 2007, the General Partner’s Board of Directors approved a distribution of $0.86 per Common Unit payable on 
August 18, 2007 to unitholders of record on August 10, 2007. This distribution included the regular quarterly distribution of 
$0.61 per Common Unit and $0.25 per Common Unit reflecting a distribution of a portion of the proceeds from the Partnership’s 
July 2007 sale of its Arizona storage facility.  

Note 15 — Commitments and Contingencies  

Commitments  

We lease various buildings and other facilities and transportation, computer and office equipment under operating leases. 
Certain of our leases contain renewal and purchase options and also contain step-rent provisions. Our aggregate rental expense 
for such leases was $70.1 in Fiscal 2009, $71.2 in Fiscal 2008 and $68.1 in Fiscal 2007.  

Minimum future payments under operating leases that have initial or remaining noncancelable terms in excess of one year 
are as follows:  

Our businesses enter into contracts of varying lengths and terms to meet their supply, pipeline transportation, storage, 
capacity and energy needs. Gas Utility has gas supply agreements with producers and marketers with terms not exceeding one 
year. Gas Utility also has agreements for firm pipeline transportation and natural gas storage services, which Gas Utility may 
terminate at various dates through 2029. Gas Utility’s costs associated with transportation and storage capacity agreements are 
included in its annual PGC filings with the PUC and are recoverable through PGC rates. In addition, Gas Utility has short-term 
gas supply agreements which permit it to purchase certain of its gas supply needs on a firm or interruptible basis at spot-market 
prices. Electric Utility purchases its energy needs under contracts with various suppliers and on the spot market. Contracts with 
producers for energy needs expire at various dates through Fiscal 2014. Energy Services enters into fixed-price contracts with 
suppliers to purchase natural gas to meet its sales commitments. Generally, these contracts have terms of less than two years. The 
Partnership enters into fixed-price and, from time to time, variable-priced contracts to purchase a portion of its supply 
requirements. These contracts generally have terms of less than one year. International Propane, particularly Antargaz, enters 
into variable-priced contracts to purchase a portion of its supply requirements. Generally, these contracts have terms that do not 
exceed three years.  
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                                            After   
    2010     2011     2012     2013     2014     2014   
                                                   
AmeriGas Propane    $ 46.2     $ 37.6     $ 30.8     $ 24.8     $ 17.7     $ 28.4   
UGI Utilities      5.0       4.2       3.5       3.0       2.1       4.7   
International Propane and other      10.3       6.8       3.1       1.6       0.6       0.1   
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Total    $ 61.5     $ 48.6     $ 37.4     $ 29.4     $ 20.4     $ 33.2   
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The following table presents contractual obligations under Gas Utility, Electric Utility, Energy Services, AmeriGas Propane 
and International Propane supply, storage and service contracts existing at September 30, 2009:  

The Partnership and International Propane also enter into other contracts to purchase LPG to meet supply requirements. 
Generally, these contracts are one- to three-year agreements subject to annual price and quantity adjustments.  

In addition, we have committed to invest over the next several years a total of up to $25 in a limited partnership that will 
focus on investments in the alternative energy sector.  

Contingencies  

Environmental Matters  

CPG is party to a Consent Order and Agreement (“CPG-COA”) with the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental 
Protection (“DEP”) requiring CPG to perform a specified level of activities associated with environmental investigation and 
remediation work at certain properties in Pennsylvania on which manufactured gas plant (“MGP”) related facilities were 
operated (“CPG MGP Properties”) and to plug a minimum number of non-producing natural gas wells per year. In addition, 
PNG is a party to a Multi-Site Remediation Consent Order and Agreement (“PNG-COA”) with the DEP. The PNG-COA 
requires PNG to perform annually a specified level of activities associated with environmental investigation and remediation 
work at certain properties on which MGP-related facilities were operated (“PNG MGP Properties”). Under these agreements, 
environmental expenditures relating to the CPG MGP Properties and the PNG MGP Properties are capped at $1.8 and $1.1, 
respectively, in any calendar year. The CPG-COA terminates at the end of 2011 for the MGP Properties and at the end of 2013 
for well plugging activities. The PNG-COA terminates in 2019 but may be terminated by either party effective at the end of any 
two-year period beginning with the original effective date in March 2004. At September 30, 2009, our accrued liabilities for 
environmental investigation and remediation costs related to the CPG-COA and the PNG-COA totaled $25.0. In accordance with 
GAAP related to rate-regulated entities, we have recorded associated regulatory assets totaling $25.0.  

From the late 1800s through the mid-1900s, UGI Utilities and its former subsidiaries owned and operated a number of 
MGPs prior to the general availability of natural gas. Some constituents of coal tars and other residues of the manufactured gas 
process are today considered hazardous substances under the Superfund Law and may be present on the sites of former MGPs. 
Between 1882 and 1953, UGI Utilities owned the stock of subsidiary gas companies in Pennsylvania and elsewhere and also 
operated the businesses of some gas companies under agreement. Pursuant to the requirements of the Public Utility Holding 
Company Act of 1935, by the early 1950s UGI Utilities divested all of its utility operations other than certain Pennsylvania 
operations, including those which now constitute UGI Gas and Electric Utility.  

UGI Utilities does not expect its costs for investigation and remediation of hazardous substances at Pennsylvania MGP sites 
to be material to its results of operations because UGI Gas is currently permitted to include in rates, through future base rate 
proceedings, a five-year average of such prudently incurred remediation costs. At September 30, 2009 and 2008, neither UGI 
Gas’ undiscounted nor its accrued liability for environmental investigation and cleanup costs was material.  

UGI Utilities has been notified of several sites outside Pennsylvania on which private parties allege MGPs were formerly 
owned or operated by it or owned or operated by its former subsidiaries. Such parties are investigating the extent of 
environmental contamination or performing environmental remediation. UGI Utilities is currently litigating three claims against 
it relating to out-of-state sites.  

Management believes that under applicable law UGI Utilities should not be liable in those instances in which a former 
subsidiary owned or operated an MGP. There could be, however, significant future costs of an uncertain amount associated with 
environmental damage caused by MGPs outside Pennsylvania that UGI Utilities directly operated, or that were owned or 
operated by former subsidiaries of UGI Utilities if a court were to conclude that (1) the subsidiary’s separate corporate form 
should be disregarded or (2) UGI Utilities should be considered to have been an operator because of its conduct with respect to 

                                                  
                                            After   
    2010     2011     2012     2013     2014     2014   
Gas Utility and Electric Utility 

supply, storage and 
transportation contracts    $ 218.9     $ 99.8     $ 82.9     $ 56.7     $ 44.3     $ 55.4   

Energy Services supply contracts      436.4       102.2       6.6       —      —      —  
AmeriGas Propane supply contracts     50.5       —      —      —      —      —  
International Propane supply 

contracts      238.9       —      —      —      —      —  
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Total    $ 944.7     $ 202.0     $ 89.5     $ 56.7     $ 44.3     $ 55.4   
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South Carolina Electric & Gas Company v. UGI Utilities, Inc . On September 22, 2006, South Carolina Electric & Gas 
Company (“SCE&G”), a subsidiary of SCANA Corporation, filed a lawsuit against UGI Utilities in the District Court of South 
Carolina seeking contribution from UGI Utilities for past and future remediation costs related to the operations of a former MGP 
located in Charleston, South Carolina. SCE&G asserts that the plant operated from 1855 to 1954 and alleges that through control 
of a subsidiary that owned the plant UGI Utilities controlled operations of the plant from 1910 to 1926 and is liable for 
approximately 25% of the costs associated with the site. SCE&G asserts that it has spent approximately $22 in remediation costs 
and paid $26 in third-party claims relating to the site and estimates that future response costs, including a claim by the United 
States Justice Department for natural resource damages, could be as high as $14. Trial took place in March 2009 and the court’s 
decision is pending.  

Frontier Communications Company v. UGI Utilities, Inc. et al. In April 2003, Citizens Communications Company, now known 
as Frontier Communications Company (“Frontier”), served a complaint naming UGI Utilities as a third-party defendant in a civil 
action pending in the United States District Court for the District of Maine. In that action, the City of Bangor, Maine (“City”) 
sued Frontier to recover environmental response costs associated with MGP wastes generated at a plant allegedly operated by 
Frontier’s predecessors at a site on the Penobscot River. Frontier subsequently joined UGI Utilities and ten other third-party 
defendants alleging that the third-party defendants are responsible for an equitable share of any costs Frontier would be required 
to pay to the City for cleaning up tar deposits in the Penobscot River. Frontier alleged that through ownership and control of a 
subsidiary, Bangor Gas Light Company, UGI Utilities and its predecessors owned and operated the plant from 1901 to 1928. 
Frontier made similar allegations of control against another third-party defendant, CenterPoint Energy Resources Corporation 
(“CenterPoint”), whose predecessor owned the Bangor subsidiary from 1928 to 1944. Frontier’s third-party claims were stayed 
pending a resolution of the City’s suit against Frontier, which was tried in September 2005. On June 27, 2006, the court issued 
an order finding Frontier responsible for 60% of the cleanup costs, which were estimated at $18. On February 14, 2007, Frontier 
and the City entered into a settlement agreement pursuant to which Frontier agreed to pay $7.6. Frontier subsequently filed the 
current action against the original third-party defendants, repeating its claims for contribution. On September 22, 2009, the court 
granted summary judgment in favor of co-defendant CenterPoint. UGI Utilities believes that it also has good defenses and has 
filed for summary judgment with respect to Frontier’s claims.  

Sag Harbor, New York Matter. By letter dated June 24, 2004, KeySpan Energy (“KeySpan”) informed UGI Utilities that 
KeySpan has spent $2.3 and expects to spend another $11 to clean up an MGP site it owns in Sag Harbor, New York. KeySpan 
believes that UGI Utilities is responsible for approximately 50% of these costs as a result of UGI Utilities’ alleged direct 
ownership and operation of the plant from 1885 to 1902. By letter dated June 6, 2006, KeySpan reported that the New York 
Department of Environmental Conservation has approved a remedy for the site that is estimated to cost approximately $10. 
KeySpan believes that the cost could be as high as $20. UGI Utilities is in the process of reviewing the information provided by 
KeySpan and is investigating this claim.  

Yankee Gas Services Company and Connecticut Light and Power Company v. UGI Utilities, Inc. On September 11, 2006, UGI 
Utilities received a complaint filed by Yankee Gas Services Company and Connecticut Light and Power Company, subsidiaries 
of Northeast Utilities (together the “Northeast Companies”), in the United States District Court for the District of Connecticut 
seeking contribution from UGI Utilities for past and future remediation costs related to MGP operations on thirteen sites owned 
by the Northeast Companies in nine cities in the State of Connecticut. The Northeast Companies allege that UGI Utilities 
controlled operations of the plants from 1883 to 1941 through control of former subsidiaries that owned the MGPs. The 
Northeast Companies estimated that remediation costs for all of the sites could total approximately $215 and asserted that UGI 
Utilities is responsible for approximately $103 of this amount. The Northeast Companies subsequently withdrew their claims 
with respect to three of the sites and UGI Utilities acknowledged that it had operated one of the sites, Waterbury North, pursuant 
to a lease. In April 2009, the court conducted a trial to determine whether UGI Utilities operated any of the nine remaining sites 
that were owned and operated by former subsidiaries. On May 22, 2009, the court granted judgment in favor of UGI Utilities 
with respect to all nine sites. In a second phase of the trial scheduled for early 2010, the court will determine what, if any, 
contamination at Waterbury North is related to UGI Utilities’ period of operation. The Northeast Companies estimate that 
remediation costs at Waterbury North could total $25.  
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AmeriGas OLP Saranac Lake. By letter dated March 6, 2008, the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 
(“DEC”) notified AmeriGas OLP that DEC had placed property owned by the Partnership in Saranac Lake, New York on its 
Registry of Inactive Hazardous Waste Disposal Sites. A site characterization study performed by DEC disclosed contamination 
related to former MGP operations on the site. DEC has classified the site as a significant threat to public health or environment 
with further action required. The Partnership has researched the history of the site and its ownership interest in the site. The 
Partnership has reviewed the preliminary site characterization study prepared by the DEC, the extent of contamination and the 
possible existence of other potentially responsible parties. The Partnership has communicated the results of its research to DEC 
and is awaiting a response before doing any additional investigation. Because of the preliminary nature of available 
environmental information, the ultimate amount of expected clean up costs cannot be reasonably estimated.  

Other Matters  

On May 27, 2009, the General Partner was named as a defendant in a purported class action lawsuit in the Superior Court of 
the State of California in which plaintiffs are challenging AmeriGas OLP’s weight disclosure with regard to its portable propane 
grill cylinders. The complaint purports to be brought on behalf of a class of all consumers in the state of California during the 
four years prior to the date of the California complaint, who exchanged an empty cylinder and were provided with what is 
alleged to be only a partially-filled cylinder. The plaintiffs seek restitution, injunctive relief, interest, costs, attorneys’ fees and 
other appropriate relief.  

Since that initial suit, various AmeriGas entities have been named in more than a dozen similar suits that have been filed in 
various courts throughout the United States. These complaints purport to be brought on behalf of nationwide classes, which are 
loosely defined as including all purchasers of liquefied propane gas cylinders marketed or sold by AmeriGas OLP and another 
unaffiliated entity nationwide. The complaints claim that defendants’ conduct constituted unfair and deceptive practices that 
injured consumers and violated the consumer protection statutes of at least thirty-seven states and the District of Columbia, 
thereby entitling the class to damages, restitution, disgorgement, injunctive relief, costs and attorneys’ fees. Some of the 
complaints also allege violation of state “slack filling” laws. Additionally, the complaints allege that defendants were unjustly 
enriched by their conduct and they seek restitution of any unjust benefits received, punitive or treble damages, and pre-judgment 
and post-judgment interest. A motion to consolidate the purported class action lawsuits was heard by the Multidistrict Litigation 
Panel (“MDL Panel”) on September 24, 2009 in the United States District Court for the District of Kansas. By Order, dated 
October 6, 2009, the MDL Panel transferred the pending cases to the United States District Court for the Western District of 
Missouri.  

On or about October 21, 2009, the General Partner received a notice that the Offices of the District Attorneys of Santa 
Clara, Sonoma, Ventura, San Joaquin and Fresno Counties and the City Attorney of San Diego have commenced an investigation 
into AmeriGas OLP’s cylinder labeling and filling practices in California and issued an administrative subpoena seeking 
documents and information relating to these practices. We are cooperating with these California governmental investigations and 
we are vigorously defending the lawsuits.  

Samuel and Brenda Swiger and their son (the “Swigers”) sustained personal injuries and property damage as a result of a 
fire that occurred when propane that leaked from an underground line ignited. In July 1998, the Swigers filed a class action 
lawsuit against AmeriGas Propane, L.P. (named incorrectly as “UGI/AmeriGas, Inc.”), in the Circuit Court of Monongalia 
County, West Virginia, in which they sought to recover an unspecified amount of compensatory and punitive damages and 
attorney’s fees, for themselves and on behalf of persons in West Virginia for whom the defendants had installed propane gas 
lines, resulting from the defendants’ alleged failure to install underground propane lines at depths required by applicable safety 
standards. In 2003, AmeriGas OLP settled the individual personal injury and property damage claims of the Swigers. In 2004, 
the court granted the plaintiffs’ motion to include customers acquired from Columbia Propane Corporation in August 2001 as 
additional potential class members and the plaintiffs amended their complaint to name additional parties pursuant to such ruling. 
Subsequently, in March 2005, AmeriGas OLP filed a crossclaim against Columbia Energy Group, former owner of Columbia 
Propane Corporation, seeking indemnification for conduct undertaken by Columbia Propane Corporation prior to AmeriGas 
OLP’s acquisition. Class counsel has indicated that the class is seeking compensatory damages in excess of $12 plus punitive 
damages, civil penalties and attorneys’ fees.  
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In 2005, the Swigers filed what purports to be a class action in the Circuit Court of Harrison County, West Virginia against 
UGI, an insurance subsidiary of UGI, certain officers of UGI and the General Partner, and their insurance carriers and insurance 
adjusters. In the Harrison County lawsuit, the Swigers are seeking compensatory and punitive damages on behalf of the putative 
class for violations of the West Virginia Insurance Unfair Trade Practice Act, negligence, intentional misconduct, and civil 
conspiracy. The Swigers have also requested that the Court rule that insurance coverage exists under the policies issued by the 
defendant insurance companies for damages sustained by the members of the class in the Monongalia County lawsuit. The 
Circuit Court of Harrison County has not certified the class in the Harrison County lawsuit at this time and, in October 2008, 
stayed that lawsuit pending resolution of the class action lawsuit in Monongalia County. We believe we have good defenses to 
the claims in both actions.  

French tax authorities levy various taxes on legal entities and individuals regularly operating a business in France which are 
commonly referred to collectively as “business tax.” The amount of business tax charged annually is generally dependent upon 
the value of the entity’s tangible fixed assets. Antargaz has recorded liabilities for business taxes related to various classes of 
equipment. Changes in the French government’s interpretation of the tax laws or in the tax laws themselves could have either an 
adverse or a favorable effect on our results of operations.  

Antargaz Competition Authority Matter. In June 2005, officials from France’s General Division of Competition, 
Consumption and Fraud Punishment (“DGCCRF”) conducted an unannounced inspection of, and obtained documents from, 
Antargaz’ headquarters building. Antargaz did not have any further contact with the DGCCRF regarding this matter until 
February 2007, when it received a letter from the DGCCRF requesting documents and information relating to Antargaz’ pricing 
policies and practices. In March 2007, and again in August 2007, the DGCCRF requested additional information from Antargaz 
and three joint ventures in which it participates. In July 2008, France’s Autorité de la concurrence (“Competition Authority”) 
interviewed Mr. Varagne, as President of Antargaz and President of the industry association, Comité Français du Butane et du 
Propane, about competitive practices in the LPG cylinder market in France.  

On July 21, 2009, Antargaz received a Statement of Objections from the Competition Authority with respect to the 
investigation of Antargaz by the DGCCRF. A Statement of Objections (“Statement”) is part of French competition proceedings 
and generally follows an investigation under French competition laws. The Statement sets forth the Competition Authority’s 
findings; it is not a judgment or final decision. The Statement alleges that Antargaz engaged in certain anti-competitive practices 
in violation of French and European Union civil competition laws related to the cylinder market during the period from 1999 
through 2004. The alleged violations occurred principally during periods prior to March 31, 2004, when UGI first obtained a 
controlling interest in Antargaz.  

We have completed our review of the Statement of Objections and the related evidence and filed our written response with 
the Competition Authority on October 21, 2009. The Competition Authority will undertake a review of Antargaz’ response and 
begin preparation of its final pleading on the claims. This process is anticipated to take several months and Antargaz will have 
the opportunity to prepare a response to the Competition Authority’s final pleading. Based on an assessment of the information 
contained in the Statement, during the quarter ended June 30, 2009 we recorded a provision of $10.0 ( € 7.1) related to this 
matter which amount is reflected in “Other income, net” on the Fiscal 2009 Consolidated Statement of Income. The final 
resolution could result in payment of an amount significantly different from the amount we have recorded. We are unable to 
predict the timing of the final resolution of this matter.  

We cannot predict with certainty the final results of any of the environmental or other pending claims or legal actions 
described above. However, it is reasonably possible that some of them could be resolved unfavorably to us and result in losses in 
excess of recorded amounts. We are unable to estimate any possible losses in excess of recorded amounts. Although we currently 
believe, after consultation with counsel, that damages or settlements, if any, recovered by the plaintiffs in such claims or actions 
will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, damages or settlements could be material to our operating 
results or cash flows in future periods depending on the nature and timing of future developments with respect to these matters 
and the amounts of future operating results and cash flows. In addition to the matters described above, there are other pending 
claims and legal actions arising in the normal course of our businesses. While the results of these other pending claims and legal 
actions cannot be predicted with certainty, we believe, after consultation with counsel, the final outcome of such other matters 
will not have a significant effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.  
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Note 16 — Fair Value Measurements  

The following table presents our financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis 
for each of the fair value hierarchy levels, including both current and noncurrent portions, as of September 30, 2009:  

Note 17 — Disclosures About Derivative Instruments, Hedging Activities and Other Financial Instruments  

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities  

We are exposed to certain market risks related to our ongoing business operations. Management uses derivative financial 
and commodity instruments, among other things, to manage these risks. The primary risks managed by derivative instruments are 
(1) commodity price risk, (2) interest rate risk and (3) foreign currency exchange rate risk. Although we use derivative financial 
and commodity instruments to reduce market risk associated with forecasted transactions, we do not use derivative financial and 
commodity instruments for speculative or trading purposes. The use of derivative instruments is controlled by our risk 
management and credit policies which govern, among other things, the derivative instruments we can use, counterparty credit 
limits and contract authorization limits. Because our derivative instruments, other than FTRs and gasoline futures and swap 
contracts (as further described below), generally qualify as hedges under GAAP, we expect that changes in the fair value of 
derivative instruments used to manage commodity, interest rate or currency exchange rate risk would be substantially offset by 
gains or losses on the associated anticipated transactions.  

Commodity Price Risk  

In order to manage market price risk associated with the Partnership’s fixed-price programs which permit customers to lock 
in the prices they pay for propane principally during the months of October through March, the Partnership uses over-the-counter 
derivative commodity instruments, principally price swap contracts. Certain other domestic business units and our International 
Propane operations also use over-the-counter price swap and option contracts to reduce commodity price volatility associated 
with a portion of their forecasted LPG purchases.  

Gas Utility’s tariffs contain clauses that permit recovery of all of the prudently incurred costs of natural gas it sells to retail 
core-market customers. As permitted and agreed to by the PUC pursuant to Gas Utility’s annual PGC filings, Gas Utility 
currently uses New York Mercantile Exchange (“NYMEX”) natural gas futures contracts to reduce commodity price volatility 
associated with a portion of the natural gas it purchases for its retail core-market customers. At September 30, 2009, there were 
no unsettled NYMEX natural gas futures contracts outstanding. Although we did not have any unsettled NYMEX natural gas 
futures contracts outstanding at September 30, 2009, we typically hedge anticipated purchases of natural gas over periods of 
approximately 12 to 18 months.  

In order to reduce volatility associated with a substantial portion of its electricity transmission congestion costs, Electric 
Utility obtains FTRs through an annual PJM Interconnection (“PJM”) allocation process and by purchases of FTRs at monthly 
PJM auctions. Energy Services purchases FTRs to economically hedge electricity transmission congestion costs associated with 
its fixed-price electricity sales contracts. FTRs are derivative financial instruments that entitle the holder to receive compensation 
for electricity transmission congestion charges that result when there is insufficient electricity transmission capacity on the 
electric transmission grid. PJM is a regional transmission organization that coordinates the movement of wholesale electricity in 
all or parts of 14 eastern and midwestern states.  
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Assets    $ 2.0     $ 18.8     $ —    $ 20.8   
Liabilities    $ (5.8 )   $ (43.7 )   $ —    $ (49.5 ) 
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In order to reduce operating expense volatility, UGI Utilities from time to time enters into NYMEX gasoline futures and 
swap contracts for a portion of gasoline volumes expected to be used in the operation of its vehicles and equipment. The volumes 
of gasoline under these contracts, the associated fair values and the effect on net income were not material for all periods 
presented. At September 30, 2009, the maximum period over which we are hedging gasoline is 12 months.  

In order to manage market price risk relating to fixed-price sales contracts for natural gas and electricity, Energy Services 
enters into NYMEX and over-the-counter natural gas and electricity futures contracts.  

At September 30, 2009, we had the following outstanding derivative commodity instruments volumes that qualify for hedge 
accounting treatment:  

At September 30, 2009, the maximum period over which we are hedging our exposure to the variability in cash flows 
associated with commodity price risk is 19 months. The volume of electricity congestion that is subject to FTRs at September 30, 
2009 totaled 1,738.0 million kilowatt-hours and the maximum period over which we are economically hedging electricity 
congestion with FTRs is 20 months.  

We account for commodity price risk contracts (other than our Gas Utility natural gas futures contracts, FTRs and gasoline 
futures contracts) as cash flow hedges. Changes in the fair values of contracts qualifying for cash flow hedge accounting are 
recorded in AOCI and, with respect to the Partnership, minority interest, to the extent effective in offsetting changes in the 
underlying commodity price risk. When earnings are affected by the hedged commodity, gains or losses are recorded in cost of 
sales on the Consolidated Statements of Income. At September 30, 2009, the amount of net losses associated with commodity 
price risk hedges expected to be reclassified into earnings during the next twelve months based upon current fair values is $32.7. 
With respect to natural gas futures contracts associated with our Gas Utility, gains and losses on unsettled natural gas futures 
contracts are recorded in deferred fuel costs on the Consolidated Balance Sheet in accordance with the FASB guidance related to 
rate-regulated entities and reflected in cost of sales through the PGC mechanism. Because Electric Utility is entitled to fully 
recover its default service costs commencing January 1, 2010 pursuant to a January 22, 2009 settlement of its default service rate 
filing with the PUC (see Note 8), changes in the fair value of Electric Utility FTRs associated with periods beginning January 1, 
2010 will not affect net income. Electric Utility FTRs associated with periods prior to January 2010 are recorded at fair value 
with changes in fair value reflected in cost of sales. Energy Services’ FTRs are recorded at fair value with changes in fair value 
reflected in cost of sales.  

Interest Rate Risk  

Our domestic businesses’ long-term debt is typically issued at fixed rates of interest. As these long-term debt issues mature, 
we typically refinance such debt with new debt having interest rates reflecting then-current market conditions. In order to reduce 
market rate risk on the underlying benchmark rate of interest associated with near- to medium-term forecasted issuances of fixed-
rate debt, from time to time we enter into interest rate protection agreements (“IRPAs”). As of September 30, 2009, the total 
notional amount of our unsettled IRPAs was $150. Our current unsettled IRPA contracts hedge forecasted interest payments 
associated with the issuance of debt forecasted to occur in June 2010.  

Antargaz’ and Flaga’s long-term debt agreements have interest rates that are generally indexed to short-term market interest 
rates. Antargaz has effectively fixed the underlying euribor interest rate on its variable-rate debt through March 2011 and Flaga 
has fixed the underlying euribor interest rate on a substantial portion of its two term loans through their scheduled maturity dates 
in 2011 and 2014 through the use of pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swap agreements. As of September 30, 2009, the 
total notional amount of our interest rate swaps was € 410.6.  

We account for IRPAs and interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges. Changes in the fair values of IRPAs and interest rate 
swaps are recorded in AOCI and, with respect to the Partnership, minority interest, to the extent effective in offsetting changes in 
the underlying interest rate risk, until earnings are affected by the hedged interest expense. At such time, gains and losses are 
recorded in interest expense. At September 30, 2009, the amount of net losses associated with interest rate hedges (excluding 
pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps) expected to be reclassified into earnings during the next twelve months based 
upon current fair values is $2.1.  
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LPG (millions of gallons)      152.8   
Natural gas (millions of dekatherms)      21.8   
Electricity (millions of kilowatt-hours)      372.0   
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Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk  

In order to reduce volatility, Antargaz hedges a portion of its anticipated U.S. dollar-denominated LPG product purchases 
through the use of forward foreign currency exchange contracts. The amount of dollar-denominated purchases of LPG associated 
with such contracts generally represents approximately 15% to 20% of estimated dollar-denominated purchases of LPG to occur 
during the heating-season months of October through March. At September 30, 2009, we were hedging a total of $131.5 of U.S. 
dollar denominated LPG purchases. We also enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts to reduce the volatility of 
the U.S. dollar value on a portion of our International Propane euro-denominated net investment. At September 30, 2009, we 
were hedging a total of € 30.8 of our euro-denominated net investments. As of September 30, 2009, our foreign currency 
contracts extend through December 2011.  

We account for foreign currency exchange contracts associated with anticipated purchases of U.S. dollar-denominated LPG 
as cash flow hedges. Changes in the fair values of these foreign currency exchange contracts are recorded in AOCI, to the extent 
effective in offsetting changes in the underlying currency exchange rate risk, until earnings are affected by the hedged LPG 
purchase, at which time gains and losses are recorded in cost of sales. At September 30, 2009, the amount of net losses 
associated with currency rate risk (other than net investment hedges) expected to be reclassified into earnings during the next 
twelve months based upon current fair values is $1.3. Gains and losses on net investment hedges are included in AOCI until such 
foreign operations are liquidated.  

Derivative Financial Instrument Credit Risk  

We are exposed to risk of loss in the event of nonperformance by our derivative financial instrument counterparties. Our 
derivative financial instrument counterparties principally comprise major energy companies and major U.S. and international 
financial institutions. We maintain credit policies with regard to our counterparties that we believe reduce overall credit risk. 
These policies include evaluating and monitoring our counterparties’ financial condition, including their credit ratings, and 
entering into agreements with counterparties that govern credit limits. Certain of these agreements call for the posting of 
collateral by the counterparty or by the Company in the form of letters of credit, parental guarantees or cash. Additionally, our 
natural gas and electricity exchange-traded futures contracts which are guaranteed by the NYMEX generally require cash 
deposits in margin accounts. At September 30, 2009 and 2008, restricted cash in brokerage accounts totaled $7.0 and $70.3, 
respectively. Although we attempt to reduce our overall credit risk with derivative financial instrument counterparties, we have 
concentrations of credit risk associated with derivative financial instruments held by certain counterparties who comprise a 
significant portion of the value of derivative financial instrument assets at September 30, 2009. The maximum amount of loss 
due to credit risk that, based upon the gross fair values of the derivative financial instrument, we would incur if these 
counterparties that make up the concentration failed to perform according to the terms of their contracts was not material at 
September 30, 2009. We generally do not have credit-risk-related contingent features in our derivative contracts.  
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The following table provides information regarding the balance sheet location and fair value of derivative assets and 
liabilities existing as of September 30, 2009:  
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    Derivative Assets     Derivative (Liabilities)   
    Balance Sheet   Fair     Balance Sheet   Fair   
As of September 30, 2009   Location   Value     Location   Value   
Derivatives Designated as Hedging 

Instruments:    
  

          
  

        
                           

Commodity contracts:                          
LPG  

  
Derivative financial instruments 

and Other assets    $ 13.6     Derivative financial instruments   $ (1.4 ) 
Natural gas  

  Derivative financial instruments     2.0     

Derivative financial instruments 
and Other noncurrent 
liabilities      (2.4 ) 

Electricity  

  

  

          

Derivative financial instruments 
and Other noncurrent 
liabilities      (3.4 ) 

Foreign currrency contracts  
  

Derivative financial instruments 
and Other assets      —    Other noncurrent liabilities      (5.7 ) 

Interest rate contracts  

  Derivative financial instruments     2.2     

Derivative financial instruments 
and Other noncurrent 
liabilities      (36.6 ) 

     
  

  
  
    

  
  

  
  

Total Derivatives Designated as 
Hedging Instruments    

  
  $ 17.8     

  
  $ (49.5 ) 

     

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

                           
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging 

Instruments:    
  

          
  

        
                           

FTRs    Derivative financial instruments   $ 2.9               
Gasoline contracts    Derivative financial instruments     0.1               

     
  

  
  
    

  
        

Total Derivatives Not Designated as 
Hedging instruments    

  
  $ 3.0     

  
        

     

  

  

  

    

  

        

                           
Total Derivatives        $ 20.8         $ (49.5 ) 
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The following tables provide information on the effects of derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statement of Income 
and changes in AOCI and minority interest for Fiscal 2009:  

The amounts of derivative gains or losses representing ineffectiveness and the amounts of gains or losses recognized in 
income as a result of excluding derivatives from ineffectiveness testing were not material for Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 
2007. We reclassified losses of $1.7 into other income, net, during Fiscal 2009 as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow 
hedges.  

We are also a party to a number of contracts that have elements of a derivative instrument. These contracts include, among 
others, binding purchase orders, contracts which provide for the purchase and delivery, or sale, of natural gas, LPG and 
electricity, and service contracts that require the counterparty to provide commodity storage, transportation or capacity service to 
meet our normal sales commitments. Although many of these contracts have the requisite elements of a derivative instrument, 
these contracts qualify for normal purchase and normal sale exception accounting under GAAP because they provide for the 
delivery of products or services in quantities that are expected to be used in the normal course of operating our businesses and 
the price based on the contract underlying is directly associated with the price or value of a service.  
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                    Location of 
    Gain or (Loss)     Gain or (Loss)     Gain or (Loss) 
    Recognized in     Reclassified from     Reclassified from 
    AOCI and     AOCI and Minority     AOCI and Minority 
Fiscal 2009:   Minority Interest     Interest into Income     Interest into Income 
                       
Cash Flow Hedges:                      
Commodity contracts:                      

LPG    $ (135.0 )   $ (199.3 )   Cost of sales 
Natural gas      (103.4 )     (100.3 )   Cost of sales 
Electricity      (2.7 )     (6.2 )   Cost of sales 

Foreign currency contracts      (2.1 )     5.0     Cost of sales 
Interest rate contracts      (46.7 )     (7.0 )   Interest expense /other income 
     

  
    

  
    

  

Total    $ (289.9 )   $ (307.8 )     
     

  

    

  

    

  

                       
Net Investment Hedges:                      
Foreign currency contracts    $ (2.0 )             
     

  

            

  

                       

     
 

Gain or (Loss)             
Location of  

Gain or (Loss) 
     Recognized in             Recognized in 
     Income             Income 
     

  
            

  

                       
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments:                      
FTRs    $ (0.6 )           Cost of sales 
Gasoline contracts      0.7             Operating expenses/ other income 
     

  
            

  

Total    $ 0.1               
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Financial Instruments  

The carrying amounts of financial instruments included in current assets and current liabilities (excluding unsettled 
derivative instruments and current maturities of long-term debt) approximate their fair values because of their short-term nature. 
The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of our remaining financial instruments assets and (liabilities) at September 30 
(including unsettled derivative instruments) are as follows:  

We estimate the fair value of long-term debt by using current market rates and by discounting future cash flows using rates 
available for similar type debt. Fair values of derivative financial instruments are determined in accordance with the FASB’s 
guidance regarding fair value measurements.  

Financial instruments other than derivative financial instruments, such as our short-term investments and trade accounts 
receivable, could expose us to concentrations of credit risk. We limit our credit risk from short-term investments by investing 
only in investment-grade commercial paper, money market mutual funds and securities guaranteed by the U.S. Government or its 
agencies. The credit risk from trade accounts receivable is limited because we have a large customer base, which extends across 
many different U.S. markets and several foreign countries.  

Note 18 — Energy Services Accounts Receivable Securitization Facility  

Energy Services has a $200 receivables purchase facility (“Receivables Facility”) with an issuer of receivables-backed 
commercial paper currently scheduled to expire in April 2010, although the Receivables Facility may terminate prior to such date 
due to the termination of commitments of the Receivables Facility’s back-up purchasers.  

Under the Receivables Facility, Energy Services transfers, on an ongoing basis and without recourse, its trade accounts 
receivable to its wholly owned, special-purpose subsidiary, Energy Services Funding Corporation (“ESFC”), which is 
consolidated for financial statement purposes. ESFC, in turn, has sold, and subject to certain conditions, may from time to time 
sell, an undivided interest in the receivables to a commercial paper conduit of a major bank. ESFC was created and has been 
structured to isolate its assets from creditors of Energy Services and its affiliates, including UGI. This two-step transaction is 
accounted for as a sale of receivables following the FASB’s guidance for accounting for transfers of financial assets and 
extinguishments of liabilities. Energy Services continues to service, administer and collect trade receivables on behalf of the 
commercial paper issuer and ESFC.  

During Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, Energy Services sold trade receivables totaling $1,247.1, $1,496.2 and 
$1,241.0, respectively, to ESFC. During Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, ESFC sold an aggregate $596.9, $251.5 and 
$495.5, respectively, of undivided interests in its trade receivables to the commercial paper conduit. At September 30, 2009, the 
outstanding balance of ESFC trade receivables was $38.2 which is net of $31.3 that was sold to the commercial paper conduit 
and removed from the balance sheet. At September 30, 2008, the outstanding balance of ESFC trade receivables was $28.7 
which is net of $71 that was sold to the commercial paper conduit and removed from the balance sheet. Losses on sales of 
receivables to the commercial paper conduit that occurred during Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, which are included in 
“Other income, net,” were $2.3, $0.9, and $1.5, respectively.  
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    Asset (Liability)   
    Carrying     Estimated   
    Amount     Fair Value   
2009:                  
Derivative financial instruments    $ (28.7 )   $ (28.7 ) 
Long-term debt      (2,133.1 )     (2,170.3 ) 
                   
2008:                  
Derivative financial instruments    $ (88.6 )   $ (88.6 ) 
Long-term debt      (2,069.1 )     (1,943.2 ) 
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Note 19 — Other Income, Net  

Other income, net, comprises the following:  

Note 20 — Quarterly Data (unaudited)  

The following unaudited quarterly data includes adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments with the 
exception of those indicated below) which we consider necessary for a fair presentation unless otherwise indicated. Our quarterly 
results fluctuate because of the seasonal nature of our businesses.  

Note 21 — Segment Information  

We have organized our business units into six reportable segments generally based upon products sold, geographic location 
(domestic or international) and regulatory environment. Our reportable segments are: (1) AmeriGas Propane; (2) an international 
LPG segment comprising Antargaz; (3) an international LPG segment comprising Flaga and our international propane equity 
investments (“Other”); (4) Gas Utility; (5) Electric Utility; and (6) Energy Services. We refer to both international segments 
collectively as “International Propane.”  

AmeriGas Propane derives its revenues principally from the sale of propane and related equipment and supplies to retail 
customers in all 50 states. Our International Propane segments’ revenues are derived principally from the distribution of LPG to 
retail customers in France and, to a much lesser extent, central and eastern Europe including Austria. Gas Utility’s revenues are 
derived principally from the sale and distribution of natural gas to customers in eastern, northeastern and central Pennsylvania. 
Electric Utility derives its revenues principally from the distribution of electricity in two northeastern Pennsylvania counties. 
Energy Services revenues are derived from the sale of natural gas and, to a lesser extent, LPG, electricity, and fuel oil to 
customers located primarily in the Mid-Atlantic region of the United States.  
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    2009     2008     2007   
Interest and interest-related income    $ 5.0     $ 11.6     $ 11.5   
Antargaz Competition Authority Matter      (10.0 )     —      —  
Utility non-tariff service income      3.2       6.2       5.1   
Gains on Partnership sales of storage facilities      39.9       —      46.1   
Finance charges      11.7       11.8       10.2   
Other, net      6.1       12.0       5.0   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Total other income, net    $ 55.9     $ 41.6     $ 77.9   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                                                                  
    December 31,     March 31,     June 30,     September 30,   
    2008 (a)     2007     2009     2008     2009 (b)     2008     2009     2008   
Revenues    $ 1,778.5     $ 1,764.7     $ 2,137.8     $ 2,361.5     $ 962.2     $ 1,332.8     $ 859.3     $ 1,189.2   
Operating income (loss)    $ 289.4     $ 196.2     $ 374.8     $ 317.4     $ 28.8     $ 58.2     $ (7.7 )   $ 13.4   
Loss from equity investees    $ (0.2 )   $ (0.7 )   $ (0.6 )   $ (0.7 )   $ —    $ (0.7 )   $ (2.3 )   $ (0.8 ) 
Net income (loss)    $ 114.9     $ 80.0     $ 158.2     $ 126.1     $ (3.6 )   $ 15.7     $ (11.0 )   $ (6.3 ) 
Earnings (loss) per share:                                                                  

Basic    $ 1.06     $ 0.75     $ 1.46     $ 1.18     $ (0.03 )   $ 0.15     $ (0.10 )   $ (0.06 ) 
Diluted    $ 1.05     $ 0.74     $ 1.45     $ 1.17     $ (0.03 )   $ 0.14     $ (0.10 )   $ (0.06 ) 

      

(a)   Includes a gain from the sale of the Partnership’s California storage facility which increased operating income by $39.9 and 
net income by $12.5 or $0.10 per diluted share (see Note 4).  

  

(b)   Includes a provision for the Antargaz Competition Authority Matter which decreased operating income by $10.0 and 
increased net loss by $10.0 or $0.10 per share (see Note 15).  
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The accounting policies of our reportable segments are the same as those described in Note 2. We evaluate AmeriGas 
Propane’s performance principally based upon the Partnership’s earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and 
amortization (“Partnership EBITDA”). Although we use Partnership EBITDA to evaluate AmeriGas Propane’s profitability, it 
should not be considered as an alternative to net income (as an indicator of operating performance) or as an alternative to cash 
flow (as a measure of liquidity or ability to service debt obligations) and is not a measure of performance or financial condition 
under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our definition of Partnership EBITDA may be 
different from that used by other companies. We evaluate the performance of our International Propane, Gas Utility, Electric 
Utility and Energy Services segments principally based upon their income before income taxes.  

No single customer represents more than ten percent of our consolidated revenues. In addition, all of our reportable 
segments’ revenues, other than those of our International Propane segments, are derived from sources within the United States, 
and all of our reportable segments’ long-lived assets, other than those of our International Propane segments, are located in the 
United States.  
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                    Reportable Segments         
            Elim-     AmeriGas     Gas     Electric     Energy     International Propane     Corporate   
    Total     inations     Propane     Utility     Utility     Services     Antargaz     Other (b)     & Other (c)   
2009                                                                          

Revenues    $ 5,737.8     $ (172.5 )(d)   $ 2,260.1     $ 1,241.0     $ 138.5     $ 1,224.7     $ 837.7     $ 117.6     $ 90.7   
Cost of sales    $ 3,670.6     $ (167.7 )(d)   $ 1,316.5     $ 853.2     $ 91.6     $ 1,098.5     $ 362.4     $ 67.1     $ 49.0   
Operating income (loss)    $ 685.3     $ —    $ 300.5     $ 153.5     $ 15.4     $ 64.8     $ 142.8     $ 8.6     $ (0.3 ) 
Loss from equity investees      (3.1 )     —      —      —      —      —      (2.9 )     (0.2 )     —  
Interest expense      (141.1 )     —      (70.3 )     (42.2 )     (1.7 )     —      (24.0 )     (2.6 )     (0.3 ) 
Minority interests      (123.5 )     (0.2 )     (123.6 )     —      —      —      0.4       (0.1 )     —  
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Income (loss) before income taxes    $ 417.6     $ (0.2 )   $ 106.6     $ 111.3     $ 13.7     $ 64.8     $ 116.3     $ 5.7     $ (0.6 ) 
Depreciation and amortization    $ 200.9     $ —    $ 83.9     $ 47.2     $ 3.9     $ 8.5     $ 47.7     $ 8.8     $ 0.9   
Partnership EBITDA (a)                    $ 381.4                                                   
Total assets    $ 6,042.6     $ (115.5 )   $ 1,647.7     $ 1,917.1     $ 113.2     $ 344.1     $ 1,705.6     $ 260.1     $ 170.3   
Bank loans    $ 163.1     $ —    $ —    $ 145.9     $ 8.1     $ —    $ —    $ 9.1     $ —  
Capital expenditures    $ 301.7     $ —    $ 78.7     $ 73.8     $ 5.3     $ 66.2     $ 70.5     $ 5.8     $ 1.4   
Investments in equity investees    $ 3.0     $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 3.0     $ —  
Goodwill    $ 1,582.3     $ (4.0 )   $ 670.1     $ 180.1     $ —    $ —    $ 646.9     $ 70.4     $ 18.8   

           
2008                                                                          

Revenues    $ 6,648.2     $ (283.7 )(d)   $ 2,815.2     $ 1,138.3     $ 139.2     $ 1,619.5     $ 1,062.6     $ 62.2     $ 94.9   
Cost of sales    $ 4,744.6     $ (277.1 )(d)   $ 1,908.3     $ 831.1     $ 84.3     $ 1,495.4     $ 615.9     $ 36.0     $ 50.7   
Operating income    $ 585.2     $ —    $ 235.0     $ 137.6     $ 24.4     $ 77.3     $ 102.2     $ 4.6     $ 4.1   
Loss from equity investees      (2.9 )     —      —      —      —      —      (1.3 )     (1.6 )     —  
Interest expense      (142.5 )     —      (72.9 )     (37.1 )     (2.0 )     —      (27.4 )     (2.3 )     (0.8 ) 
Minority interests      (89.8 )     (0.2 )     (88.4 )     —      —      —      (1.2 )     —      —  
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Income before income taxes    $ 350.0     $ (0.2 )   $ 73.7     $ 100.5     $ 22.4     $ 77.3     $ 72.3     $ 0.7     $ 3.3   
Depreciation and amortization    $ 184.4     $ —    $ 80.4     $ 37.7     $ 3.6     $ 7.0     $ 50.5     $ 4.2     $ 1.0   
Partnership EBITDA (a)                    $ 313.0                                                   
Total assets    $ 5,685.0     $ (86.3 )   $ 1,722.8     $ 1,582.5     $ 112.1     $ 312.3     $ 1,673.2     $ 196.8     $ 171.6   
Bank loans    $ 136.4     $ —    $ —    $ 54.0     $ 3.0     $ —    $ 70.4     $ 9.0     $ —  
Capital expenditures    $ 234.2     $ —    $ 62.8     $ 58.3     $ 6.0     $ 30.7     $ 70.7     $ 4.3     $ 1.4   
Investments in equity investees    $ 63.1     $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 63.1     $ —  
Goodwill    $ 1,489.7     $ (4.0 )   $ 645.2     $ 161.7     $ —    $ 11.8     $ 622.2     $ 45.7     $ 7.1   

           
2007                                                                          

Revenues    $ 5,476.9     $ (197.3 )(d)   $ 2,277.4     $ 1,044.9     $ 121.9     $ 1,336.1     $ 759.2     $ 41.2     $ 93.5   
Cost of sales    $ 3,730.8     $ (193.8 )(d)   $ 1,437.2     $ 741.5     $ 67.8     $ 1,235.2     $ 366.7     $ 21.9     $ 54.3   
Operating income    $ 581.3     $ —    $ 265.8     $ 136.6     $ 26.0     $ 57.4     $ 94.5     $ —    $ 1.0   
Loss from equity investees      (3.8 )     —      —      —      —      —      (1.8 )     (2.0 )     —  
Interest expense      (139.6 )     —      (71.5 )     (39.9 )     (2.4 )     —      (23.1 )     (2.1 )     (0.6 ) 
Minority interests      (106.9 )     (0.2 )     (105.3 )     —      —      —      (1.4 )     —      —  
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
  

Income (loss) before income taxes    $ 331.0     $ (0.2 )   $ 89.0     $ 96.7     $ 23.6     $ 57.4     $ 68.2     $ (4.1 )   $ 0.4   
Depreciation and amortization    $ 169.2     $ —    $ 75.7     $ 37.4     $ 3.5     $ 6.9     $ 41.5     $ 3.4     $ 0.8   
Partnership EBITDA (a)                    $ 338.7                                                   
Total assets    $ 5,502.7     $ (94.5 )   $ 1,708.4     $ 1,531.2     $ 102.9     $ 254.9     $ 1,648.9     $ 196.8     $ 154.1   
Bank loans    $ 198.9     $ —    $ —    $ 176.7     $ 13.3     $ —    $ —    $ 8.9     $ —  
Capital expenditures    $ 223.1     $ —    $ 73.8     $ 66.2     $ 7.2     $ 10.7     $ 61.8     $ 2.5     $ 0.9   
Investments in equity investees    $ 63.9     $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 63.9     $ —  
Goodwill    $ 1,498.8     $ (4.0 )   $ 645.1     $ 162.3     $ —    $ 11.8     $ 630.3     $ 46.3     $ 7.0   

      

(a)   The following table provides a reconciliation of Partnership EBITDA to AmeriGas Propane operating income:  
                          
Year ended September 30,   2009     2008     2007   
Partnership EBITDA    $ 381.4 (i)   $ 313.0     $338.7 (ii) 
Depreciation and amortization      (83.9 )     (80.4 )     (75.7 ) 
Minority interests (iii)      3.0       2.4       2.8   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Operating income    $ 300.5     $ 235.0     $ 265.8   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

  (i)   Includes $39.9 gain on the sale of California storage facility. See Note 4 to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
  
  (ii)   Includes $46.1 gain on the sale of Arizona storage facility. See Note 4 to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
  
  (iii)   Principally represents the General Partner’s 1.01% interest in AmeriGas OLP.  
      

(b)   International Propane — Other principally comprises Flaga, including, prior to the January 29, 2009 purchase of the 50% 
equity interest it did not already own, its central and eastern European joint-venture ZLH, and our joint-venture business in 
China.  

  

(c)   Corporate & Other results principally comprise UGI Enterprises’ heating, ventilation, air-conditioning, refrigeration and 
electrical contracting businesses (“HVAC/R”), net expenses of UGI’s captive general liability insurance company and UGI 
Corporation’s unallocated corporate and general expenses and interest income. Corporate and Other assets principally 
comprise cash, short-term investments, assets of HVAC/R and an intercompany loan. The intercompany loan and 
associated interest is removed in the segment presentation.  

  

(d)   Principally represents the elimination of intersegment transactions among Energy Services, Gas Utility and AmeriGas 
Propane.  
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In addition to the guarantees of Flaga’s debt as described in Note 5 to Consolidated Financial Statements, at September 30, 
2009, UGI Corporation had agreed to indemnify the issuers of $35.6 of surety bonds issued on behalf of certain UGI 
subsidiaries. UGI Corporation is authorized to guarantee up to $385.0 of obligations to suppliers and customers of UGI Energy 
Services, Inc. and subsidiaries of which $342.4 of such obligations were outstanding as of September 30, 2009.  
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    September 30,   
    2009     2008   
ASSETS                  
Current assets:                  

Cash and cash equivalents    $ 1.4     $ 1.4   
Accounts and notes receivable      3.9       5.3   
Deferred income taxes      0.3       0.3   
Prepaid expenses and other current assets      0.5       0.4   

     
  
    

  
  

Total current assets      6.1       7.4   
                   
Investments in subsidiaries      1,608.8       1,429.4   
Derivative financial instruments      —      1.8   
Deferred income taxes      18.7       15.0   
     

  
    

  
  

Total assets    $ 1,633.6     $ 1,453.6   
     

  

    

  

  

                   
LIABILITIES AND COMMON STOCKHOLDERS ’  EQUITY                  
Current liabilities:                  

Accounts and notes payable    $ 11.3     $ 10.6   
Derivative financial instruments      0.2       —  
Accrued liabilities      6.1       5.9   

     
  
    

  
  

Total current liabilities      17.6       16.5   
                   
Noncurrent liabilities      24.6       19.4   
                   
Commitments and contingencies (Note 1)                  
                   
Common stockholders’  equity:                  

Common Stock, without par value (authorized - 300,000,000 shares; issued - 115,261,294 
and 115,247,694 shares, respectively)      875.6       858.3   

Retained earnings      804.3       630.9   
Accumulated other comprehensive loss      (38.9 )     (15.2 ) 

     
  
    

  
  

       1,641.0       1,474.0   
Less treasury stock, at cost      (49.6 )     (56.3 ) 

     
  
    

  
  

Total common stockholders’  equity      1,591.4       1,417.7   
     

  
    

  
  

Total liabilities and common stockholders’  equity    $ 1,633.6     $ 1,453.6   
     

  

    

  

  

      

Note 1 — Commitments and Contingencies:  
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S-2  

                          
    Year Ended   
    September 30,   
    2009     2008     2007   
Revenues    $ —    $ —    $ —  
                           
Costs and expenses:                          

Operating and administrative expenses      33.7       29.3       27.2   
Other income, net (1)      (33.7 )     (29.6 )     (27.1 ) 

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

       —      (0.3 )     0.1   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

                           
Operating income (loss)      —      0.3       (0.1 ) 
Intercompany interest income      0.1       0.1       0.2   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

                           
Income before income taxes      0.1       0.4       0.1   
Income tax expense      0.8       1.3       0.8   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

                           
Loss before equity in income of unconsolidated subsidiaries      (0.7 )     (0.9 )     (0.7 ) 
Equity in income of unconsolidated subsidiaries      259.2       216.4       205.0   
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

                           
Net income    $ 258.5     $ 215.5     $ 204.3   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                           
Earnings per common share:                          

Basic    $ 2.38     $ 2.01     $ 1.92   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

Diluted    $ 2.36     $ 1.99     $ 1.89   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                           
Average common shares outstanding (millions):                          

Basic      108.523       107.396       106.451   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

  
Diluted      109.339       108.521       107.941   

     

  

    

  

    

  

  

      

(1)   UGI provides certain financial and administrative services to certain of its subsidiaries. UGI bills these subsidiaries monthly 
for all direct expenses incurred by UGI on behalf of its subsidiaries as well as allocated shares of indirect corporate expense 
incurred or paid with respect to services provided by UGI. The allocation of indirect UGI corporate expenses to certain of 
its subsidiaries utilizes a weighted, three-component formula comprising revenues, operating expenses, and net assets 
employed and considers the relative percentage of each subsidiary’s such items to the total of such items for all UGI 
operating subsidiaries for which general and administrative services are provided. Management believes that this allocation 
method is reasonable and equitable to its subsidiaries. These billed expenses are classified as “Other income, net” in the 
Statements of Income above.  
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES  
SCHEDULE I — CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REG ISTRANT (PARENT COMPANY)  

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
(Millions of dollars)  

   

S-3  

                          
    Year Ended   
    September 30,   
    2009     2008     2007   
           
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (a)    $ 124.7     $ 155.1     $ 105.1   
                           
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:                          

Net investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries      (50.4 )     (94.4 )     (44.0 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

Net cash used by investing activities      (50.4 )     (94.4 )     (44.0 ) 
                           
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:                          

Payment of dividends on Common Stock      (85.1 )     (80.9 )     (76.8 ) 
Issuance of Common Stock      10.8       20.9       16.4   

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

Net cash used by financing activities      (74.3 )     (60.0 )     (60.4 ) 
     

  
    

  
    

  
  

                           
Cash and cash equivalents increase    $ —    $ 0.7     $ 0.7   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

                           
Cash and cash equivalents:                          

End of year    $ 1.4     $ 1.4     $ 0.7   
Beginning of year      1.4       0.7       —  

     
  
    

  
    

  
  

Increase    $ —    $ 0.7     $ 0.7   
     

  

    

  

    

  

  

      

(a)   Includes dividends received from unconsolidated subsidiaries of $110.7, $144.0, and $100.0 for the years ended 
September 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES  
SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS  

(Millions of dollars)  

   

S-4  

                                  
            Charged                 
    Balance at     (credited)             Balance at   
    beginning     to costs and             end of   
    of year     expenses     Other     year   
Year Ended September 30, 2009                                  
Reserves deducted from assets in the consolidated 

balance sheet:                                  
                                   

Allowance for doubtful accounts    $ 40.8     $ 34.1     $ (42.3 )(1)   $ 38.3   
     

  

                    

  

  

                                   
                       5.7 (4)         
Other reserves:                                  
                                   

Property and casualty liability    $ 77.4     $ 22.7     $ (32.6 )(3)   $ 72.3 (5) 
     

  

                    

  

  

                       4.6 (4)         
                       0.2 (2)         
                                   

Environmental, litigation and other    $ 31.4     $ 20.5     $ (5.5 )(3)   $ 66.3   
     

  

                    

  

  

                       13.9 (4)         
                       6.0 (2)         

Deferred tax assets valuation allowance    $ 56.5     $ 31.3     $ —   $ 87.8   
     

  

                    

  

  

                                   
Year Ended September 30, 2008                                  
Reserves deducted from assets in the consolidated 

balance sheet:                                  
                                   

Allowance for doubtful accounts    $ 37.7     $ 37.1     $ (34.0 )(1)   $ 40.8   
     

  

                    

  

  

                                   
Other reserves:                                  
                                   

Property and casualty liability    $ 65.0     $ 34.4     $ (22.3 )(3)   $ 77.4 (5) 
     

  

                    

  

  

                       0.3 (2)         
                                   

Environmental, litigation and other    $ 37.1     $ 5.7     $ (13.0 )(3)   $ 31.4   
     

  

                    

  

  

                       1.6 (2)         
Deferred tax assets valuation allowance    $ 62.2     $ 0.8     $ (6.5 )(2)   $ 56.5   
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES  
SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS (co ntinued)  

(Millions of dollars)  

   

S-5  

                                  
            Charged                 
    Balance at     (credited)             Balance at   
    beginning     to costs and             end of   
    of year     expenses     Other     year   
Year Ended September 30, 2007                                  
Reserves deducted from assets in the consolidated 

balance sheet:                                  
                                   

Allowance for doubtful accounts    $ 38.0     $ 26.7     $ (28.3 )(1)   $ 37.7   
     

  

                    

  

  

                       1.3 (4)         
                                   
Other reserves:                                  
                                   

Property and casualty liability    $ 62.9     $ 16.1     $ (15.3 )(3)   $ 65.0 (5) 
     

  

                    

  

  

                       1.3 (2)         
                                   

Environmental, litigation and other    $ 26.5     $ 2.0     $ (0.9 )(3)   $ 37.1   
     

  

                    

  

  

                       1.2 (2)         
                       8.3 (4)         
                                   

Deferred tax assets valuation allowance    $ 39.3     $ 22.9     $ —    $ 62.2   
     

  

                    

  

  

      

(1)   Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries  
  

(2)   Other adjustments  
  

(3)   Payments, net  
  

(4)   Acquisition  
  

(5)   At September 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company had insurance indemnification receivables associated with its 
property and casualty liabilities totaling $1.0, $18.5 and $1.0, respectively.  
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UGI Corporation  
2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan  

Stock Options, Performance Units and Stock Units For Employees  

Terms and Conditions  

The following Terms and Conditions shall be used for purposes of administering Options, Performance Units and Stock Units 
granted to Employees under the Plan. The Committee has discretion to modify or deviate from the Terms and Conditions at any 
time. The defined terms shall have the meanings given those terms in the Plan or in these Terms and Conditions, if not defined in 
the Plan.  

1. Definitions  

Whenever used in these Terms and Conditions for Employees, the following terms will have the meanings set forth below:  

(a)  “Account” means a bookkeeping account established on the records of the Company to record Performance Units, 
Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents credited under the Plan.  

(b)  “AmeriGas” means AmeriGas Propane, Inc.  

(c)  “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  

(d)  “Disabled” or “Disability” means a long-term disability as defined in the Company’s long-term disability plan 
applicable to the Participant.  

(e)  “Employed by, or provide service to, the Company” shall mean employment or service as an Employee or a Non-
Employee Director (so that, for purposes of satisfying conditions with respect to Grants, a Participant shall not be considered to 
have terminated employment or service until the Participant ceases to be an Employee and Non-Employee Director).  

(f)  “Retirement” means an Employee’s retirement under the Retirement Income Plan for Employees of UGI Utilities, Inc., 
for Employees covered by that Retirement Income Plan. “Retirement” for other Company Employees means termination of 
employment after attaining age 55 with ten or more years of service with the Company.  

(g)  “Severance Plan” means any severance plan maintained by the Company that is applicable to the Employee.  

   

1  
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(h)  “Termination without Cause” means termination of employment for the convenience of the Company for any reason 
other than (i) misappropriation of funds, (ii) habitual insobriety or substance abuse, (iii) conviction of a crime involving moral 
turpitude, or (iv) gross negligence in the performance of duties, which gross negligence has had a material adverse effect on the 
business, operations, assets, properties or financial condition of the Company. The Committee may determine in its sole 
discretion whether, and under what circumstances, a Participant’s voluntary termination upon a significant reduction in the 
Participant’s duties and responsibilities will constitute a Termination without Cause for purposes of the Plan.  

(i)  “Utilities” means UGI Utilities, Inc.  

2. Options  

(a)  Grant of Options . The Committee will select the Employees who shall receive Options, and will determine the number 
of shares subject to each Option, the Option Price and the other terms of the Options. The terms of each Option shall be set forth 
in the Grant Letter. Unless the Committee determines otherwise, no Dividend Equivalents will be granted with respect to 
Options.  

(b)  Exercise and Vesting .  

(i) Except as otherwise specified by the Committee in the Grant Letter, each Option shall become exercisable in equal 
one-third installments on the first, second and third anniversaries of the Date of Grant. The Committee may accelerate the 
exercisability of any or all outstanding Options at any time for any reason. No Option will be exercisable on or after the tenth 
anniversary of the Date of Grant.  

(ii) Except as otherwise specified by the Committee, in the event that a Participant holding an Option ceases to be 
employed by, or provide service to, the Company, the Options held by such Participant will terminate on the date such 
Participant ceases such employment or service. However, if a Participant holding an Option ceases to be employed by, or provide 
service to, the Company by reason of (i) Termination without Cause, (ii) Retirement, (iii) Disability, or (iv) death, the Option 
held by the Participant will thereafter be exercisable pursuant to the following:  

(A)  Termination Without Cause . If a Participant terminates employment or service on account of a Termination 
without Cause, the Option held by such Participant will thereafter be exercisable only with respect to that number of shares of 
Stock with respect to which the Option is already exercisable on the date such Participant’s employment or service terminates. 
Such Option will terminate upon the earlier of the expiration date of the Option or the expiration of the 13-month period 
commencing on the date the Participant ceases to be employed by, or provide service to, the Company.  

(B)  Retirement . If a Participant ceases to be employed by, or provide service to, the Company on account of 
Retirement, the Option held by such Participant will thereafter become exercisable as if such Participant had continued to 
provide service to the Company for 36 months after the date of such Retirement. Such Option will terminate upon the earlier of 
the expiration date of the Option or the expiration of such 36-month period.  
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(C)  Disability . If a Participant ceases to be employed by, or provide service to, the Company by reason of 
Disability, the Option held by such Participant will thereafter become exercisable as if such Participant had continued to provide 
service to the Company for 36 months after the date of such termination of employment or service. The Option will terminate 
upon the earlier of the expiration date of the Option or the expiration of such 36-month period.  

(D)  Death . In the event of the death of a Participant while employed by, or providing service to, the Company, 
the Option held by such Participant will be fully and immediately exercisable and may be exercised at any time prior to the 
earlier of the expiration date of the Option or the expiration of the 12-month period following the Participant’s death. Death of a 
Participant after the Participant has ceased to be employed by, or provide service to, the Company will not affect the otherwise 
applicable period for vesting and exercise of the Option determined pursuant to subsections (A), (B) or (C) above. After a 
Participant’s death, the Participant’s Option may be exercised by the Participant’s estate.  

(c)  Payment . An Option may be exercised, and the Option Price paid, in any method permitted by the Plan.  

(d)  Change of Control. All outstanding Options shall become fully vested upon a Change of Control.  

3. Performance Units  

(a)  Grant of Performance Units . The Committee will select the Employees who will receive Performance Units and will 
determine the number of shares subject to Performance Units and the terms of the Performance Units. Unless the Committee 
determines otherwise, Dividend Equivalents will be granted with respect to Performance Units. The Committee shall specify in 
the Grant Letter for Performance Units the terms and conditions of the Performance Units and the applicable restrictions and 
performance goals, including the objective goals, employment requirements, period during which the Performance Units shall be 
subject to restrictions and other conditions of the Grant.  

(b)  Terms . The Committee will establish performance goals and terms for Performance Units in accordance with 
Section 13 of the Plan. The Committee will establish appropriate threshold, Target Amount and maximum payments to be made 
with respect to the Performance Units.  

   

3  

WPD-6  
Screening Data 
Page 2057 of 2401



   

(c)  Requirements of Employment or Service . If the Participant ceases to be employed by, or provide service to, the 
Company during the applicable period specified in the Grant Letter, all of the Participant’s the Performance Units will terminate. 
However, if a Participant holding Performance Units ceases to be employed by, or provide service to, the Company by reason of 
Retirement, Disability, or death, the restrictions on Performance Units held by the Participant will lapse pursuant to the 
following:  

(i) If a Participant terminates employment or service on account of Retirement, Disability or death, the restrictions on a 
pro-rata portion of the Participant’s outstanding Performance Units will lapse at the end of the restriction period set forth in the 
Grant Letter, if the performance goals and all requirements of the Grant Letter (other than continued employment) are met. The 
prorated portion will be determined, for each Performance Unit, as the amount that would otherwise be paid according to the 
terms of the Performance Unit, based on achievement of the performance goals, multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which 
is the number of years during the restriction period in which the Participant has been employed by, or provided service to, the 
Company and the denominator of which is the number of years in the entire restriction period applicable to such Performance 
Units. For purposes of the proration calculation, the year in which the Participant’s Retirement, Disability, or death occurs will 
be counted as a full year.  

(ii) In the event of Retirement, Disability or death, the prorated portion of the Performance Units shall be paid at the 
date specified for payment of the Performance Units in the Grant Letter, or at an earlier date determined by the Committee in the 
Grant Letter.  

(d)  Payment of Performance Units. If the Committee determines that the conditions to payment of the Performance Units 
have been met, the Company shall pay to the Participant, within 2 1 / 2 months after the end of the restriction period, (i) shares of 
Stock or cash, or a combination of the two, as the Committee determines, equal to the amount to be paid according to 
achievement of the performance goals, up to the target award specified in the Participant’s Grant Letter and (ii) cash in an 
amount equal to the Fair Market Value of the shares of Stock underlying the Performance Units for any amounts payable in 
excess of the target amount specified by the Committee for the Performance Units.  

(e)  Coordination with Severance Plan . Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Terms and Conditions, if a 
Participant receives severance benefits under a Severance Plan, the terms of which require that severance compensation payable 
under the Severance Plan be reduced by benefits payable under this Plan, any amount payable to the Participant under 
Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents after the Participant’s termination of employment shall be reduced by the amount 
of severance compensation paid to the Participant under the Severance Plan, as required by, and according to the terms of, the 
Severance Plan.  

(f)  Dividend Equivalents with Respect to Performance Units . Dividend Equivalents, if granted, shall accrue with respect to 
Performance Units and shall be payable subject to the same performance goals and terms as the Performance Units to which they 
relate. Dividend Equivalents shall be credited with respect to Performance Units from the Date of Grant until the date on which 
the Performance Units are paid. If and to the extent that the underlying Performance Units are forfeited, all related Dividend 
Equivalents shall also be forfeited.  

(g)  Accounts. While Performance Units are outstanding, the Company will keep records in an Account for each Participant 
who holds Performance Units. On each payment date for a dividend paid by UGI on its Stock, the Company shall credit to the 
Participant’s Account an amount equal to the Dividend Equivalents associated with the Performance Units held by the 
Participant on the record date for the dividend. No interest will be credited to any such Account. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
a Participant may not accrue Dividend Equivalents in excess of $750,000 during any calendar year.  
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(h)  Payment of Dividend Equivalents. Dividend Equivalents will be paid after the performance goals and other 
requirements specified in the Grant Letter have been met, at the same time as the underlying Performance Units are paid or as 
otherwise determined by the Committee. Dividend Equivalents will be paid in cash, Stock or a combination of the two, as the 
Committee determines.  

(i)  Change of Control. Upon a Change of Control, all outstanding Performance Units and Dividend Equivalents shall be 
paid in cash in an amount equal to the greater of (i) the target amount or (ii) the amount earned as of the date of the Change of 
Control based on the Company’s achievement of the performance goals as of the Change of Control, as determined by the 
Committee. If a former Participant is entitled to receive a prorated award for the restriction period pursuant to Section 3(c) 
above, the award will be the prorated portion of the amount described in the preceding sentence. The Performance Units and 
Dividend Equivalents shall be paid on the closing date of the Change of Control.  

4. Stock Units  

(a)  Grants of Stock Units . The Committee will select the Employees who will receive Stock Units and will determine the 
number of shares subject to Stock Units and the terms of the Stock Units. Unless the Committee determines otherwise, Dividend 
Equivalents will be granted with respect to Stock Units. The Committee shall specify in the Participant’s Grant Letter the terms 
and conditions of the Stock Units and the applicable restrictions, including the period during which the Stock Units will be 
subject to vesting requirements, if any, and other conditions of the Grant.  

(b)  Vesting of Stock Units . Stock Units will vest on such terms as the Committee determines and specifies in the Grant 
Letter. If the Participant ceases to be employed by, or provide service to the Company, any unvested Stock Units will 
immediately terminate, except as provided below. The Committee may authorize payment of Stock Units on a prorated or other 
basis in such circumstances as the Committee deems appropriate, including in the event that a Participant ceases to be employed 
by, or provide service to, the Company, on account of Retirement, Disability or death.  

(c)  Payment of Stock Units. A Participant will receive payment with respect to Stock Units as the Stock Units vest, within 
30 business days after the vesting date. Payment shall be made in Stock, in cash or in a combination of the two, as determined by 
the Committee.  

(d)  Coordination with Severance Plan . Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Terms and Conditions, if a 
Participant receives severance benefits under a Severance Plan, the terms of which require that severance compensation payable 
under the Severance Plan be reduced by benefits payable under this Plan, any amount payable to the Participant under Stock 
Units and Dividend Equivalents after the Participant’s termination of employment shall be reduced by the amount of severance 
compensation paid to the Participant under the Severance Plan, as required by, and according to the terms of, the Severance Plan, 
if permitted by section 409A of the Code.  
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(e)  Dividend Equivalents with Respect to Stock Units . Dividend Equivalents, if granted, shall accrue with respect to Stock 
Units and shall be payable subject to the same terms as the Stock Units to which they relate. Dividend Equivalents shall be 
credited with respect to Stock Units from the Date of Grant until the date on which the Stock Units are paid. If the underlying 
Stock Units are forfeited, all related Dividend Equivalents shall also be forfeited.  

(f)  Accounts. While Stock Units are outstanding, the Company will keep records in an Account for each Participant who 
holds Stock Units. On each payment date for a dividend paid by UGI on its Stock, the Company shall credit to the Participant’s 
Account an amount equal to the Dividend Equivalents associated with the Stock Units held by the Participant on the record date 
for the dividend. No interest will be credited to any such Account. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Participant may not accrue 
Dividend Equivalents in excess of $750,000 during any calendar year.  

(g)  Payment of Dividend Equivalents. Dividend Equivalents will be paid after the vesting and other requirements specified 
in the Grant Letter have been met, at the same time as the underlying Stock Units are paid or as otherwise determined by the 
Committee. Dividend Equivalents will be paid in cash, Stock or a combination of the two, as the Committee determines.  

(h)  Change of Control. All outstanding Stock Units shall become fully vested upon a Change of Control and shall be paid 
in cash on the closing date of the Change of Control. All Dividend Equivalents shall become fully vested and paid when the 
underlying Stock Units are paid. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Stock Units are subject to section 409A of the Code, the 
Stock Units shall be paid upon a Change of Control only if the transaction constituting a Change of Control is also a change in 
control event under section 409A of the Code (“409A Change in Control Event”). If the transaction constituting a Change of 
Control does not constitute a 409A Change in Control Event, the outstanding Stock Units will vest upon the Change of Control, 
and any outstanding Stock Units that are subject to section 409A will be paid in cash (based on the value of the Stock Units on 
the payment date as determined by the Committee) within 30 days after the first to occur of (i) the vesting date set forth in the 
Participant’s Grant Letter or (ii) the Participant’s termination of employment or service (subject to the section 409A six-month 
delay, if applicable). If payment is delayed after the Change of Control, the Committee may provide for the Stock Units to be 
valued as of the date of the Change of Control and interest to be credited on the amount so determined at a market rate for the 
period between the Change of Control date and the payment date.  

5. Reduction of Responsibilities  

The Committee shall have discretion to adjust a Participant’s Options that are not yet exercisable and a Participant’s 
outstanding Performance Units and Stock Units, if the Participant’s authority, duties or responsibilities are significantly reduced.  
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6. Change of Control  

(a)  Authorization. In the event of a Change of Control, the provisions of Sections 2(d), 3(i) and 4(h) above shall apply to 
Options, Performance Units and Stock Units, and the Committee may take such other actions with respect to outstanding Options 
as it deems appropriate pursuant to the Plan. The term “Change of Control” shall mean a Change of Control of UGI, as defined 
in the Plan, except as provided below.  

(b)  AmeriGas Employees . For Participants who are employees of AmeriGas, or a subsidiary of AmeriGas, the term 
“Change of Control” shall mean (i) a Change of Control of UGI, as defined in the Plan, or (ii) one of the events set forth in 
Exhibit A with respect to AmeriGas.  

(c)  Utilities Employees . For Participants who are employees of Utilities or a subsidiary of Utilities, the term “Change of 
Control” shall mean (i) a Change of Control of UGI as defined in the Plan, or (ii) one of the events set forth on Exhibit B with 
respect to Utilities.  

(d)  Other Subsidiaries . The Committee may determine in a Grant Letter that a sale or other transaction with respect to any 
other Company subsidiary shall be considered a Change of Control for purposes of the Plan, for Participants who are employees 
of that subsidiary.  

7.  French Employees . The terms of the Sub-Plan for French Employees shall apply to the grant of Options to Employees who 
are, or may become, subject to taxation on compensation in France.  

8.  Section 409A . Performance Units, Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents shall meet the requirements of section 409A of the 
Code or an exemption from such requirements.  
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UGI Corporation  
2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan  

Stock Options and Stock Units For Non-Employee Directors  

Terms and Conditions  

The following Terms and Conditions shall be used for purposes of administering Options and Stock Units granted to Non-
Employee Directors under the Plan. The Terms and Conditions are being amended and restated to allow Non-Employee 
Directors to defer their Stock Units to the UGI Corporation 2009 Deferral Plan, effective as of January 1, 2009. The Committee 
has discretion to modify or deviate from the Terms and Conditions at any time. The defined terms shall have the meanings given 
those terms in the Plan or in these Terms and Conditions, if not defined in the Plan.  

1. Definitions  

Whenever used in these Terms and Conditions for Non-Employee Directors, the following terms will have the meanings set 
forth below:  

(a) “ Account ” means the Company’s record established pursuant to Section 3, which reflects the number of Stock Units 
and the amount of Dividend Equivalents standing to the credit of a Participant under the Plan.  

(b)  “Beneficiary” means the person designated by a Non-Employee Director to receive any benefits payable after the Non-
Employee Director’s death. The Company shall provide a form for this purpose. In the event a Non-Employee Director has not 
filed a Beneficiary designation with the Company or none of the designated Beneficiaries are living at the date of the Non-
Employee Director’s death, the Beneficiary shall be the Non-Employee Director’s estate.  

(c)  “Committee” means, for purposes of Grants to Non-Employee Directors, the Board or its delegate.  

(d)  “Deferral Plan” means the UGI Corporation 2009 Deferral Plan.  

(e) “ Plan Year ” means the calendar year.  

(f)  “Retirement” means a Non-Employee Director’s Separation from Service after (1) attaining age 65 with five or more 
years of service with the Company, or (2) ten or more years of service with the Company.  

(g) “ Separates from Service ” means the Non-Employee Director’s termination of service as a Non-Employee Director and 
as an Employee of the Company for any reason other than death.  
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(h) “ Unit Value ” means, at any time, the value of each Unit issued under the Plan, which value shall be equal to the Fair 
Market Value of a share of Stock on such date.  

2. Options  

(a)  Grant of Options . The Board shall grant Options annually to Non-Employee Directors in the amounts set forth on the 
attached Exhibit C, on the fifth business day of each Plan Year. The Option Price will equal the Fair Market Value on the Date of 
Grant.  

(b)  Exercise and Vesting . Except as otherwise specified in the Grant Letter, an Option will be fully and immediately 
exercisable on the Date of Grant. In the event that any Options are not by their terms immediately exercisable, the Committee 
may accelerate the exercisability of any or all outstanding Options at any time for any reason. No Option will be exercisable on 
or after the tenth anniversary of the Date of Grant.  

(c)  Separation from Service . Except as otherwise specified by the Committee, each Option, to the extent that it has not 
previously been exercised, will terminate when the Participant holding such Option Separates from Service. However, if a 
Participant holding an Option Separates from Service by reason of retirement, disability, or death, the Option held by any such 
Participant will be fully and immediately exercisable and will thereafter be exercisable pursuant to the following:  

(1)  Retirement . If a Participant Separates from Service on account of Retirement, the Option held by such 
Participant may be exercised at any time prior to the earlier of the expiration date of the Option or the expiration of the 36-month 
period following the Participant’s Retirement.  

(2)  Disability . The Committee shall have sole discretion to determine whether or not a Participant is “disabled.” 
If a Participant is determined to be “disabled” by the Committee, the Option held by such Participant may be exercised at any 
time prior to the earlier of the expiration date of the Option or the expiration of the 36-month period following the Participant’s 
Separation from Service on account of disability.  

(3)  Death . In the event of the death of a Participant while serving as a Non-Employee Director or Employee of 
the Company, the Option held by such Participant may be exercised at any time prior to the earlier of the expiration date of the 
Option or the expiration of the 12-month period following the Participant’s death. Such Option may be exercised by the 
Participant’s estate.  

(d)  Payment . An Option may be exercised, and the Option Price paid, in any method permitted by the Plan.  
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3. Award of Stock Units  

(a)  Annual Award of Stock Units . On the fifth business day of each Plan Year, each Non-Employee Director shall receive 
an award of Stock Units in the amount set forth on the attached Exhibit C. Such Stock Units shall be credited to each 
Participant’s Account as specified in Section 3(c) below. Any Non-Employee Director who becomes a Non-Employee Director 
after the fifth business day of the Plan Year shall receive, on the date such individual becomes a Non-Employee Director, a pro-
rata share of the annual award of Stock Units determined based on the number of calendar quarters during the Plan Year that he 
or she is expected to serve as a Non-Employee Director. A Non-Employee Director will be deemed to serve for the entire quarter 
if he or she is a Non-Employee Director on at least one day of the quarter.  

(b)  Dividend Equivalents  

(i)  Dividend Equivalent to be Credited. From the Date of Grant of each Stock Unit until the Participant’s Account has 
been fully distributed, on each payment date for a dividend paid by UGI on its Stock, the Company shall credit to each 
Participant’s Account an amount equal to the Dividend Equivalent associated with the Stock Units held by the Participant on the 
record date for the dividend.  

(ii)  Conversion to Stock Units. On the last day of each Plan Year, the amount of the Dividend Equivalents credited to 
the Participant’s Account during that Plan Year shall be converted to a number of Stock Units, based on the Unit Value on the 
last day of the Plan Year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of a Change of Control or in the event the Non-Employee 
Director dies or Separates from Service prior to the last day of the Plan Year, as soon as practicable following such event and in 
no event later than the date on which Stock Units are redeemed in accordance with Section 4, the Company shall convert the 
amount of the Dividend Equivalents credited to the Participant’s Account as of the date of the Change of Control, death or 
Separation from Service (the “Conversion Date”) to a number of Stock Units based on the Unit Value on the Conversion Date.  

(c)  Accounts. The Company shall keep records to reflect the number of Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents credited to 
each Non-Employee Director hereunder. Fractional Stock Units shall accumulate in the Participant’s Account and shall be added 
to fractional Stock Units held in such Account to create whole Stock Units.  

(d)  Directors’ Equity Compensation Plan . On and after the Effective Date, Dividend Equivalents shall be credited and 
paid on all Stock Units that are outstanding under the Directors’ Equity Plan on the Effective Date, on the same terms as 
described in this Section 3 and Section 4 below. All Units outstanding under the Directors’ Equity Plan on the Effective Date, 
including accrued Dividend Equivalents, shall be paid according to Section 4 below.  

4. Events Requiring Redemption of Stock Units  

The Company shall redeem Stock Units credited to a Participant’s Account only at the times and in the manner prescribed 
by the terms of this Section 4  

(a)  Death. In the event a Participant dies, the Company shall redeem all of the Stock Units then credited to the Participant’s 
Account as of the date of the Participant’s death, based on the Unit Value of the Stock Units credited to the Participants’ Account 
as of the date of the Participant’s death. An amount equal to 65% of the aggregate Unit Value will be paid in the form of whole 
Shares (with fractional Shares paid in cash), and the remaining 35% of the aggregate Unit Value will be paid in cash. The 
redemption amount shall be paid to the Participant’s estate within 60 business days after the Participant’s death.  
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(b)  Separation from Service. In the event a Participant Separates from Service, the Company shall redeem all of the Stock 
Units then credited to the Participant’s Account as of the date of such Separation from Service, based on the Unit Value of the 
Stock Units credited to the Participant’s Account as of the date of the Participant’s Separation from Service. An amount equal to 
65% of the aggregate Unit Value will be paid in the form of whole Shares (with fractional Shares paid in cash), and the 
remaining 35% of the aggregate Unit Value will be paid in cash, within 30 business days after the date of the Participant’s 
Separation from Service.  

(c)  Change of Control. In the event of a Change of Control, the Company shall redeem all the Stock Units then credited to 
the Participant’s Account. The redemption amount shall be paid in cash on the closing date of the Change of Control (except as 
described below). The amount paid shall equal the product of the number of Stock Units being redeemed multiplied by the Unit 
Value at the date of the Change of Control. However, in the event that the transaction constituting a Change of Control is not a 
change in control event under section 409A of the Code, the Participant’s Stock Units shall be redeemed and paid in cash upon 
Separation from Service or death on the applicable date described in subsection (a) or (b) above (based on the aggregate Unit 
Value on the date of Separation from Service or death as determined by the Committee), instead of upon the Change of Control 
pursuant to this subsection (c). If payment is delayed after the Change of Control, pursuant to the preceding sentence, the 
Committee may provide for the Stock Units to be valued as of the date of the Change of Control and interest to be credited on the 
amount so determined at a market rate for the period between the Change of Control date and the payment date.  

(d)  Effect on Outstanding Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents. The provisions of this Section 4 relating to the medium of 
payment ( i.e. , payment in cash or in a combination of cash and Shares) shall apply to all outstanding Stock Units and Dividend 
Equivalents.  

(e)  Section 409A. Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents shall meet the requirements of section 409A of the Internal 
Revenue Code or an exemption from such requirements. All Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents that were earned and vested 
as of December 31, 2004 shall be administered in accordance with their terms as in effect on October 3, 2004, except for changes 
that are not considered “material modifications” under the regulations issued under section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code.  

(f)  Deferral Elections . Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Non-Employee Director may make a one-time, irrevocable 
election to elect to have all of the Non-Employee Director’s Stock Units credited to the Non-Employee Director’s account under 
the Deferral Plan on the date of the Non-Employee Director’s Separation from Service, in lieu of the redemption and payments 
described in subsections (a), (b) and (c). If the Non-Employee Director makes a deferral election, the Non-Employee Director’s 
Stock Units will be credited to the Non-Employee Director’s account under the Deferral Plan at Separation from Service and the 
amount credited to the Deferral Plan shall be distributed in accordance with the provisions of the Deferral Plan. If the Non-
Employee Director makes a deferral election and a Change of Control occurs: (i) subsection (c) above shall apply if the Change 
of Control occurs before the Non-Employee Director’s Separation from Service and (ii) the terms of the Deferral Plan shall apply 
if the Change of Control occurs after or simultaneously with the Non-Employee Director’s Separation from Service. An election 
under this subsection (f) shall be made in writing, on a form and at a time prescribed by the Committee and shall be irrevocable 
upon submission to the Corporate Secretary.  
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Exhibit A  

Change of Control with Respect to AmeriGas  

For Participants who are employees of AmeriGas, or a subsidiary of AmeriGas, the term “Change of Control” shall include the 
events set forth in this Exhibit A with respect to AmeriGas, and the defined terms used in this Exhibit A shall have the following 
meanings:  

1. “Change of Control” shall include any of the following events:  

(A) Completion by AmeriGas, the Public Partnership or the Operating Partnership of a reorganization, merger or 
consolidation (a “Propane Business Combination”), in each case, with respect to which all or substantially all of the individuals 
and entities who were the respective Beneficial Owners of the AmeriGas voting securities or of the outstanding units of 
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. (“Outstanding Units”) immediately prior to such Propane Business Combination do not, following such 
Propane Business Combination, Beneficially Own, directly or indirectly, (a) if the entity resulting from such Propane Business 
Combination is a corporation, more than fifty percent (50%) of, respectively, the then outstanding shares of common stock and 
the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, as the 
case may be, of such corporation in substantially the same proportion as their ownership immediately prior to such Combination 
of the AmeriGas’ voting securities or the Outstanding Units, as the case may be, or, (b) if the entity resulting from such Propane 
Business Combination is a partnership, more than fifty percent (50%) of the then outstanding common units of such partnership 
in substantially the same proportion as their ownership immediately prior to such Propane Business Combination of AmeriGas’ 
voting securities or the Outstanding Units, as the case may be; or  

(B) (a) Completion of a complete liquidation or dissolution of AmeriGas, the Public Partnership or the Operating 
Partnership or (b) sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of AmeriGas, the Public Partnership or the 
Operating Partnership other than to an entity with respect to which, following such sale or disposition, (I) if such entity is a 
corporation, more than fifty percent (50%) of, respectively, the then outstanding shares of common stock and the combined 
voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors is then owned 
beneficially, directly or indirectly, by all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the Beneficial Owners, 
respectively, of AmeriGas’ voting securities or of the Outstanding Units, as the case may be, immediately prior to such sale or 
disposition in substantially the same proportion as their ownership of AmeriGas’ voting securities or of the Outstanding Units, as 
the case may be, immediately prior to such sale or disposition, or, (II) if such entity is a partnership, more than fifty percent 
(50%) of the then outstanding common units is then owned beneficially, directly or indirectly, by all or substantially all of the 
individuals and entities who were the Beneficial Owners, respectively, of AmeriGas’ voting securities or of the Outstanding 
Units, as the case may be, immediately prior to such sale or disposition in substantially the same proportion as their ownership of 
AmeriGas’ voting securities or of the Outstanding Units immediately prior to such sale or disposition; or  
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(C) UGI and the UGI Subsidiaries fail to own more than fifty percent (50%) of the then outstanding general 
partnership interests of the Public Partnership or the Operating Partnership; or  

(D) UGI and the UGI Subsidiaries fail to own more than fifty percent (50%) of the then outstanding shares of 
common stock of AmeriGas or more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting 
securities of AmeriGas entitled to vote generally in the election of directors; or  

(E) AmeriGas is removed as the general partner of the Public Partnership by vote of the limited partners of the 
Public Partnership, or is removed as the general partner of the Public Partnership or the Operating Partnership as a result of 
judicial or administrative proceedings involving AmeriGas, the Public Partnership or the Operating Partnership.  

2. “Affiliate” and “Associate” shall have the respective meanings ascribed to such terms in Rule 12b-2 of the General Rules and 
Regulations under the Exchange Act.  

3. A Person shall be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of any securities: (i) that such Person or any of such Person’s Affiliates or 
Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to acquire (whether such right is exercisable immediately or only after the passage 
of time) pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not in writing) or upon the exercise of conversion 
rights, exchange rights, rights, warrants or options, or otherwise; provided , however , that a person shall not be deemed the 
“Beneficial Owner” of securities tendered pursuant to a tender or exchange offer made by such Person or any of such person’s 
Affiliates or Associates until such tendered securities are accepted for payment, purchase or exchange; (ii) that such Person or 
any of such Person’s Affiliates or Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to vote or dispose of or has “beneficial 
ownership” of (as determined pursuant to Rule 13d-3 of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act), including 
without limitation pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding, whether or not in writing; provided , however , that 
a Person shall not be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of any security under this clause (ii) as a result of an oral or written 
agreement, arrangement or understanding to vote such security if such agreement, arrangement or understanding (A) arises solely 
from a revocable proxy given in response to a public proxy or consent solicitation made pursuant to, and in accordance with, the 
applicable provisions of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act, and (B) is not then reportable by such 
Person on Schedule 13D under the Exchange Act (or any comparable or successor report); or (iii) that are beneficially owned, 
directly or indirectly, by any other Person (or any Affiliate or Associate thereof) with which such Person (or any of such Person’s 
Affiliates or Associates) has any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not in writing) for the purpose of 
acquiring, holding, voting (except pursuant to a revocable proxy as described in the proviso to clause (ii) above) or disposing of 
any securities; provided , however , that nothing in this Section 1(c) shall cause a Person engaged in business as an underwriter 
of securities to be the “Beneficial Owner” of any securities acquired through such Person’s participation in good faith in a firm 
commitment underwriting until the expiration of forty (40) days after the date of such acquisition.  
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4. “Exchange Act” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  

5. “Operating Partnership” shall mean AmeriGas Propane, L.P.  

6. “Public Partnership” shall mean AmeriGas Partners, L.P.  

7. “Person” shall mean an individual or a corporation, partnership, trust, unincorporated organization, association, or other entity. 

8. “UGI Subsidiary” shall mean any corporation in which UGI directly or indirectly, owns at least a fifty percent (50%) interest 
or an unincorporated entity of which UGI, as applicable, directly or indirectly, owns at least fifty percent (50%) of the profits or 
capital interests.  
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Exhibit B  

Change of Control with Respect to Utilities  

For Participants who are employees of Utilities, or a subsidiary of Utilities, the term “Change of Control” shall include the events 
set forth in this Exhibit B with respect to Utilities, and the defined terms set forth used in this Exhibit B, if not defined in the 
Plan, shall have the following meanings:  

1. “Change of Control” shall include any of the following events:  

(A) UGI and the UGI Subsidiaries fail to own more than fifty percent (50%) of the then outstanding shares of 
common stock of Utilities or more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting 
securities of Utilities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors; or  

(B) Completion by Utilities of a reorganization, merger or consolidation (a “Business Combination”), in each 
case, with respect to which all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the respective Beneficial Owners of 
Utilities’ outstanding common stock and voting securities immediately prior to such Business Combination do not, following 
such Business Combination, Beneficially Own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of, respectively, the then outstanding shares 
of common stock and the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the 
election of directors, as the case may be, of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination in substantially the same 
proportion as their ownership immediately prior to such Business Combination of Utilities’ outstanding common stock and 
voting securities, as the case may be; or  

(C) Completion of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Utilities or sale or other disposition of all or 
substantially all of the assets of Utilities other than to a corporation with respect to which, following such sale or disposition, 
more than 50% of, respectively, the then outstanding shares of common stock and the combined voting power of the then 
outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors is then owned beneficially, directly or 
indirectly, by all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the Beneficial Owners, respectively, of Utilities’ 
outstanding common stock and voting securities immediately prior to such sale or disposition in substantially the same 
proportion as their ownership of Utilities’ outstanding common stock and voting securities, as the case may be, immediately 
prior to such sale or disposition.  

2. “Affiliate” and “Associate” shall have the respective meanings ascribed to such terms in Rule 12b-2 of the General Rules and 
Regulations under the Exchange Act.  
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3. A Person shall be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of any securities: (i) that such Person or any of such Person’s Affiliates or 
Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to acquire (whether such right is exercisable immediately or only after the passage 
of time) pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not in writing) or upon the exercise of conversion 
rights, exchange rights, rights, warrants or options, or otherwise; provided , however , that a person shall not be deemed the 
“Beneficial Owner” of securities tendered pursuant to a tender or exchange offer made by such Person or any of such person’s 
Affiliates or Associates until such tendered securities are accepted for payment, purchase or exchange; (ii) that such Person or 
any of such Person’s Affiliates or Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to vote or dispose of or has “beneficial 
ownership” of (as determined pursuant to Rule 13d-3 of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act), including 
without limitation pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding, whether or not in writing; provided , however , that 
a Person shall not be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of any security under this clause (ii) as a result of an oral or written 
agreement, arrangement or understanding to vote such security if such agreement, arrangement or understanding (A) arises solely 
from a revocable proxy given in response to a public proxy or consent solicitation made pursuant to, and in accordance with, the 
applicable provisions of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act, and (B) is not then reportable by such 
Person on Schedule 13D under the Exchange Act (or any comparable or successor report); or (iii) that are beneficially owned, 
directly or indirectly, by any other Person (or any Affiliate or Associate thereof) with which such Person (or any of such Person’s 
Affiliates or Associates) has any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not in writing) for the purpose of 
acquiring, holding, voting (except pursuant to a revocable proxy as described in the proviso to clause (ii) above) or disposing of 
any securities; provided , however , that nothing in this Section 1(c) shall cause a Person engaged in business as an underwriter 
of securities to be the “Beneficial Owner” of any securities acquired through such Person’s participation in good faith in a firm 
commitment underwriting until the expiration of forty (40) days after the date of such acquisition.  

4. “Exchange Act” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  

5. “Person” shall mean an individual or a corporation, partnership, trust, unincorporated organization, association, or other entity. 

6. “UGI Subsidiary” shall mean any corporation in which UGI directly or indirectly, owns at least a fifty percent (50%) interest 
or an unincorporated entity of which UGI, as applicable, directly or indirectly, owns at least fifty percent (50%) of the profits or 
capital interests.  
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Exhibit C  

Non-Employee Director Grants  

Options :  

8,500 shares  
Grant Date: 5th business day of January  

Stock Units :  

2,550 units  
Grant Date: 5th business day of January  
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Exhibit 10.5 

UGI CORPORATION AMENDED AND RESTATED DIRECTORS’ DEF ERRED  
COMPENSATION PLAN  

(amended and restated as of January 1, 2005)  

For ease of reference, the following definitions will be used in the Plan:  

   

   

1.   Background and Purpose . 

  1.1   The Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan (the “Plan”) was adopted effective as of June 20, 1984. The Plan was 
adopted and, until April 10, 1992, maintained by UGI Utilities, Inc., which prior to April 10, 1992 was known as UGI 
Corporation (“UGI Utilities”). On April 10, 1992, UGI Utilities became a subsidiary of New UGI Corporation which 
was renamed, as of such date, UGI Corporation. As of April 10, 1992 UGI Corporation assumed sponsorship of the 
Plan and all obligations of UGI Utilities hereunder. In connection with the transfer of Plan sponsorship, pursuant to the 
authority granted under Section 6.4, the Plan was amended and restated in its entirety effective as of April 10, 1992. 
Pursuant to the authority granted under Section 6.4, the Plan was amended and restated in its entirety effective as of 
January 1, 2000, to reflect certain changes approved by the Board of Directors on December 14, 1999. The Plan is now 
amended and restated effective as of January 1, 2005 to comply with section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. No 
future deferrals shall be permitted under the Plan after December 6, 2005. 

  1.2   The Plan is intended to enable each Director of the Company to defer the payment of all or a specified portion of the 
compensation otherwise payable in cash for services rendered as a Director of the Company, until the cessation of the 
Director’s services on the Board, the Director’s attainment of a specified age, or the Director’s death. 

2.   Definitions . 

  2.1   “Affiliate” and “Associate” shall have the respective meanings ascribed to such terms in Rule 12b-2 of the General 
Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act. 
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  2.2   “Beneficial Owner” means that a person shall be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of any securities: (i) that such person 
or any of such person’s Affiliates or Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to acquire (whether such right is 
exercisable immediately or only after the passage of time) pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding 
(whether or not in writing) or upon the exercise of conversion rights, exchange rights, rights, warrants, or options, or 
otherwise; provided, however, that a person shall not be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of securities tendered 
pursuant to a tender or exchange offer made by such person or any of such person’s Affiliates or Associates until such 
tendered securities are accepted for payment, purchase or exchange; (ii) that such person or any of such person’s 
Affiliates or Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to vote or dispose of or has “beneficial ownership” of (as 
determined pursuant to Rule 13d-3 of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act), including without 
limitation pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding, whether or not in writing; provided, however, 
that a person shall not be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of any security under this clause (ii) as a result of an oral or 
written agreement, arrangement or understanding to vote such security if such agreement, arrangement or 
understanding (A) arises solely from a revocable proxy given in response to a public proxy or consent solicitation 
made pursuant to, and in accordance with, the applicable provisions of the General Rules and Regulations under the 
Exchange Act, and (B) is not then reportable by such person on Schedule 13D under the Exchange Act (or any 
comparable or successor report); or (iii) that are beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by any other person (or any 
Affiliate or Associate thereof) with which such person (or any of such person’s Affiliates or Associates) has any 
agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not in writing) for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting 
(except pursuant to a revocable proxy as described in the proviso to clause (ii) above) or disposing of any voting 
securities of the Company; provided, however, that nothing in this section shall cause a person engaged in business as 
an underwriter of securities to be the “Beneficial Owner” of any securities acquired through such person’s 
participation in good faith in a firm commitment underwriting until the expiration of forty days after the date of such 
acquisition. 

  2.3   “Board of Directors”, “Board”, “Directors” or “Director” means, respectively, the Board of Directors, the Directors or 
a Director of the Company. 

  2.4   “Change of Control” of the Company means (i) any person (except the Director, his Affiliates and Associates, the 
Company, any subsidiary of the Company, any employee benefit plan of the Company or of any subsidiary of the 
Company, or any person or entity organized, appointed or established by the Company for or pursuant to the terms of 
any such employee benefit plan), together with all Affiliates and Associates of such person, becomes the Beneficial 
Owner in the aggregate of 20% or more of either (A) the then outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Company 
(the “Outstanding Company Common Stock”) or (B) the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting 
securities of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (the “Company Voting Securities”); or 
(ii) individuals who, as of the beginning of any twenty-four month period, constitute the Board (the “Incumbent 
Board”) cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Board, provided that any individual becoming a 
director subsequent to the beginning of such period whose election or nomination for election by the Company’s 
shareholders was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the Incumbent Board shall 
be considered as though such individual were a member of the Incumbent Board, but excluding, for this purpose, any 
such individual whose initial assumption of office is in connection with an actual or threatened election contest 
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      relating to the election of the Directors of the Company (as such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A 
promulgated under the Exchange Act); or (iii) consummation by the Company of a reorganization, merger or 
consolidation (a “Business Combination”), in each case, with respect to which all or substantially all of the individuals 
and entities who were the respective Beneficial Owners of the Outstanding Company Common Stock and Company 
Voting Securities immediately prior to such Business Combination do not, following such Business Combination, 
Beneficially Own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of, respectively, the then outstanding shares of Common 
Stock and the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election 
of directors, as the case may be, of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination in substantially the same 
proportion as their ownership immediately prior to such Business Combination of the Outstanding Company Common 
Stock and Company Voting Securities, as the case may be; or (iv) (A) Consummation of a complete liquidation or 
dissolution of the Company or (B) sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company 
other than to a corporation with respect to which, following such sale or disposition, more than 50% of, respectively, 
the then outstanding shares of Common Stock and the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities 
entitled to vote generally in the election of directors is then owned beneficially, directly or indirectly, by all or 
substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the Beneficial Owners, respectively, of the Outstanding 
Company Common Stock and Company Voting Securities immediately prior to such sale or disposition in 
substantially the same proportion as their ownership of the Outstanding Company Common Stock and Company 
Voting Securities, as the case may be, immediately prior to such sale or disposition. 

  2.5   “Code”  means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

  2.6   The “Committee” means the Compensation and Management Development Committee of the Board of Directors as 
constituted from time to time. 

  2.7   “Common Stock”  means the common stock of the Company. 

  2.8   The “Company” means, prior to April 10, 1992, UGI Utilities. From and after April 10, 1992, the term “Company” 
shall mean UGI Corporation, a Pennsylvania corporation (formerly named New UGI Corporation). 

  2.9   “Deferred Compensation Account” or “Accounts” means the separate account established under the Plan for each 
Participant, as described in Section 4.1. 

  2.10   “Exchange Act”  means Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

  2.11   “Notice” means a written notice given to the Secretary, pursuant to Section 3.2 or a form substantially in the form of 
Exhibit A attached hereto. 

  2.12   “Participant”  means each Director of the Company who participates in the Plan. 
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  2.13   The “Plan” means the UGI Corporation Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan as set forth herein, or as it may be 
amended from time to time by the Committee or Board of Directors. 

  2.14   “Plan Year”  means the calendar year. 

  2.15   The “Secretary” means the Secretary of the Company who will have responsibility for those functions assigned to the 
Secretary under the Plan. 

  2.16   “Unforeseeable Emergency” means an “unforeseeable emergency” within the meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(ii) of 
the Code and applicable regulations. 

3.   Participation . 

  3.1   Each Director is eligible to participate in the Plan except a Director who is also an employee of the company or any of 
its subsidiaries or affiliates. 

  3.2   Before December 6, 2005, the procedure to participate in the Plan is as follows: 

  (a)   A Director may elect to participate in the Plan by giving a written Notice to the Secretary (i) not later than 
30 days after first being elected to serve as a Director or, thereafter, (ii) by December 31 prior to the Plan Year 
for which the election to participate is to be effective. Such election will remain in effect until (i) the termination 
of the Participant’s services as a Director or (ii) the Participant’s further written Notice to the Secretary of the 
termination or the modification of such election. 

  (b)   An election to terminate or modify a prior election to defer compensation will be effective at the start of the Plan 
Year and must be made by the Participant prior to the Plan Year to which such compensation pertains. 

4.   Compensation Deferred . 

  4.1   Before December 6, 2005, a Participant may elect to defer the receipt of all or a specified portion of the compensation 
otherwise payable in cash for services rendered as a Director of the Company. Such compensation includes retainer 
fees for service on the Board and Board committees of the Company and fees for attendance at meetings of the Board 
and Board committees of the Company, but does not include travel expense allowances, other expense reimbursement, 
or non-cash compensation. No future deferrals shall be permitted under the Plan after December 6, 2005. 

  4.2   An unfunded Deferred Compensation Account will be established for each Participant and the compensation that the 
Participant elects to defer under the Plan will be credited to that Account. Each such credit will be made to the 
Account as of the last day of the month during which such compensation would have otherwise been payable to the 
Participant in cash. 
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  4.3   Compensation deferred under the Plan is assumed to earn interest at a market rate determined by the Committee for 
each year during the period in which compensation is deferred. Each Participant will be notified of this rate annually. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may at any time or from time to time change or otherwise modify the 
basis or the method for calculating and crediting such interest, provided that the change or modification does not 
adversely affect the balance of any Participant’s Account at the time of the change or modification. 

  4.4   Each Participant will receive a statement of the balance in the Participant’s Account at the end of each Plan Year as 
promptly as practicable thereafter. 

5.   Payment of Deferred Compensation . 

  5.1   Upon the termination of a Participant’s services as a Director, the balance in the Participant’s Account will be paid in 
accordance with the method and at the time or times elected by the Participant by the Notice in effect at the time each 
portion of the Participant’s compensation was deferred and credited to such Account. 

  5.2   In the event of a Change of Control of the Company, the Participant’s Account will be paid in cash as soon as 
practicable following the Change of Control, but in no event later than December 31 of the year in which the Change 
of Control occurs. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if payment of the Participant’s Account upon a Change of Control 
would violate the applicable requirements of section 409A of the Code, the Participant’s Account shall be paid upon 
the termination of the Participant’s service as a Director or death as described in Sections 5.1 and 5.4, instead of upon 
the Change of Control under this Section 5.2. 

  5.3   Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Plan, if the Committee determines, after consideration of a Participant’s 
application, that the Participant has an Unforeseeable Emergency, the Committee may, in its sole and absolute 
discretion, direct that all or a portion of the balance of the Participant’s Account be paid to the Participant. The 
payment will be made in the manner and at the time specified by the Committee. A Participant’s eligibility for a 
distribution under this Section 5.4 shall be determined by the Committee in accordance with the provisions of section 
409A of the Code. The amount distributed to a Participant shall not exceed the amount necessary to meet the 
Unforeseeable Emergency, including amounts necessary to pay any federal, state or local income taxes or penalties 
reasonably anticipated to result from the distribution. No Participant who is also a member of the Committee may in 
any way take part in any decision pertaining to a request for payment made by that Participant under this Section 5.4. 
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  5.4   In the event of a Participant’s death before the balance in the Participant’s Account is fully paid out, payment of such 
balance will be made to the beneficiary or beneficiaries designated by the Participant or, if the Participant has made no 
such designation or no beneficiary survives, to the Participant’s estate. In either case, such payment will be made in a 
lump sum payment; provided, that such lump sum payment must be made no later than January of the calendar year 
following the Participant’s death. 

  5.5   Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, all payments to be made under the Plan shall be consistent with 
section 409A of the Code. 

6.   General . 

  6.1   The right of any Participant, beneficiary or estate to receive payment of any unpaid balance in the Participant’s 
Account will be an unsecured claim against the general assets of the Company. 

  6.2   During a Participant’s lifetime, any payment under the Plan will be made only to the Participant. No sum or other 
interest under the Plan shall be subject in any manner to anticipation, alienation, sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, 
encumbrance or charge, and any attempt by a Participant or any beneficiary under the Plan to do so shall be void. No 
interest under the Plan shall in any manner be liable for or subject to the debts, contracts, liabilities, engagements or 
torts of a Participant or beneficiary entitled thereto. 

  6.3   Except as otherwise provided herein, the Plan will be administered by the Committee which will have the authority, 
subject to the express provisions of the Plan, to adopt, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to the Plan, 
and to interpret, construe and implement the provisions of the Plan. 

  6.4   The Plan may at any time or from time to time be amended, modified, or terminated by the Committee, provided that 
no amendment, modification or termination may (i) adversely affect the balance in a Participant’s Account without the 
Participant’s consent or (ii) permit payment of such balance prior to the date specified pursuant to Section 5.1 (except 
for payments provided for in Section 5.2, 5.3 or 5.4). 
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UGI CORPORATION  

SUPPLEMENTAL EXECUTIVE RETIREMENT PLAN AND  
SUPPLEMENTAL SAVINGS PLAN  

As amended and restated effective January 1, 2009  
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UGI CORPORATION  
SUPPLEMENTAL EXECUTIVE RETIREMENT PLAN  

BACKGROUND  

The Senior Executive Retirement Plan for Certain Employees of UGI Corporation and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates (the 
“Senior Plan”) was established effective as of January 1, 1985. Until April 10, 1992, it was maintained by UGI Utilities, Inc. 
(formerly named, prior to April 10, 1992, UGI Corporation and hereinafter sometimes referred to as “UGI Utilities”). On 
April 10, 1992, UGI Utilities became a subsidiary of New UGI Corporation which was renamed UGI Corporation (“UGI”) on 
the same date. As of April 10, 1992, UGI assumed sponsorship of the Senior Plan and all obligations of UGI Utilities thereunder, 
and amended and restated the Senior Plan to reflect the transfer of Senior Plan sponsorship. Effective October 1, 1996, the Senior 
Plan was amended and restated to eliminate participation by employees of AmeriGas Propane, Inc., to re-name the Senior Plan 
“The UGI Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan” and to make other changes. Effective January 1, 2005, the UGI 
Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan was amended to comply with section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code 
and was split into two subplans, the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and the Supplemental Savings Plan.  

The Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan is now being amended and restated to allow participants to defer their benefit 
under the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan pursuant to the UGI Corporation 2009 Deferral Plan. The amendment and 
restatement of the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan is effective as of January 1, 2009, except where otherwise indicated.  
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ARTICLE I  

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE  

Sec. 1.01 Purpose . The Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the “SERP”) is maintained to provide a fair and 
competitive level of retirement benefits to certain management and other highly compensated employees who have, by operation 
of laws and regulations relating to qualified pension benefit plans, experienced a reduction in prospective retirement benefits 
under the Pension Plan (as defined in Article II). The benefits under the SERP are also designed to compensate terminated 
participants by taking into account periods of time for which payments are made under a Change in Control Agreement (as 
defined in Article II) or, for employees whose employment terminated on or after January 1, 2005 and before July 25, 2006, 
under an Executive Severance Plan (as defined in Article II).  

Sec. 1.02 Grandfathered Benefits . The terms of the amended and restated SERP shall not apply to any participant 
whose employment terminated before January 1, 2005. Notwithstanding anything in the SERP to the contrary, the vested accrued 
SERP benefit of a participant whose employment terminated before January 1, 2005 shall be paid according to the terms of the 
UGI Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan as in effect before January 1, 2005, consistent with the “grandfather” 
provisions of section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  
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ARTICLE II  

DEFINITIONS  

Sec. 2.01 “Administrative Committee” shall mean the committee designated by the Compensation Committee to 
administer the SERP.  

Sec. 2.02 “Affiliate” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Rule 12b-2 of the General Rules and Regulations 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  

Sec. 2.03 “Beneficiary” means the person designated by a Participant to receive any benefits payable after the 
Participant’s death in the event of the Participant’s death after termination of employment with UGI and its subsidiaries and 
Affiliates. UGI shall provide a form for this purpose. In the event a Participant has not filed a Beneficiary designation with UGI 
or none of the designated Beneficiaries are living at the date of the Participant’s death, the Beneficiary shall be the Participant’s 
estate.  

Sec. 2.04 “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of UGI.  

Sec. 2.05 “Cause” shall mean misappropriation of funds, habitual insobriety, substance abuse, conviction of a crime 
involving moral turpitude, or gross negligence in the performance of duties, which gross negligence has had a material adverse 
effect on the business, operations, assets, properties or financial condition of UGI and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates, taken as a 
whole.  

Sec. 2.06 “Change of Control” shall have the meaning set forth on the attached Exhibit A.  

Sec. 2.07 “Change in Control Agreement” shall mean a Change in Control Agreement between an Employee and UGI 
or a Subsidiary (other than AmeriGas Propane, Inc. or its subsidiaries).  

Sec. 2.08 “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  

Sec. 2.09 “Compensation Committee” shall mean the Compensation and Management Development Committee of the 
Board.  

Sec. 2.10 “Continuation Period” shall mean, with respect to a Participant who is entitled to receive benefits under a 
Change in Control Agreement, the Continuation Period as defined in the Participant’s Change in Control Agreement.  

Sec. 2.11 “Credited Service” shall mean a year of Credited Service as determined under the Pension Plan.  

Sec. 2.12 “Deferral Plan” shall mean the UGI Corporation 2009 Deferral Plan.  

Sec. 2.13 “Deferred Earnings” shall mean, for years beginning prior to September 30, 2004, so much of an 
Employee’s compensation payable under the applicable Executive Annual Bonus Plan as would otherwise be taken into account 
under the Pension Plan, but which is not taken into account under the Pension Plan due to an election by the Employee to have 
such compensation deferred to and paid in a subsequent year.  
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Sec. 2.14 “Effective Date” of the amended and restated SERP shall mean January 1, 2009, except where otherwise 
indicated. The SERP is a continuation of the pension portion of the UGI Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, 
as in effect before January 1, 2005.  

Sec. 2.15 “Employee” shall mean an employee of UGI, UGI Utilities, Inc. or another Subsidiary other than AmeriGas 
Propane, Inc. or its subsidiaries. In no event shall a person who is characterized as an independent contractor by the employer, no 
matter how characterized by a court or government agency, be considered an “Employee,” and no retroactive characterization of 
an individual’s status for any other purpose shall make an individual an “Employee.”  

Sec. 2.16 “Employment Commencement Date” shall mean the first day on which a Participant became an employee of 
UGI, any Subsidiary or Affiliate of UGI, or any entity whose business or assets have been acquired by UGI, by a Subsidiary or 
Affiliate of UGI or by any predecessor of such entities.  

Sec. 2.17 “ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.  

Sec. 2.18 “Excess Earnings” shall mean that portion of an Employee’s compensation from UGI or another 
participating employer hereunder that is not permitted to be taken into account under the Pension Plan by operation of section 
401(a)(17) of the Code or any successor thereto, excluding any such compensation earned when the Employee was not a 
Participant.  

Sec. 2.19 “Executive Annual Bonus Plan” shall mean the UGI Corporation Executive Annual Bonus Plan or the UGI 
Utilities, Inc. Executive Annual Bonus Plan, as amended from time to time, and any successor plans (and for fiscal years through 
1996, the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Executive Annual Bonus Plan).  

Sec. 2.20 “Executive Severance Plan” shall mean an executive severance plan of UGI or a Subsidiary or Affiliate 
(other than AmeriGas Propane, Inc. or its subsidiaries).  

Sec. 2.21 “Key Employee” shall mean an employee who, at any time during the 12-month period ending on the 
identification date, is a “specified employee” under section 409A of the Code, as determined by the Compensation Committee or 
its delegate. The determination of Key Employees, including the number and identity of persons considered specified employees 
and the identification date, shall be made by the Compensation Committee or its delegate in accordance with the provisions of 
section 409A of the Code and the regulations issued thereunder.  
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Sec. 2.22 “Participant” shall mean each Employee who meets the requirements of Section 3.01 hereof.  

Sec. 2.23 “Pension Plan” shall mean the Retirement Income Plan for Employees of UGI Utilities, Inc., as currently in 
effect and as it may hereafter be amended, and any plan designated by the Board as a successor thereto.  

Sec. 2.24 “Pension Plan Earnings” shall mean so much of an Employee’s compensation from UGI or another 
participating employer hereunder as is taken into account in determining benefits or contributions under the Pension Plan for the 
relevant period.  

Sec. 2.25 “Plan Year” shall mean, effective January 1, 2007, a 12-month period beginning on January 1 and ending on 
December 31. For periods before January 1, 2007, the Plan Year shall mean a period beginning on October 1 and ending on the 
following September 30, with a short Plan Year for the period beginning on October 1, 2006 and ending on December 31, 2006.  

Sec. 2.26 “Postponement Period” shall mean, for a Key Employee, the period of six months after separation from 
service as defined by section 409A of the Code (or such other period as may be required by section 409A of the Code), during 
which SERP benefits may not be paid to the Key Employee under section 409A of the Code.  

Sec. 2.27 “SERP” shall mean the UGI Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan as set forth herein, and as 
the same may hereafter be amended.  

Sec. 2.28 “Subsidiary” shall mean any corporation in which UGI, directly or indirectly, owns at least a 50% interest or 
an unincorporated entity of which UGI, directly or indirectly, owns at least 50% of the profits or capital interests.  

Sec. 2.29 “UGI” shall mean UGI Corporation.  

Sec. 2.30 “Vesting Service” shall mean a year of Vesting Service as determined under the Pension Plan.  
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ARTICLE III  

PARTICIPATION  

Sec. 3.01 Participants .  

(a) An Employee who meets the requirements of subsection (b), (c) or (d) below shall become a Participant on 
the first day on which he or she meets the requirements of subsection (b), (c) or (d), as applicable.  

(b) Each Employee who (i) is eligible to receive a bonus under an Executive Annual Bonus Plan at any time 
during the applicable Plan Year, (ii) is an active participant in the Pension Plan during the applicable Plan Year, and (iii) has 
Excess Earnings for the Plan Year shall be a Participant in this SERP for purposes of accruing a benefit under Section 5.01 for 
the applicable Plan Year.  

(c) Each Employee who has a Change in Control Agreement that provides for the benefits described in 
Section 5.02 shall be a Participant in this SERP for purposes of being eligible to receive benefits under Section 5.02.  

(d) Each Employee whose employment was terminated on or after January 1, 2005 and before July 25, 2006 and 
who was entitled to receive a severance benefit under an Executive Severance Plan, as described in Section 5.03, shall be a 
Participant in this SERP for purposes of being eligible to receive benefits under Section 5.03.  

Sec. 3.02 Transfers . If a Participant ceases to meet the requirements of Section 3.01 but continues to be an employee 
of UGI or a Subsidiary or Affiliate, the former Participant will cease to accrue benefits under the SERP. The former Participant 
will continue to earn Vesting Service credit with respect to his or her accrued SERP benefit. If, at a later date, the Participant 
again meets the requirements of Section 3.01, the Participant may accrue additional benefits under the SERP with respect to his 
or her subsequent service as an eligible Employee. The Participant shall receive his or her vested accrued SERP benefit at the 
Participant’s termination of employment with UGI and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates as described in Article VI.  
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ARTICLE IV  

VESTING  

Sec. 4.01 Vesting in Section 5.01 Benefits .  

(a) A Participant shall vest in the benefits accrued under Section 5.01 of the SERP when the Participant has five 
years of Vesting Service. If a Participant’s employment with UGI and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates terminates for any reason 
before the Participant has five years of Vesting Service, all benefits accrued by the Participant under Section 5.01 shall be 
immediately forfeited, and the Participant shall receive no benefits under Section 5.01.  

(b) If a Participant whose employment terminated on or after January 1, 2005 and before July 25, 2006 is entitled 
to receive a benefit under Section 5.03, the Participant’s salary continuation period under the Executive Severance Plan shall be 
counted as service for purposes of vesting under this SERP.  

Sec. 4.02 Vesting in Section 5.02 and Section 5.03 Benefits .  

(a) A Participant shall vest in his or her benefits under Section 5.02 of the SERP when the Participant’s 
employment has terminated under the circumstances described in Section 5.02 and the Participant has met all the requirements of 
the Participant’s Change in Control Agreement that entitle the Participant to receive the benefits described in Section 5.02.  

(b) A Participant whose employment terminated on or after January 1, 2005 and before July 25, 2006 shall vest in 
his or her benefits under Section 5.03 of the SERP when the Participant’s employment has terminated under the circumstances 
described in Section 5.03 and the Participant has met all the requirements of the Executive Severance Plan that entitle the 
Participant to receive the benefits described in Section 5.03.  
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ARTICLE V  

BENEFITS  

Sec. 5.01 Pension Benefit . Each Participant who is an active participant in the Pension Plan and who is accruing a 
benefit under the Pension Plan shall accrue under the SERP a lump sum benefit that is the actuarially equivalent present value of 
a single life annuity equal to (a) reduced by (b), where:  

(a) is the annual accrued benefit, based on a single life annuity, that would have been produced under the Pension 
Plan if (i) the Participant’s Excess Earnings (without regard to the limitations set forth in section 401(a)(17) of the Code) and 
Deferred Earnings for each year of his active participation in the Pension Plan had been taken into account and (ii) the limitations 
set forth in section 415 of the Code (or its successor) were inoperative; and  

(b) is the annual accrued benefit, based on a single life annuity, that the Participant is entitled to receive under the 
Pension Plan.  

The annual accrued benefit shall be calculated as described in Section 5.06. A Participant shall be entitled to receive his or her 
vested accrued SERP benefit upon termination of employment as described in Article VI. Sections 5.01, 5.02 and 5.03 shall be 
administered so as not to result in duplication of benefits.  

Sec. 5.02 Change of Control Benefit . In the event of a Change of Control, if and to the extent required by a 
Participant’s Change in Control Agreement, each Participant who is an active participant in the Pension Plan on the date of the 
Participant’s termination of employment and who is entitled to receive the benefits described in this Section 5.02 under a Change 
in Control Agreement shall receive a lump sum benefit that is the actuarially equivalent present value of a single life annuity 
equal to (a) reduced by (b), where:  

(a) is the annual accrued benefit, based on a single life annuity, that the Participant would have received under the 
Pension Plan if the applicable Continuation Period had been taken into account in determining the Participant’s Vesting Service 
and Credited Service under the Pension Plan (such benefit to be determined without regard to the limitations set forth in the 
Code); and  

(b) is the Participant’s annual accrued benefit, based on a single life annuity, that the Participant is entitled to 
receive under the Pension Plan.  

The annual benefit shall be calculated as described in Section 5.06 as if the end of the Continuation Period were the Participant’s 
termination date. The annual benefit under subsection (a) above shall be calculated as if the Participant had continued in 
employment during the Continuation Period, earning base salary and bonus at the annual rate calculated for purposes of the 
Change in Control Agreement. Sections 5.01, 5.02 and 5.03 shall be administered so as not to result in duplication of benefits.  
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Sec. 5.03 Severance Benefit . The provisions of this Section 5.03 shall apply to a Participant whose employment was 
terminated by UGI or a Subsidiary or Affiliate on or after January 1, 2005 and before July 25, 2006, if the Participant was 
entitled to receive a severance benefit under an Executive Severance Plan and the Participant was an active participant in the 
Pension Plan on the date of the Participant’s termination of employment. If required by the terms of the applicable Executive 
Severance Plan, each such Participant shall receive a lump sum benefit that is the actuarially equivalent present value of a single 
life annuity equal to (a) reduced by (b), where:  

(a) is the annual accrued benefit, based on a single life annuity, that the Participant would have received under the 
Pension Plan if the applicable salary continuation period, as determined under the Executive Severance Plan, had been taken into 
account in determining the Participant’s Credited Service under the Pension Plan (such benefit to be determined without regard 
to the limitations set forth in the Code); and  

(b) is the Participant’s annual accrued benefit, based on a single life annuity, that the Participant is entitled to 
receive under the Pension Plan.  

The annual benefit shall be calculated as described in Section 5.06. The annual accrued benefit under subsection (a) above shall 
be calculated as if the Participant had continued in employment during the salary continuation period, earning base salary and 
bonus at the annual rate calculated for purposes of the Executive Severance Plan. Sections 5.01, 5.02 and 5.03 shall be 
administered so as not to result in duplication of benefits.  

Sec. 5.04 Death Benefits .  

(a) If a Participant has earned a vested accrued SERP benefit under Section 5.01 but the Participant dies while 
employed by UGI or a Subsidiary or Affiliate, the Participant’s surviving spouse shall be entitled to receive a lump sum death 
benefit that is the actuarially equivalent present value of a single life annuity equal to (i) reduced by (ii), where:  

(i) is the pre-retirement death benefit that would have been paid under the Pension Plan to the Participant’s 
surviving spouse if (i) the Participant’s Excess Earnings (without regard to the limitations set forth in section 401(a)
(17) of the Code) and Deferred Earnings for each year of his active participation in the Pension Plan had been taken 
into account and (ii) the limitations set forth in section 415 of the Code (or its successor) were inoperative; and  

(ii) is the pre-retirement death benefit that the Participant’s surviving spouse is entitled to receive under the 
Pension Plan.  

No death benefit shall be payable under this subsection (a) if the deceased Participant has no surviving spouse.  

(b) If a Participant terminates from employment with UGI and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates and meets all the 
requirements for eligibility for a benefit under Section 5.01, 5.02 or 5.03, but the Participant dies before the benefit described in 
Section 5.01, 5.02 or 5.03 is paid, the unpaid lump sum benefit described in Section 5.01, 5.02 or 5.03 shall be paid to the 
Participant’s designated Beneficiary or, if there is no designated Beneficiary, the Participant’s estate.  
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Sec. 5.05 Forfeiture . Each Participant shall immediately forfeit any benefit to which he or she is otherwise entitled 
under the SERP if the Participant’s employment is terminated for Cause.  

Sec. 5.06 Calculation of Annual Benefits . The annual accrued benefits described in Sections 5.01, 5.02 and 5.03, and 
the lump sum present values, shall be calculated as of the Participant’s termination date as follows:  

(a) If the Participant has attained age 65, the annual benefit shall be calculated as an annual benefit payable at the 
Participant’s termination date, and the lump sum present value shall be calculated as of the Participant’s termination date.  

(b) If the Participant has attained eligibility for early retirement under the Pension Plan, the annual benefit shall 
be calculated as an annual benefit payable at the Participant’s termination date (or at age 55, if the Participant has not attained 
age 55, but is eligible for early retirement), after reduction by the Pension Plan’s actuarial reduction factors for early retirement, 
and the lump sum present value shall be calculated as of the Participant’s termination date.  

(c) If the Participant has not attained age 65 or attained eligibility for early retirement under the Pension Plan, the 
annual benefit shall be calculated as an annual benefit payable at age 65, and the lump sum present value shall be calculated as of 
the Participant’s termination date.  

(d) For purposes of this SERP, Participant is considered to be eligible for early retirement under the Pension Plan 
if the Participant has attained age 55 with ten Years of Vesting Service or if the Participant’s employment is involuntarily 
terminated by the Company after the Participant has attained age 50 with 15 Years of Vesting Service.  

Sec. 5.07 Actuarial Equivalent . The Compensation Committee shall approve, and may from time to time change, the 
methodology (including assumptions) pursuant to which an actuarially equivalent benefit is calculated under the SERP. Unless 
the Committee determines otherwise, the methodology described in Exhibit B shall be used for calculating actuarial equivalence 
under the SERP. If a Change of Control occurs, the methodology used to calculate actuarial equivalence under the SERP 
immediately before the Change of Control shall be used to calculate actuarial equivalence for purposes of all benefits payable 
under the SERP on and after the Change of Control.  
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ARTICLE VI  

BENEFIT DISTRIBUTION  

Sec. 6.01 Calculation of Distribution Amount . If a Participant’s employment with UGI and its Subsidiaries and 
Affiliates terminates without Cause, the Administrative Committee shall calculate the Participant’s vested accrued SERP benefit 
under Article V (or the death benefit under Section 5.04(a), in the event of death) as of the Participant’s termination date. The 
Administrative Committee shall calculate the lump sum present value of the vested accrued SERP benefit based on the actuarial 
assumptions described in Section 5.06.  

Sec. 6.02 Form of Benefit Distributions .  

(a) Effective January 1, 2005, a Participant’s vested accrued SERP benefit shall be paid to the Participant in the 
form of a lump sum payment upon the Participant’s termination of employment with UGI and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates, as 
described in Section 6.03 below. The vested accrued benefit of a Participant who terminated employment prior to January 1, 
2005 shall be paid in accordance with the provisions of the SERP as in effect before January 1, 2005.  

(b) If a Participant dies, the lump sum death benefit described in Section 5.04 (if any) shall be paid within 
60 days after the Participant’s death.  

Sec. 6.03 Timing of Benefit Distributions .  

(a) A Participant’s vested accrued SERP benefit shall be paid to the Participant within 60 days following the 
Participant’s termination of employment with UGI and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates, except as described below. A Participant 
shall be considered to have incurred a termination of employment under the SERP when the Participant has a “separation from 
service” under section 409A of the Code. The vested accrued SERP benefit of a Participant who terminated employment prior to 
January 1, 2005 shall be paid in accordance with the provisions of the SERP as in effect before January 1, 2005.  

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Participant whose employment terminates after January 1, 2005 is a Key 
Employee and if required by section 409A of the Code, no SERP benefits shall be paid to the Participant during the 
Postponement Period. If payment of SERP benefits is required to be delayed for the Postponement Period pursuant to section 
409A, the accumulated amounts withheld on account of section 409A, with interest as described below, shall be paid in a lump 
sum payment within 15 days after the end of the Postponement Period. If the Participant dies during the Postponement Period 
prior to the payment of benefits, the amounts withheld on account of section 409A, with interest as described below, shall be 
paid to the Participant’s estate within 60 days after the Participant’s death.  
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(c) The amount to be withheld on account of section 409A shall be calculated as of the Participant’s termination 
date in accordance with the provisions hereof. Interest shall be calculated on the withheld lump sum amount from the 
Participant’s termination date to the last day of the calendar month preceding the date on which the withheld amount is paid, 
based on the daily average of the six-month certificate of deposit rates in effect for the month in which the Participant’s 
termination date occurs, as reported in Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15 or any comparable successor publication.  

Sec. 6.04 Deferral Elections . A Participant may make a one-time, irrevocable election to elect to have the present 
value of the Participant’s vested SERP benefit credited to the Participant’s account under the Deferral Plan on the date of the 
Participant’s separation from service, in lieu of the payments described in Section 6.02. If the Participant makes a deferral 
election, the present value of the Participant’s vested SERP benefit will be credited to the Participant’s account under the 
Deferral Plan at separation from service and the amount credited to the Deferral Plan shall be distributed in accordance with the 
provisions of the Deferral Plan. An election under this Section 6.04 shall be made in writing, on a form and at a time prescribed 
by the Administrative Committee and shall be irrevocable upon submission to the Corporate Secretary, and no further election 
shall be available under this SERP.  
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ARTICLE VII  

FUNDING OF BENEFITS  

Sec. 7.01 Source of Funds . The obligations of UGI and other participating employers in the Pension Plan shall 
constitute a general, unsecured obligation, payable solely out of their general assets, and no Participant shall have any right to 
any specific assets of UGI, or any Subsidiary or Affiliate or any trust established by UGI or any Subsidiary or Affiliate to fund 
such obligations.  

Sec. 7.02 Participant Contributions . There shall be no contributions made by Participants under the SERP.  
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ARTICLE VIII  

THE COMMITTEE  

Sec. 8.01 Appointment and Tenure of Administrative Committee Members . The Administrative Committee shall 
consist of one or more persons who shall be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the Compensation Committee. Any 
Administrative Committee member may resign by delivering his or her written resignation to the Compensation Committee. 
Vacancies arising by the death, resignation or removal of an Administrative Committee member may be filled by the 
Compensation Committee.  

Sec. 8.02 Meetings; Majority Rule . Any and all acts of the Administrative Committee taken at a meeting shall be by a 
majority of all members of the Administrative Committee. The Administrative Committee may act by vote taken in a meeting (at 
which a majority of members shall constitute a quorum). The Administrative Committee may also act by unanimous consent in 
writing without the formality of convening a meeting.  

Sec. 8.03 Delegation . The Administrative Committee may, by majority decision, delegate to each or any one of its 
number, authority to sign any documents on its behalf, or to perform ministerial acts, but no person to whom such authority is 
delegated shall perform any act involving the exercise of any discretion without first obtaining the concurrence of a majority of 
the members of the Administrative Committee, even though such person alone may sign any document required by third parties. 
The Administrative Committee shall elect one of its number to serve as Chairperson. The Chairperson shall preside at all 
meetings of the Administrative Committee or shall delegate such responsibility to another Administrative Committee member. 
The Administrative Committee shall elect one person to serve as Secretary to the Administrative Committee. All third parties 
may rely on any communication signed by the Secretary, acting as such, as an official communication from the Administrative 
Committee.  

Sec. 8.04 Authority and Responsibility of the Administrative Committee . The Administrative Committee shall have 
only such authority and responsibilities as are delegated to it by the Compensation Committee or specifically provided herein. 
The Administrative Committee shall have full power and express discretionary authority to administer and interpret the SERP, to 
make factual determinations and to adopt or amend such rules and regulations for implementing the SERP and for the conduct of 
its business as it deems necessary or advisable, in its sole discretion. The Administrative Committee’s authorities and 
responsibilities shall also include:  

(a) maintenance and preservation of records relating to Participants, former Participants, and their beneficiaries;  

(b) preparation and distribution to Participants of all information and notices required under Federal law or the 
provisions of the SERP;  

(c) preparation and filing of all governmental reports and other information required under law to be filed or 
published;  
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(d) engagement of assistants and professional advisers;  

(e) arrangement for bonding, if required by law; and  

(f) promulgation of procedures for determination of claims for benefits.  

Sec. 8.05 Compensation of Administrative Committee Members . The members of the Administrative Committee shall 
serve without compensation for their services as such, but all expenses of the Administrative Committee shall be paid or 
reimbursed by UGI.  

Sec. 8.06 Administrative Committee Discretion . Any discretion, actions, or interpretations to be made under the 
SERP by the Administrative Committee shall be made in its sole discretion, need not be uniformly applied to similarly situated 
individuals, and shall be final, binding, and conclusive on the parties. All benefits under the SERP shall be provided conditional 
upon the Participant’s acknowledgement, in writing or by acceptance of the benefits, that all decisions and determinations of the 
Administrative Committee shall be final and binding on the Participant, his or her beneficiaries and any other person having or 
claiming an interest under the SERP.  

Sec. 8.07 Indemnification of the Committees . Each member of the Administrative Committee shall be indemnified by 
UGI against costs, expenses and liabilities (other than amounts paid in settlement to which UGI does not consent) reasonably 
incurred by him or her in connection with any action to which he or she may be a party by reason of his or her service as a 
member of the Committee, except in relation to matters as to which he or she shall be adjudged in such action to be personally 
guilty of gross negligence or willful misconduct in the performance of his or her duties. The foregoing right to indemnification 
shall be in addition to such other rights as the Administrative Committee member may enjoy as a matter of law or by reason of 
insurance coverage of any kind, but shall not extend to costs, expenses and/or liabilities otherwise covered by insurance or that 
would be so covered by any insurance then in force if such insurance contained a waiver of subrogation. Rights granted 
hereunder shall be in addition to and not in lieu of any rights to indemnification to which the Administrative Committee member 
may be entitled pursuant to the by-laws of UGI. Service on the Administrative Committee shall be deemed in partial fulfillment 
of the Administrative Committee member’s function as an employee, officer and/or director of UGI, if he or she serves in that 
capacity as well as in the role of Administrative Committee member.  
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ARTICLE IX  

AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION  

Sec. 9.01 Amendment . The provisions of the SERP may be amended at any time and from time to time by the 
Compensation Committee for any reason without either the consent of or prior notice to any Participant; provided, however , that 
no such amendment shall serve to reduce the benefit that has accrued on behalf of a Participant as of the effective date of the 
amendment.  

Sec. 9.02 Plan Termination . While it is UGI’s intention to continue the SERP indefinitely in operation, the right is, 
nevertheless, reserved to terminate the SERP in whole or in part at any time for any reason without either the consent of or prior 
notice to any Participant. No such termination shall reduce the benefit that has accrued on behalf of a Participant as of the 
effective date of the termination, but UGI may immediately distribute all accrued benefits upon termination of the SERP in 
accordance with section 409A of the Code.  
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ARTICLE X  

CLAIMS PROCEDURES  

Sec. 10.01 Claim . Any person or entity claiming a benefit, requesting an interpretation or ruling under the SERP 
(hereinafter referred to as “claimant”), or requesting information under the SERP shall present the request in writing to the 
Administrative Committee, which shall respond in writing or electronically. The notice advising of the denial shall be furnished 
to the claimant within 90 days of receipt of the benefit claim by the Administrative Committee, unless special circumstances 
require an extension of time to process the claim. If an extension is required, the Administrative Committee shall provide notice 
of the extension prior to the termination of the 90 day period. In no event may the extension exceed a total of 180 days from the 
date of the original receipt of the claim.  

Sec. 10.02 Denial of Claim . If the claim or request is denied, the written or electronic notice of denial shall state:  

(a) The reasons for denial;  

(b) Reference to the specific SERP provisions on which the denial is based;  

(c) A description of any additional material or information required and an explanation of why it is necessary; 
and  

(d) An explanation of the SERP’s claims review procedures and the time limits applicable to such procedures, 
including the right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of ERISA.  

Sec. 10.03 Final Decision . The decision on review shall normally be made within 60 days after the Administrative 
Committee’s receipt of claimant’s claim or request. If an extension of time is required for a hearing or other special 
circumstances, the claimant shall be notified and the time limit shall be 120 days. The decision shall be in writing or in electronic 
form and shall:  

(a) State the specific reasons for the denial;  

(b) Reference the relevant SERP provisions;  
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(c) State that the claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, and have reasonable access to 
and copies of all documents, records and other information relevant to the claim for benefits; and  

(d) State that the claimant may bring an action under section 502(a) of ERISA.  

All decisions on review shall be final and binding on all parties concerned.  

Sec. 10.04 Review of Claim . Any claimant whose claim or request is denied or who has not received a response 
within 60 days may request a review by notice given in writing or electronic form to the Administrative Committee. Such request 
must be made within 60 days after receipt by the claimant of the written or electronic notice of denial, or in the event the 
claimant has not received a response, 60 days after receipt by the Administrative Committee of the claimant’s claim or request. 
The claim or request shall be reviewed by the Administrative Committee which may, but shall not be required to, grant the 
claimant a hearing. On review, the claimant may have representation, examine pertinent documents, and submit issues and 
comments in writing.  
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ARTICLE XI  

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS  

Sec. 11.01 Nonalienation of Benefits . None of the payments, benefits or rights of any participant under the SERP 
shall be subject to any claim of any creditor, and, in particular, to the fullest extent permitted by law, all such payments, benefits 
and rights shall be free from attachment, garnishment, trustee’s process, or any other legal or equitable process available to any 
creditor of such Participant. No Participant shall have the right to alienate, anticipate, commute, pledge, encumber or assign any 
of the benefits or payments which he or she may expect to receive, contingently or otherwise, under the SERP.  

Sec. 11.02 No Contract of Employment . Neither the establishment of the SERP, nor any modification thereof, nor the 
creation of any fund, trust or account, nor the payment of any benefits shall be construed as giving any Participant or Employee, 
or any person whomsoever, the right to be retained in the service of UGI or any other participating employer hereunder, and all 
Participants and other Employees shall remain subject to discharge to the same extent as if the SERP had never been adopted.  

Sec. 11.03 Severability of Provisions . If any provision of the SERP shall be held invalid or unenforceable, such 
invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof, and the SERP shall be construed and enforced as if 
such provision had not been included.  

Sec. 11.04 Heirs, Assigns and Personal Representatives . The SERP shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns of the parties, including each Participant, present and future.  

Sec. 11.05 Successors . Unless the Compensation Committee directs otherwise before a Change of Control, in the 
event of a Change of Control, UGI shall require any successor or successors (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, 
consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business and/or assets of UGI, or a division or Affiliate thereof, (i) to 
acknowledge expressly that this SERP is binding upon and enforceable against such successor in accordance with the terms 
hereof, (ii) to become jointly and severally obligated with UGI to perform the obligations under this SERP, and (iii) to agree not 
to amend or terminate the SERP for a period of three years after the date of succession without the consent of the affected 
Participant.  

Sec. 11.06 Headings and Captions . The headings and captions herein are provided for reference and convenience 
only, and shall not be considered part of the SERP, and shall not be employed in the construction of the SERP.  

Sec. 11.07 Gender and Number . Except where otherwise clearly indicated by context, the masculine and the neuter 
shall include the feminine and the neuter, the singular shall include the plural, and vice-versa.  
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Sec. 11.08 Controlling Law . The SERP shall be construed and enforced according to the laws of the Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania, exclusive of conflict of law provisions thereof, to the extent not preempted by Federal law, which shall 
otherwise control.  

Sec. 11.09 Payments to Minors, Etc . Any benefit payable to or for the benefit of a minor, an incompetent person or 
other person incapable of receipting therefore shall be deemed paid when paid to such person’s guardian or to the party providing 
or reasonably appearing to provide for the care of such person, and such payment shall fully discharge UGI, the Board, the 
Administrative Committee and all other parties with respect thereto.  

Sec. 11.10 Reliance on Data and Consents . UGI, the Board, the Compensation Committee, the Administrative 
Committee, all fiduciaries with respect to the SERP, and all other persons or entities associated with the operation of the SERP, 
and the provision of benefits thereunder, may reasonably rely on the truth, accuracy and completeness of all data provided by the 
Participant, including, without limitation, data with respect to age, health and marital status. Furthermore, UGI, the Board, the 
Compensation Committee, the Administrative Committee and all fiduciaries with respect to the SERP may reasonably rely on all 
consents, elections and designations filed with the SERP or those associated with the operation of the SERP by any Participant, 
or the representatives of any such person without duty to inquire into the genuineness of any such consent, election or 
designation. None of the aforementioned persons or entities associated with the operation of the SERP or the benefits provided 
under the SERP shall have any duty to inquire into any such data, and all may rely on such data being current to the date of 
reference, it being the duty of the Participants to advise the appropriate parties of any change in such data.  

Sec. 11.11 Lost Payees . A benefit shall be deemed forfeited if the Administrative Committee is unable to locate a 
Participant to whom payment is due; provided , however , that such benefit shall be reinstated if a claim is made by the proper 
payee for the forfeited benefit.  

Sec. 11.12 Taxation . The SERP is intended to comply with section 409A of the Code. Notwithstanding anything in 
the SERP to the contrary, distributions may only be made under the SERP upon an event and in a manner permitted by section 
409A of the Code. All payments under the SERP shall be subject to applicable tax withholding. Distributions upon termination 
of employment shall only be made upon the Participant’s “separation from service” under section 409A of the Code, and in no 
event may a Participant directly or indirectly designate the calendar year of a payment.  
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EXHIBIT A  

CHANGE OF CONTROL  

For purposes of the SERP, the term “Change of Control,” and other defined terms used in this Exhibit A, shall have the 
following meanings:  

1. “Change of Control” shall mean:  

(i) Any Person (except UGI, any UGI Subsidiary, any employee benefit plan of UGI or of any UGI Subsidiary, or 
any Person or entity organized, appointed or established by UGI for or pursuant to the terms of any such employee benefit plan), 
together with all Affiliates and Associates of such Person, becomes the Beneficial Owner in the aggregate of 20% or more of 
either (i) the then outstanding shares of common stock of UGI (the “Outstanding UGI Common Stock”) or (ii) the combined 
voting power of the then outstanding voting securities of UGI entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (the “UGI 
Voting Securities”); or  

(ii) Individuals who, as of the beginning of any 24-month period, constitute the UGI Board of Directors (the 
“Incumbent UGI Board”) cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Incumbent UGI Board, provided that any 
individual becoming a director of UGI subsequent to the beginning of such period whose election or nomination for election by 
the UGI shareholders was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the Incumbent UGI Board 
shall be considered as though such individual were a member of the Incumbent UGI Board, but excluding, for this purpose, any 
such individual whose initial assumption of office is in connection with an actual or threatened election contest relating to the 
election of the Directors of UGI (as such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange 
Act); or  

(iii) Consummation by UGI of a reorganization, merger or consolidation (a “Business Combination”), in each 
case, with respect to which all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the respective Beneficial Owners of 
the Outstanding UGI Common Stock and UGI Voting Securities immediately prior to such Business Combination do not, 
following such Business Combination, Beneficially Own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of, respectively, the then 
outstanding shares of common stock and the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote 
generally in the election of directors, as the case may be, of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination in 
substantially the same proportion as their ownership immediately prior to such Business Combination of the Outstanding UGI 
Common Stock and UGI Voting Securities, as the case may be; or  

(iv) Consummation of (a) a complete liquidation or dissolution of UGI or (b) a sale or other disposition of all or 
substantially all of the assets of UGI other than to a corporation with respect to which, following such sale or disposition, more 
than 50% of, respectively, the then outstanding shares of common stock and the combined voting power of the then outstanding 
voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors is then owned beneficially, directly or indirectly, by all or 
substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the Beneficial Owners, respectively, of the Outstanding UGI Common 
Stock and UGI Voting Securities immediately prior to such sale or disposition in substantially the same proportion as their 
ownership of the Outstanding UGI Common Stock and UGI Voting Securities, as the case may be, immediately prior to such 
sale or disposition.  
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2. “Affiliate” and “Associate” shall have the respective meanings ascribed to such terms in Rule 12b-2 of the General 
Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act.  

3. “Exchange Act” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  

4. A Person shall be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of any securities: (i) that such Person or any of such Person’s 
Affiliates or Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to acquire (whether such right is exercisable immediately or only 
after the passage of time) pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not in writing) or upon the 
exercise of conversion rights, exchange rights, rights, warrants or options, or otherwise; provided , however , that a Person shall 
not be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of securities tendered pursuant to a tender or exchange offer made by such Person or any 
of such Person’s Affiliates or Associates until such tendered securities are accepted for payment, purchase or exchange; (ii) that 
such Person or any of such Person’s Affiliates or Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to vote or dispose of or has 
“beneficial ownership” of (as determined pursuant to Rule 13d-3 of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act), 
including without limitation pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding, whether or not in writing; provided , 
however , that a Person shall not be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of any security under this clause (ii) as a result of an oral or 
written agreement, arrangement or understanding to vote such security if such agreement, arrangement or understanding 
(A) arises solely from a revocable proxy given in response to a public proxy or consent solicitation made pursuant to, and in 
accordance with, the applicable provisions of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act, and (B) is not then 
reportable by such Person on Schedule 13D under the Exchange Act (or any comparable or successor report); or (iii) that are 
beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by any other Person (or any Affiliate or Associate thereof) with which such Person (or 
any of such Person’s Affiliates or Associates) has any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not in writing) for 
the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting (except pursuant to a revocable proxy as described in the proviso to clause (ii) above) 
or disposing of any securities; provided , however , that nothing in this Section 1(c) shall cause a Person engaged in business as 
an underwriter of securities to be the “Beneficial Owner” of any securities acquired through such Person’s participation in good 
faith in a firm commitment underwriting until the expiration of forty (40) days after the date of such acquisition.  

5. “Person” shall mean an individual or a corporation, partnership, trust, unincorporated organization, association, or 
other entity.  

6. “UGI Subsidiary” shall mean any corporation in which UGI directly or indirectly, owns at least a fifty percent 
(50%) interest or an unincorporated entity of which UGI, as applicable, directly or indirectly, owns at least fifty percent (50%) of 
the profits or capital interests.  
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Change of Control with Respect to UGI Utilities, Inc.  

In addition to the definition of Change of Control with respect to UGI, as set forth above, for Participants who are employees of 
UGI Utilities, Inc. (“Utilities”) or a subsidiary of Utilities, the term “Change of Control” shall include the events set forth below:  

“Change of Control” shall include any of the following events:  

(A) UGI and the UGI Subsidiaries fail to own more than fifty percent (50%) of the then outstanding shares 
of common stock of Utilities or more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting 
securities of Utilities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors; or  

(B) Completion by Utilities of a reorganization, merger or consolidation (a “Business Combination”), in 
each case, with respect to which all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the respective Beneficial Owners 
of Utilities’ outstanding common stock and voting securities immediately prior to such Business Combination do not, following 
such Business Combination, Beneficially Own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of, respectively, the then outstanding shares 
of common stock and the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the 
election of directors, as the case may be, of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination in substantially the same 
proportion as their ownership immediately prior to such Business Combination of Utilities’ outstanding common stock and 
voting securities, as the case may be; or  

(C) Completion of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Utilities or sale or other disposition of all or 
substantially all of the assets of Utilities other than to a corporation with respect to which, following such sale or disposition, 
more than 50% of, respectively, the then outstanding shares of common stock and the combined voting power of the then 
outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors is then owned beneficially, directly or 
indirectly, by all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the Beneficial Owners, respectively, of Utilities’ 
outstanding common stock and voting securities immediately prior to such sale or disposition in substantially the same 
proportion as their ownership of Utilities’ outstanding common stock and voting securities, as the case may be, immediately 
prior to such sale or disposition.  
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EXHIBIT B  

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS  

Assumptions used for calculating the lump sum payment of vested accrued SERP benefits :  

1. For Participants attaining age 50 prior to January 1, 2004, with service after January 1, 2004, the lump sum payment is 
calculated using two interest rates. One rate is for service prior to January 1, 2004 and the other for service after January 1, 2004. 
The rates are determined as follows:  

The 1994 GAR unisex mortality table is also used in the lump sum calculation.  

2. For Participants attaining age 50 on or after January 1, 2004, the rates are determined as follows:  

The 1994 GAR unisex mortality table is also used in the lump sum calculation.  

   

B-1  

  •   Pre-January 1, 2004 Service . The daily average of Moody’s Aaa bond yields for the month in which the Participant’s 
termination date occurs, plus 50 basis points, tax-adjusted using the highest marginal Federal tax rate (35.0% for 
2007). 

  
  •   Post-January 1, 2004 Service . The daily average of 10-year Treasury Bond yields in effect for the month in which the 

Participant’s termination date occurs, as reported in Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15 or any comparable 
successor publication. 

  •   The daily average of 10-year Treasury Bond yields in effect for the month in which the Participant’s termination date 
occurs, as reported in Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15 or any comparable successor publication. 
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UGI CORPORATION  
SUPPLEMENTAL SAVINGS PLAN  

ARTICLE I  

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE  

The Supplemental Savings Plan (the “SSP”) is maintained to provide a fair and competitive level of retirement 
benefits to certain management and other highly compensated employees who have, by operation of laws and regulations relating 
to qualified savings plans, experienced a reduction in benefits under the Savings Plan (as defined in Article II). The benefits 
under the SSP are also designed to compensate terminated participants by taking into account periods of time for which 
payments are made under a Change in Control Agreement (as defined in Article II) or, for employees whose employment 
terminated on or after January 1, 2005 and before July 25, 2006, under an Executive Severance Plan (as defined in Article II).  
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ARTICLE II  

DEFINITIONS  

Sec. 2.01 “Administrative Committee” shall mean the committee designated by the Compensation Committee to 
administer the SSP.  

Sec. 2.02 “Affiliate” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Rule 12b-2 of the General Rules and Regulations 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  

Sec. 2.03 “Beneficiary” shall mean the person or entity who shall receive benefits in the event of the Participant’s 
death, as determined under the Savings Plan.  

Sec. 2.04 “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of UGI.  

Sec. 2.05 “Cause” shall mean misappropriation of funds, habitual insobriety, substance abuse, conviction of a crime 
involving moral turpitude, or gross negligence in the performance of duties, which gross negligence has had a material adverse 
effect on the business, operations, assets, properties or financial condition of UGI and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates, taken as a 
whole.  

Sec. 2.06 “Change of Control” shall have the meaning set forth on the attached Exhibit A.  

Sec. 2.07 “Change in Control Agreement” shall mean a Change in Control Agreement between an Employee and UGI 
or a Subsidiary (other than AmeriGas Propane, Inc. or its subsidiaries).  

Sec. 2.08 “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  

Sec. 2.09 “Compensation Committee” shall mean the Compensation and Management Development Committee of the 
Board.  

Sec. 2.10 “Continuation Period” shall mean, with respect to a Participant who is entitled to receive benefits under a 
Change in Control Agreement, the Continuation Period as defined in the Participant’s Change in Control Agreement.  

Sec. 2.11 “Effective Date” of the amended SSP shall mean January 1, 2005, except where otherwise indicated. The 
SSP is a continuation of the savings plan portion of the UGI Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as in effect 
before January 1, 2005.  

Sec. 2.12 “Employee” shall mean any person in the employ of UGI, UGI Utilities, Inc. or another Subsidiary other 
than AmeriGas Propane, Inc. or its subsidiaries. In no event shall a person who is characterized as an independent contractor by 
the employer, no matter how characterized by a court or government agency, be considered an “Employee,” and no retroactive 
characterization of an individual’s status for any other purpose shall make an individual an “Employee.”  
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Sec. 2.13 “Employment Commencement Date” shall mean the first day on which a Participant became an employee of 
UGI, any Subsidiary or Affiliate of UGI, or any entity whose business or assets have been acquired by UGI, by a Subsidiary or 
Affiliate of UGI or by any predecessor of such entities.  

Sec. 2.14 “ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.  

Sec. 2.15 “Excess Earnings” shall mean that portion of an Employee’s compensation from UGI or another 
participating employer hereunder that is not permitted to be taken into account under the Savings Plan by operation of section 
401(a)(17) of the Code or any successor thereto, excluding any such compensation earned when the Employee was not a 
Participant.  

Sec. 2.16 “Executive Annual Bonus Plan” shall mean the UGI Corporation Executive Annual Bonus Plan or the UGI 
Utilities, Inc. Executive Annual Bonus Plan, as amended from time to time, and any successor plans (and for fiscal years through 
1996, the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Executive Annual Bonus Plan).  

Sec. 2.17 “Executive Severance Plan” shall mean an executive severance plan of UGI or a Subsidiary or Affiliate 
(other than AmeriGas Propane, Inc. or its subsidiaries).  

Sec. 2.18 “Key Employee” shall mean an employee who, at any time during the 12-month period ending on the 
identification date, is a “specified employee” under section 409A of the Code, as determined by the Compensation Committee or 
its delegate. The determination of Key Employees, including the number and identity of persons considered specified employees 
and the identification date, shall be made by the Compensation Committee or its delegate in accordance with the provisions of 
section 409A of the Code and the regulations issued thereunder.  

Sec. 2.19 “Matching Contribution” shall have the meaning given that term in the Savings Plan.  

Sec. 2.20 “Participant” shall mean each Employee who meets the requirements of Section 3.01 hereof.  

Sec. 2.21 “Plan Year” shall mean, effective January 1, 2007, a 12-month period beginning on January 1 and ending on 
December 31. For periods before January 1, 2007, the Plan Year shall mean a period beginning on October 1 and ending on the 
following September 30, with a short Plan Year for the period beginning on October 1, 2006 and ending on December 31, 2006.  

Sec. 2.22 “Postponement Period” shall mean, for a Key Employee, the period of six months after separation from 
service (or such other period as may be required by section 409A of the Code), during which SSP benefits may not be paid to the 
Key Employee under section 409A of the Code.  
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Sec. 2.23 “Prior SERP” shall mean the UGI Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan as in effect before 
January 1, 2005.  

Sec. 2.24 “Savings Plan” shall mean the UGI Utilities, Inc. Savings Plan as it may thereafter be amended, and any plan 
designated by the Administrative Committee as the successor to the UGI Utilities, Inc. Savings Plan.  

Sec. 2.25 “Savings Plan Year” shall mean the calendar year.  

Sec. 2.26 “SSP” shall mean the UGI Corporation Supplemental Savings Plan as set forth herein, and as the same may 
hereafter be amended.  

Sec. 2.27 “Subsidiary” shall mean any corporation in which UGI, directly or indirectly, owns at least a 50% interest or 
an unincorporated entity of which UGI, directly or indirectly, owns at least 50% of the profits or capital interests.  

Sec. 2.28 “UGI” shall mean UGI Corporation.  

Sec. 2.29 “Year of Service” shall mean a Year of Service as determined under the Savings Plan for vesting purposes.  
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ARTICLE III  

PARTICIPATION  

Sec. 3.01 Participants .  

(a) Each Employee who (i) is eligible to receive a bonus under an Executive Annual Bonus Plan at any time 
during the applicable Plan Year and (ii) is an active participant in the Savings Plan and makes the contributions described in 
Section 5.01(a) to the Savings Plan for the Plan Year shall be a Participant in the SSP for the applicable Plan Year.  

(b) Each Employee who has a Change in Control Agreement that provides for the benefits described in 
Section 5.04 shall be a Participant in this SSP for purposes of being eligible to receive benefits under Section 5.04.  

(c) An Employee whose employment terminated on or after January 1, 2005 and before July 25, 2006, and who 
was entitled to receive a severance benefit under an Executive Severance Plan, as described in Section 5.05, shall be a Participant 
in this SSP for purposes of being eligible to receive benefits under Section 5.05.  

Sec. 3.02 Transfers . If a Participant ceases to meet the requirements of Section 3.01 but continues to be an employee 
of UGI or a Subsidiary or Affiliate, the former Participant will cease to accrue benefits under the SSP. The former Participant 
will continue to earn Years of Service credit for vesting purposes with respect to the SSP for purposes of his or her accrued SSP 
benefit under Section 5.01. The former Participant’s account will continue to be credited with earnings pursuant to Section 5.02 
while the former Participant has an account under the SSP.  

Sec. 3.03 Accounts . UGI shall establish a bookkeeping account for each Participant under the SSP. All contributions 
under the SSP, and earnings thereon as described in Section 5.02, shall be credited to the Participant’s account.  
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ARTICLE IV  

VESTING  

Sec. 4.01 Vesting in Section 5.01 Benefits .  

(a) A Participant shall vest in the amounts credited under Sections 5.01 and 5.02 of the SSP when the Participant 
has five Years of Service. If a Participant’s employment with UGI and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates terminates for any reason 
other than death before the Participant has five Years of Service, all amounts credited under Sections 5.01 and 5.02 shall be 
immediately forfeited, and the Participant shall receive no benefits under Sections 5.01 and 5.02. If a Participant dies while 
employed by UGI or its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, the Participant’s amounts credited under Sections 5.01 and 5.02 shall become 
fully vested.  

(b) If a Participant whose employment terminated on or after January 1, 2005 and before July 25, 2006 is entitled 
to receive a benefit under Section 5.05, the Participant’s salary continuation period under the Executive Severance Plan shall be 
counted as service for purposes of vesting under this SSP.  

Sec. 4.02 Vesting in Section 5.04 and Section 5.05 Benefits .  

(a) A Participant shall vest in the amounts credited under Section 5.04 of the SSP when the Participant’s 
employment has terminated under the circumstances described in Section 5.04 and the Participant has met all the requirements of 
the Participant’s Change in Control Agreement that entitle the Participant to receive the amounts described in Section 5.04.  

(b) A Participant whose employment terminated on or after January 1, 2005 and before July 25, 2006 shall vest in 
the amounts credited under Section 5.05 of the SSP when the Participant’s employment has terminated under the circumstances 
described in Section 5.05 and the Participant has met all the requirements of the Executive Severance Plan that entitle the 
Participant to receive the amounts described in Section 5.05.  
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ARTICLE V  

BENEFITS  

Sec. 5.01 SSP Annual Contributions .  

(a) Effective January 1, 2007, at the end of each Plan Year, the Administrative Committee shall credit an SSP 
contribution to the book account of each Participant who is an active participant in the Savings Plan and who contributed to the 
Savings Plan for the Plan Year an amount at least equal to the lesser of (i) 6% of the Participant’s annual compensation (as 
determined under the Savings Plan) or (ii) the maximum amount permitted to be contributed under section 402(g) of the Code 
(without regard to any “catch up” contributions as described below).  

(b) The SSP contribution for each Participant described in subsection (a) for the Plan Year shall be calculated as:  

(x) The Matching Contribution that would have been made for the Participant under the Savings Plan for the 
Plan Year, based on an election to contribute 6% of the Participant’s annual compensation (as determined under the Savings 
Plan), if (i) the Participant’s Excess Earnings (without regard to the limitations set forth in section 401(a)(17) of the Code) 
had been taken into account, (ii) the limitations set forth in section 402(g) of the Code were inoperative, and (iii) there were 
no cutbacks of contributions to the Savings Plans to comply with nondiscrimination tests set forth in Sections 401(k) and 
401(m) of the Code, less  

(y) The Matching Contribution that would have been made to the Savings Plan for the Participant for the 
Plan Year, based on an election to contribute 6% of the Participant’s annual compensation (as determined under the Savings 
Plan), and taking into account the limitations set forth in section 401(a)(17) of the Code, the limitations set forth in section 
402(g) of the Code and any applicable cutbacks of contributions to the Savings Plans to comply with nondiscrimination 
tests set forth in Sections 401(k) and 401(m) of the Code.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no contribution shall be credited under the SSP with respect to “catch-up” contributions made 
under the Savings Plan pursuant to section 414(v) of the Code. The contribution credited under the SSP for a Participant for a 
Plan Year shall not exceed the Matching Contribution that would have been provided under the Savings Plan in the absence of 
any plan-based restrictions that reflect limits on qualified plan contributions under the Code, in accordance with section 409A of 
the Code.  

(c) The Administrative Committee shall calculate a prorated SSP contribution for each Participant for the short 
Plan Year beginning October 1, 2006 and ending December 31, 2006, in such manner as the Administrative Committee 
determines.  
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(d) The Administrative Committee shall credit each Participant’s SERP contribution for each Plan Year to a 
bookkeeping account for the Participant on UGI’s records.  

Sec. 5.02 Earnings . At the end of each Plan Year, each Participant who has an unpaid book account under the SSP as 
of the end of the Plan Year shall be credited with earnings on the Participant’s SSP account, as described below. The amount of 
the credit is equal to the product obtained by multiplying the Participant’s cumulative account balance as of the end of the Plan 
Year by the Participant’s “individual rate per annum,” determined as follows:  

(a) For Plan Years ending before October 1, 2005, the “individual rate per annum” is determined by dividing 
(i) by (ii), where (i) is the total of all actual gains and losses reported on the Participant’s Savings Plan portfolio for the Plan 
Year, measured on the last day of the Plan Year, and (ii) is the sum of the Participant’s beginning balance in the Savings Plan on 
the first day of the Plan Year plus all contributions to the Participant’s Savings Plan account during the Plan Year.  

(b) For Plan Years beginning on or after October 1, 2005, the “individual rate per annum” is a weighted average 
return calculated by UGI, based 60% on the total return of the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index and 40% on the total return of the 
Lehman Brothers Aggregate Bond Index for the Plan Year.  

Sec. 5.03 Termination of Employment .  

(a) If a Participant’s employment terminates during a Plan Year for any reason other than Cause, the 
Administrative Committee shall credit a pro rata SSP contribution to the Participant’s account for the Plan Year, if the 
Participant is an active participant in the Savings Plan and has contributed to the Savings Plan for the Plan Year an amount at 
least equal to the lesser of (i) 6% of the Participant’s annual compensation (as determined under the Savings Plan) or (ii) a pro-
rata amount of the maximum amount permitted to be contributed under section 402(g) of the Code (without regard to any “catch 
up” contributions).  

(b) If a Participant’s employment terminates during a Plan Year for any reason other than Cause, the 
Administrative Committee shall credit earnings on the terminated Participant’s SSP account from the end of the preceding Plan 
Year to the termination date, based on the “individual rate per annum” described in Section 5.02(b) above for the portion of the 
Plan Year for which earnings are credited before the termination date.  

(c) The amounts described in this Section 5.03 shall be credited to the Participant’s account as of the Participant’s 
termination date.  
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Sec. 5.04 Change of Control Benefit . In the event of a Change of Control, if and to the extent required by a 
Participant’s Change in Control Agreement, each Participant who is an active participant in the Savings Plan on the date of the 
Participant’s termination of employment and who is entitled to receive severance benefits under a Change in Control Agreement 
shall receive a credit to the Participant’s SSP account equal to the Participant’s Matching Contributions that would have been 
made to the Savings Plan (without regard to the statutory limits) had the Participant been eligible to participate in the Savings 
Plan and made employee elective deferral contributions to the Savings Plan during the Continuation Period equal to 6% of his or 
her annual compensation (determined as of the day of his or her termination of employment) . This benefit shall be credited to 
the Participant’s account as of the Participant’s termination date.  

Sec. 5.05 Severance Benefit . The provisions of this Section 5.05 apply to a Participant whose employment was 
terminated by UGI or a Subsidiary or Affiliate on or after January 1, 2005 and before July 25, 2006, if the Participant was 
entitled to receive a severance benefit under an Executive Severance Plan and the Participant was an active participant in the 
Savings Plan on the date of the Participant’s termination of employment. If required by the terms of the Executive Severance 
Plan, each such Participant shall receive a credit to the Participant’s SSP account equal to the Participant’s Matching 
Contributions that would have been made to the Savings Plan (without regard to the statutory limits) had the Participant been 
eligible to participate in the Savings Plan and made employee elective deferral contributions to the Savings Plan during the 
Participant’s salary continuation period under the Executive Severance Plan equal to 6% of his or her annual compensation 
(determined as of the day of his or her termination of employment). This benefit shall be credited to the Participant’s account as 
of the date of the Participant’s termination date.  

Sec. 5.06 Death Benefits . If a Participant is entitled to receive a vested benefit under this Article V but the Participant 
dies before receiving his or her SSP benefit, the Participant’s vested benefit, if any, shall be paid to the Beneficiary.  

Sec. 5.07 Forfeiture . Each Participant shall immediately forfeit any benefit to which he or she is otherwise entitled 
under the SSP if the Participant’s employment is terminated for Cause.  
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ARTICLE VI  

FORM AND TIMING OF BENEFIT DISTRIBUTION  

Sec. 6.01 Form of Benefit Distributions . A Participant’s vested SSP benefits shall be paid to the Participant in the 
form of a lump sum payment upon the Participant’s termination of employment with UGI and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates, as 
described below. A Participant’s vested SSP benefits are the vested amount credited to the Participant’s account under the SSP.  

Sec. 6.02 Timing of Benefit Distributions .  

(a) A Participant’s vested SSP benefits shall be paid to the Participant within 60 days following the Participant’s 
termination of employment with UGI and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates, except as described below. A Participant shall be 
considered to have incurred a termination of employment under the SSP when the Participant has a “separation from service” 
under section 409A of the Code.  

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Participant whose employment terminates after January 1, 2005 is a Key 
Employee and if required by section 409A of the Code, no SSP benefits shall be paid to the Participant during the Postponement 
Period. If payment of SSP benefits is required to be delayed for the Postponement Period pursuant to section 409A, the 
accumulated amounts withheld on account of section 409A, with interest as described below, shall be paid in a lump sum 
payment within 15 days after the end of the Postponement Period. If the Participant dies during the Postponement Period prior to 
the payment of benefits, the amounts withheld on account of section 409A, with interest as described below, shall be paid to the 
Participant’s estate within 60 days after the Participant’s death.  

(c) The amount to be withheld on account of section 409A shall be calculated as of the Participant’s termination 
date. Interest shall be credited on the withheld amount from the Participant’s termination date to the last day of the calendar 
month preceding the date on which the withheld amount is paid, based on the daily average of the six-month certificate of 
deposit rates in effect for the month in which the Participant’s termination date occurs, as reported in Federal Reserve Statistical 
Release H.15 or any comparable successor publication.  
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ARTICLE VII  

FUNDING OF BENEFITS  

Sec. 7.01 Source of Funds . The obligations of UGI and other participating employers hereunder shall constitute a 
general, unsecured obligation, payable solely out of their general assets, and no Participant shall have any right to any specific 
assets of UGI, or any Subsidiary or Affiliate or any trust established by UGI or any Subsidiary or Affiliate to fund such 
obligations.  

Sec. 7.02 Participant Contributions . There shall be no contributions made by Participants under the SSP.  
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ARTICLE VIII  

THE COMMITTEE  

Sec. 8.01 Appointment and Tenure of Administrative Committee Members . The Administrative Committee shall 
consist of one or more persons who shall be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the Compensation Committee. Any 
Administrative Committee member may resign by delivering his or her written resignation to the Compensation Committee. 
Vacancies arising by the death, resignation or removal of an Administrative Committee member may be filled by the 
Compensation Committee.  

Sec. 8.02 Meetings; Majority Rule . Any and all acts of the Administrative Committee taken at a meeting shall be by a 
majority of all members of the Administrative Committee. The Administrative Committee may act by vote taken in a meeting (at 
which a majority of members shall constitute a quorum). The Administrative Committee may also act by unanimous consent in 
writing without the formality of convening a meeting.  

Sec. 8.03 Delegation . The Administrative Committee may, by majority decision, delegate to each or any one of its 
number, authority to sign any documents on its behalf, or to perform ministerial acts, but no person to whom such authority is 
delegated shall perform any act involving the exercise of any discretion without first obtaining the concurrence of a majority of 
the members of the Administrative Committee, even though such person alone may sign any document required by third parties. 
The Administrative Committee shall elect one of its number to serve as Chairperson. The Chairperson shall preside at all 
meetings of the Administrative Committee or shall delegate such responsibility to another Administrative Committee member. 
The Administrative Committee shall elect one person to serve as Secretary to the Administrative Committee. All third parties 
may rely on any communication signed by the Secretary, acting as such, as an official communication from the Administrative 
Committee.  

Sec. 8.04 Authority and Responsibility of the Administrative Committee . The Administrative Committee shall have 
only such authority and responsibilities as are delegated to it by the Compensation Committee or specifically provided herein. 
The Administrative Committee shall have full power and express discretionary authority to administer and interpret the SSP, to 
make factual determinations and to adopt or amend such rules and regulations for implementing the SSP and for the conduct of 
its business as it deems necessary or advisable, in its sole discretion. The Administrative Committee’s authorities and 
responsibilities shall also include:  

(a) maintenance and preservation of records relating to Participants, former Participants, and their beneficiaries;  

(b) preparation and distribution to Participants of all information and notices required under Federal law or the 
provisions of the SSP;  

(c) preparation and filing of all governmental reports and other information required under law to be filed or 
published;  
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(d) engagement of assistants and professional advisers;  

(e) arrangement for bonding, if required by law; and  

(f) promulgation of procedures for determination of claims for benefits.  

Sec. 8.05 Compensation of Administrative Committee Members . The members of the Administrative Committee shall 
serve without compensation for their services as such, but all expenses of the Administrative Committee shall be paid or 
reimbursed by UGI.  

Sec. 8.06 Administrative Committee Discretion . Any discretion, actions, or interpretations to be made under the SSP 
by the Administrative Committee shall be made in its sole discretion, need not be uniformly applied to similarly situated 
individuals, and shall be final, binding, and conclusive on the parties. All benefits under the SSP shall be provided conditional 
upon the Participant’s acknowledgement, in writing or by acceptance of the benefits, that all decisions and determinations of the 
Administrative Committee shall be final and binding on the Participant, his or her Beneficiaries and any other person having or 
claiming an interest under the SSP.  

Sec. 8.07 Indemnification of the Committees . Each member of the Administrative Committee shall be indemnified by 
UGI against costs, expenses and liabilities (other than amounts paid in settlement to which UGI does not consent) reasonably 
incurred by him or her in connection with any action to which he or she may be a party by reason of his or her service as a 
member of the Committee, except in relation to matters as to which he or she shall be adjudged in such action to be personally 
guilty of gross negligence or willful misconduct in the performance of his or her duties. The foregoing right to indemnification 
shall be in addition to such other rights as the Administrative Committee member may enjoy as a matter of law or by reason of 
insurance coverage of any kind, but shall not extend to costs, expenses and/or liabilities otherwise covered by insurance or that 
would be so covered by any insurance then in force if such insurance contained a waiver of subrogation. Rights granted 
hereunder shall be in addition to and not in lieu of any rights to indemnification to which the Administrative Committee member 
may be entitled pursuant to the by-laws of UGI. Service on the Administrative Committee shall be deemed in partial fulfillment 
of the Administrative Committee member’s function as an employee, officer and/or director of UGI, if he or she serves in that 
capacity as well as in the role of Administrative Committee member.  
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ARTICLE IX  

AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION  

Sec. 9.01 Amendment . The provisions of the SSP may be amended at any time and from time to time by a resolution 
of the Compensation Committee for any reason without either the consent of or prior notice to any Participant; provided, 
however , that no such amendment shall serve to reduce the benefit that has accrued on behalf of a Participant as of the effective 
date of the amendment.  

Sec. 9.02 Plan Termination . While it is UGI’s intention to continue the SSP indefinitely in operation, the right is, 
nevertheless, reserved to terminate the SSP in whole or in part at any time for any reason without either the consent of or prior 
notice to any Participant. No such termination shall reduce the benefit that has accrued on behalf of a Participant as of the 
effective date of the termination, but UGI may immediately distribute all accrued benefits upon termination of the SSP in 
accordance with section 409A of the Code.  
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ARTICLE X  

CLAIMS PROCEDURES  

Sec. 10.01 Claim . Any person or entity claiming a benefit, requesting an interpretation or ruling under the SSP 
(hereinafter referred to as “claimant”), or requesting information under the SSP shall present the request in writing to the 
Administrative Committee, which shall respond in writing or electronically. The notice advising of the denial shall be furnished 
to the claimant within 90 days of receipt of the benefit claim by the Administrative Committee, unless special circumstances 
require an extension of time to process the claim. If an extension is required, the Administrative Committee shall provide notice 
of the extension prior to the termination of the 90 day period. In no event may the extension exceed a total of 180 days from the 
date of the original receipt of the claim.  

Sec. 10.02 Denial of Claim . If the claim or request is denied, the written or electronic notice of denial shall state:  

(a) The reasons for denial;  

(b) Reference to the specific SSP provisions on which the denial is based;  

(c) A description of any additional material or information required and an explanation of why it is necessary; 
and  

(d) An explanation of the SSP’s claims review procedures and the time limits applicable to such procedures, 
including the right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of ERISA.  

Sec. 10.03 Final Decision . The decision on review shall normally be made within 60 days after the Administrative 
Committee’s receipt of claimant’s claim or request. If an extension of time is required for a hearing or other special 
circumstances, the claimant shall be notified and the time limit shall be 120 days. The decision shall be in writing or in electronic 
form and shall:  

(a) State the specific reasons for the denial;  

(b) Reference the relevant SSP provisions;  
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(c) State that the claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, and have reasonable access to 
and copies of all documents, records and other information relevant to the claim for benefits; and  

(d) State that the claimant may bring an action under section 502(a) of ERISA.  

All decisions on review shall be final and binding on all parties concerned.  

Sec. 10.04 Review of Claim . Any claimant whose claim or request is denied or who has not received a response 
within 60 days may request a review by notice given in writing or electronic form to the Administrative Committee. Such request 
must be made within 60 days after receipt by the claimant of the written or electronic notice of denial, or in the event the 
claimant has not received a response, 60 days after receipt by the Administrative Committee of the claimant’s claim or request. 
The claim or request shall be reviewed by the Administrative Committee which may, but shall not be required to, grant the 
claimant a hearing. On review, the claimant may have representation, examine pertinent documents, and submit issues and 
comments in writing.  
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ARTICLE XI  

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS  

Sec. 11.01 Nonalienation of Benefits . None of the payments, benefits or rights of any participant under the SSP shall 
be subject to any claim of any creditor, and, in particular, to the fullest extent permitted by law, all such payments, benefits and 
rights shall be free from attachment, garnishment, trustee’s process, or any other legal or equitable process available to any 
creditor of such Participant. No Participant shall have the right to alienate, anticipate, commute, pledge, encumber or assign any 
of the benefits or payments which he or she may expect to receive, contingently or otherwise, under the SSP, except any right to 
designate a Beneficiary in connection with any form of benefit payment providing benefits after the Participant’s death.  

Sec. 11.02 No Contract of Employment . Neither the establishment of the SSP, nor any modification thereof, nor the 
creation of any fund, trust or account, nor the payment of any benefits shall be construed as giving any Participant or Employee, 
or any person whomsoever, the right to be retained in the service of UGI or any other participating employer hereunder, and all 
Participants and other Employees shall remain subject to discharge to the same extent as if the SSP had never been adopted.  

Sec. 11.03 Severability of Provisions . If any provision of the SSP shall be held invalid or unenforceable, such 
invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof, and the SSP shall be construed and enforced as if such 
provision had not been included.  

Sec. 11.04 Heirs, Assigns and Personal Representatives . The SSP shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns of the parties, including each Participant, present and future.  

Sec. 11.05 Successors . Unless the Compensation Committee directs otherwise before a Change of Control, in the 
event of a Change of Control, UGI shall require any successor or successors (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, 
consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business and/or assets of UGI, or a division or Affiliate thereof, (i) to 
acknowledge expressly that this SSP is binding upon and enforceable against such successor in accordance with the terms hereof, 
(ii) to become jointly and severally obligated with UGI to perform the obligations under this SSP, and (iii) to agree not to amend 
or terminate the SSP for a period of three years after the date of succession without the consent of the affected Participant.  

Sec. 11.06 Headings and Captions . The headings and captions herein are provided for reference and convenience 
only, and shall not be considered part of the SSP, and shall not be employed in the construction of the SSP.  

Sec. 11.07 Gender and Number . Except where otherwise clearly indicated by context, the masculine and the neuter 
shall include the feminine and the neuter, the singular shall include the plural, and vice-versa.  
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Sec. 11.08 Controlling Law . The SSP shall be construed and enforced according to the laws of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania, exclusive of conflict of law provisions thereof, to the extent not preempted by Federal law, which shall otherwise 
control.  

Sec. 11.09 Payments to Minors, Etc . Any benefit payable to or for the benefit of a minor, an incompetent person or 
other person incapable of receipting therefore shall be deemed paid when paid to such person’s guardian or to the party providing 
or reasonably appearing to provide for the care of such person, and such payment shall fully discharge UGI, the Board, the 
Administrative Committee and all other parties with respect thereto.  

Sec. 11.10 Reliance on Data and Consents . UGI, the Board, the Compensation Committee, the Administrative 
Committee, all fiduciaries with respect to the SSP, and all other persons or entities associated with the operation of the SSP, and 
the provision of benefits thereunder, may reasonably rely on the truth, accuracy and completeness of all data provided by the 
Participant, including, without limitation, data with respect to age, health and marital status. Furthermore, UGI, the Board, the 
Compensation Committee, the Administrative Committee and all fiduciaries with respect to the SSP may reasonably rely on all 
consents, elections and designations filed with the SSP or those associated with the operation of the SSP by any Participant, or 
the representatives of any such person without duty to inquire into the genuineness of any such consent, election or designation. 
None of the aforementioned persons or entities associated with the operation of the SSP or the benefits provided under the SSP 
shall have any duty to inquire into any such data, and all may rely on such data being current to the date of reference, it being the 
duty of the Participants to advise the appropriate parties of any change in such data.  

Sec. 11.11 Lost Payees . A benefit shall be deemed forfeited if the Administrative Committee is unable to locate a 
Participant to whom payment is due; provided , however , that such benefit shall be reinstated if a claim is made by the proper 
payee for the forfeited benefit.  

Sec. 11.12 Taxation . The SSP is intended to comply with the requirements of section 409A of the Code. 
Notwithstanding anything in the SSP to the contrary, allocations to the SSP shall be made consistent with section 409A, and 
distributions may only be made under the SSP upon an event and in a manner permitted by section 409A of the Code. All 
payments under the SSP shall be subject to applicable tax withholding. Distributions upon termination of employment shall only 
be made upon the Participant’s “separation from service” under section 409A of the Code, and in no event may a Participant 
directly or indirectly designate the calendar year of a payment.  
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EXHIBIT A  

CHANGE OF CONTROL  

For purposes of the SSP, the term “Change of Control,” and other defined terms used in this Exhibit A, shall have the following 
meanings:  

1. “Change of Control” shall mean:  

(i) Any Person (except UGI, any UGI Subsidiary, any employee benefit plan of UGI or of any UGI Subsidiary, or 
any Person or entity organized, appointed or established by UGI for or pursuant to the terms of any such employee benefit plan), 
together with all Affiliates and Associates of such Person, becomes the Beneficial Owner in the aggregate of 20% or more of 
either (i) the then outstanding shares of common stock of UGI (the “Outstanding UGI Common Stock”) or (ii) the combined 
voting power of the then outstanding voting securities of UGI entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (the “UGI 
Voting Securities”); or  

(ii) Individuals who, as of the beginning of any 24-month period, constitute the UGI Board of Directors (the 
“Incumbent UGI Board”) cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Incumbent UGI Board, provided that any 
individual becoming a director of UGI subsequent to the beginning of such period whose election or nomination for election by 
the UGI shareholders was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the Incumbent UGI Board 
shall be considered as though such individual were a member of the Incumbent UGI Board, but excluding, for this purpose, any 
such individual whose initial assumption of office is in connection with an actual or threatened election contest relating to the 
election of the Directors of UGI (as such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange 
Act); or  

(iii) Consummation by UGI of a reorganization, merger or consolidation (a “Business Combination”), in each 
case, with respect to which all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the respective Beneficial Owners of 
the Outstanding UGI Common Stock and UGI Voting Securities immediately prior to such Business Combination do not, 
following such Business Combination, Beneficially Own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of, respectively, the then 
outstanding shares of common stock and the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote 
generally in the election of directors, as the case may be, of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination in 
substantially the same proportion as their ownership immediately prior to such Business Combination of the Outstanding UGI 
Common Stock and UGI Voting Securities, as the case may be; or  

(iv) Consummation of (a) a complete liquidation or dissolution of UGI or (b) a sale or other disposition of all or 
substantially all of the assets of UGI other than to a corporation with respect to which, following such sale or disposition, more 
than 50% of, respectively, the then outstanding shares of common stock and the combined voting power of the then outstanding 
voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors is then owned beneficially, directly or indirectly, by all or 
substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the Beneficial Owners, respectively, of the Outstanding UGI Common 
Stock and UGI Voting Securities immediately prior to such sale or disposition in substantially the same proportion as their 
ownership of the Outstanding UGI Common Stock and UGI Voting Securities, as the case may be, immediately prior to such 
sale or disposition.  
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2. “Affiliate” and “Associate” shall have the respective meanings ascribed to such terms in Rule 12b-2 of the General 
Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act.  

3. “Exchange Act” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  

4. A Person shall be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of any securities: (i) that such Person or any of such Person’s 
Affiliates or Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to acquire (whether such right is exercisable immediately or only 
after the passage of time) pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not in writing) or upon the 
exercise of conversion rights, exchange rights, rights, warrants or options, or otherwise; provided , however , that a Person shall 
not be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of securities tendered pursuant to a tender or exchange offer made by such Person or any 
of such Person’s Affiliates or Associates until such tendered securities are accepted for payment, purchase or exchange; (ii) that 
such Person or any of such Person’s Affiliates or Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to vote or dispose of or has 
“beneficial ownership” of (as determined pursuant to Rule 13d-3 of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act), 
including without limitation pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding, whether or not in writing; provided , 
however , that a Person shall not be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of any security under this clause (ii) as a result of an oral or 
written agreement, arrangement or understanding to vote such security if such agreement, arrangement or understanding 
(A) arises solely from a revocable proxy given in response to a public proxy or consent solicitation made pursuant to, and in 
accordance with, the applicable provisions of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act, and (B) is not then 
reportable by such Person on Schedule 13D under the Exchange Act (or any comparable or successor report); or (iii) that are 
beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by any other Person (or any Affiliate or Associate thereof) with which such Person (or 
any of such Person’s Affiliates or Associates) has any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not in writing) for 
the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting (except pursuant to a revocable proxy as described in the proviso to clause (ii) above) 
or disposing of any securities; provided , however , that nothing in this Section 1(c) shall cause a Person engaged in business as 
an underwriter of securities to be the “Beneficial Owner” of any securities acquired through such Person’s participation in good 
faith in a firm commitment underwriting until the expiration of forty (40) days after the date of such acquisition.  

5. “Person” shall mean an individual or a corporation, partnership, trust, unincorporated organization, association, or 
other entity.  

6. “UGI Subsidiary” shall mean any corporation in which UGI directly or indirectly, owns at least a fifty percent 
(50%) interest or an unincorporated entity of which UGI, as applicable, directly or indirectly, owns at least fifty percent (50%) of 
the profits or capital interests.  

   

A-2  

WPD-6  
Screening Data 
Page 2124 of 2401



   

Change of Control with Respect to UGI Utilities, Inc.  

In addition to the definition of Change of Control with respect to UGI, as set forth above, for Participants who are employees of 
UGI Utilities, Inc. (“Utilities”) or a subsidiary of Utilities, the term “Change of Control” shall include the events set forth below:  

“Change of Control” shall include any of the following events:  

(D) UGI and the UGI Subsidiaries fail to own more than fifty percent (50%) of the then outstanding shares 
of common stock of Utilities or more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting 
securities of Utilities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors; or  

(E) Completion by Utilities of a reorganization, merger or consolidation (a “Business Combination”), in 
each case, with respect to which all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the respective Beneficial Owners 
of Utilities’ outstanding common stock and voting securities immediately prior to such Business Combination do not, following 
such Business Combination, Beneficially Own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of, respectively, the then outstanding shares 
of common stock and the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the 
election of directors, as the case may be, of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination in substantially the same 
proportion as their ownership immediately prior to such Business Combination of Utilities’ outstanding common stock and 
voting securities, as the case may be; or  

(F) Completion of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Utilities or sale or other disposition of all or 
substantially all of the assets of Utilities other than to a corporation with respect to which, following such sale or disposition, 
more than 50% of, respectively, the then outstanding shares of common stock and the combined voting power of the then 
outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors is then owned beneficially, directly or 
indirectly, by all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the Beneficial Owners, respectively, of Utilities’ 
outstanding common stock and voting securities immediately prior to such sale or disposition in substantially the same 
proportion as their ownership of Utilities’ outstanding common stock and voting securities, as the case may be, immediately 
prior to such sale or disposition.  
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Exhibit 10.20 

Group supplementary retirement systems for which executives in the  
ANTARGAZ Company are eligible  

Reminder: the Antargaz company offers:  

Insofar as company officer executives are equated with executives of the Antargaz company for all the additional factors in 
compensation and company benefits, they are also eligible for this type of benefit under the same conditions.  

This is why the Board of Directors is requested to allow Mr Varagne, chairman and chief executive of the Antargaz company, to 
be eligible for the group retirement scheme with benefits defined as additive (“article 39”) and for the group compulsory 
retirement system with defined contributions (“article 83”) under the same conditions as those obtaining for management-grade 
employees in the category with which he is equated.  

The main technical and financial characteristics of currently applicable scheme are as follows:  

I. Retirement system with defined benefits (“ Article 39” )  

I.1. Characteristics of the system and calculation of potential entitlements  

The system in effect is a retirement scheme with pre-defined, additive benefits. It is a group and random system implemented for 
Antargaz managers with an 880 rating from the French oil industry collective labour agreement for members of the management 
board meeting the conditions stipulated herein under:  

   

   

  •   A group retirement scheme with benefits defined as ‘additive’ (referred to as “article 39”), implemented for 
management-grade employees with an 880 rating from the French oil industry collective labour agreement (CCN) and 
for members of the management board, for which eligibility is contingent on completion of the beneficiary’s career 
within the company by means of a unilateral decision dated 17 August 2009  

  
  •   A group compulsory retirement scheme with pre-defined contributions (referred to as “article 83”) implemented for all 

staff members and formalised by a group agreement dated 10 July 2009, supplemented for executive management 
employees (as defined by the duration of work [article L. 3111-2 of the French Labour code]) by a unilateral decision 
dated 17 August 2009.  

  •   The executive must have five years’  seniority in Antargaz group companies and/or in its parent company, UGI  
  
  •   The executive must be aged at least 65 (or 62 against a 1% discount per year prior to the age of 65)  
  
  •   The executive must have liquidated his or her basic compulsory social security retirement scheme  
  
  •   The executive must have ended his or her career in full within the company. This condition may be met when the 

person in question is considered a staff member at the retirement date subject to specific exemption cases authorised 
by the administration and stipulated in the regulations.  
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The purpose of the scheme is to provide beneficiaries with a supplementary retirement benefit calculated against their 
compensation package (base salary + bonuses excluding non-recurring variable remuneration packages equal to the average of 
the last thirty-six months prior to retiring), taken into account for the proportion exceeding six times the annual social security 
ceiling and their seniority within companies belonging to the Antargaz group and/or its parent company, UGI. Accordingly, 
insofar as they meet the conditions stated above, beneficiaries receive under the terms of the regulations an additional annual 
retirement pension equal to 2.25% of the benchmark compensation for each year of seniority, given that:  

As regards the benchmark remuneration, it is stipulated that it is formally defined by the retirement scheme regulations and 
applies to company officers under the same conditions, which naturally includes remuneration received as a company office 
(with regards to the base and bonus proportions as authorised by the Board of Directors). The same applies to seniority, which is 
calculated as per the terms of the regulations from the date at which the beneficiary joins one of the companies belonging to the 
Antargaz group and/or its parent company, UGI, for any purpose whatsoever.  

As a reminder, Mr François Varagne joined Antargaz on 1 April 2001 and currently has eight years’ seniority.  

It is also pointed out that the payment may be made to the surviving spouse and, where applicable, to former divorced spouses 
who have not married again under allocation conditions defined by the regulations, provided that the beneficiary stipulates the 
option no later than the liquidation date and under the conditions and terms defined in the insurance policy. It is further stipulated 
that in the event that a reversion payment option is preferred, the cost of reversion is deducted from the amount of the main 
payment made to the beneficiary as per the terms and conditions stipulated in the insurance policy.  

All provisions in the retirement regulations (including those not specific herein) are applicable to the chairman and chief 
executive under the same terms and conditions.  

I.2. Commitment amount  

Financing for this benefit for all executive managers concerned amounts to an overall social liability commitment by 
September 2020 estimated at EUR 1,500,377 at a constant rate (excluding inflation), which at current Euro value amounts to 
EUR 1,994,041.  

The Board is reminded that the system is financed in full by the Antargaz company as part of an insurance policy taken out with 
Cardif BNP Paribas.  
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  •   Remuneration is taken into account only for the proportion exceeding six times the annual social security ceiling  
  
  •   Seniority taken into account is capped at ten years  
  
  •   Retirement pensions applicable under additional company retirement schemes and specifically the pre-defined 

contribution retirement schemes and entitlements acquired as a result of years of employment in the Elf Aquitaine 
group (CREA, IPREA, ISO CREA schemes) reduce the amount the annuity payable  

  
  •   In all events, the annuity amount payable from the scheme may not exceed 15% of the average remuneration of the 

thirty-six months preceding retirement.  
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II. Retirement scheme with pre-defined contributions (“ Article 83” )  

It is further stipulated that an additional complementary retirement scheme with predefined contributions (“article 83”) was 
implemented on 1 October 2002 for all Antargaz employees which stipulates financing by the company of a contribution equal 
for managers to 1.5% of the gross salary subject to social security contributions and capped at five times the social security 
ceiling. Employees contribute to the financing of the scheme to the extent of 0.7% of their gross salary. The insurance 
organisation tasked with managing the fund is Arial Assurance.  

The scheme was improved in parallel for executive managers in terms of work time organisation (to meet the definition of article 
L. 3111-2 of the French Labour Code), as per the decision dated 17 August 2009. Accordingly, Antargaz pays an additional 
contribution equal to 3.5% of the gross compensation package subject to social security contributions and taken into account to 
the extent of six times the social security ceiling. The insurance organisation tasked with managing the funds is Cardif BNP 
Paribas.  

The implemented system makes it possible for the appropriate employees to build up a supplementary retirement scheme in 
addition to the compulsory retirement schemes of the French social security and additional schemes.  

It is stipulated that the company commitment applies only to payment of contributions of the amounts stated above. Benefits paid 
to beneficiaries upon retirement by the insurance organisation in the form of an annuity are those from group capitalisation 
retirement policies taken out by the company with Arial Assurance (all employees) and Cardif BNP Paribas (executives). They 
are contingent on the amount of contributions paid on behalf of each employee and on the duration of contributions and are 
deducted from any entitlements payable form the retirement scheme with pre-defined benefits referred to above.  

Finally, it is also stipulated that in all cases, the entitlements of the employees concerned which stem from contributions paid 
accordingly will be applicable even if they do not end their career within the company.  
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Article 83:  

  
agreement dated July, 10, 2009  
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Exhibit 10.23 

Utilities Employees 

UGI CORPORATION  
2004 OMNIBUS EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN  

STOCK UNIT GRANT  

This STOCK UNIT GRANT, dated as of January 1, 2009 (the “Date of Grant”), is delivered by UGI Corporation (“UGI”) to 
                     (the “Participant”) (the “Agreement”).  

RECITALS  

The UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan, as amended (the “Plan”) provides for the grant of stock 
units (“Stock Units”) with respect to shares of common stock of UGI (“Shares”). The Compensation and Management 
Development Committee of the Board of Directors of UGI (the “Committee”) has decided to grant Stock Units to the Participant. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Agreement, intending to be legally bound hereby, agree as follows:  

1.  Grant of Stock Units . Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and in the Plan, UGI hereby grants to 
the Participant                      Stock Units. The Stock Units are contingently awarded and will be earned and payable if and to the 
extent that the conditions of this Agreement are met. The Stock Units are granted with Dividend Equivalents (as defined below).  

2.  Vesting . The Participant shall earn the right to payment of the Stock Units if the Participant is employed by, or providing 
service to, the Company (as defined in Section 9) on the applicable vesting date:  

If the foregoing schedule would produce fractional Shares, the number of Shares for which the Stock Units vest shall be rounded 
down to the nearest whole Share.  

3.  Termination of Employment or Service .  

(a) Except as described below, if the Participant’s employment or service with the Company terminates before the Stock 
Units are fully vested, the unvested Stock Units, and all related Dividend Equivalents, will be forfeited.  

(b) If the Participant ceases to be employed by, or provide service to, the Company by reason of (i) Retirement (as defined 
in Section 9), (iii) Disability (as defined in Section 9), or (iv) death, the Participant’s unvested Stock Units will become fully 
vested as of the termination date.  

   

   

        
Vesting Date   Vested Stock Units 

      
                     , 200_   [  _____  ] % 
                     , 200_   [  _____  ] % 
                     , 200_   [  _____  ] 
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4.  Payment with Respect to Stock Units . When the Stock Units vest, the Company shall pay to the Participant whole Shares 
equal to the number of Stock Units that have become vested on the vesting date. Payment shall be made within 30 business days 
after the vesting date (except as otherwise required by Section 8 below).  

5.  Dividend Equivalents with Respect to Stock Units .  

(a) Dividend Equivalents shall accrue with respect to Stock Units and shall be payable subject to the same vesting 
conditions as the Stock Units to which they relate. Dividend Equivalents shall be credited with respect to the Stock Units from 
the Date of Grant until the payment date. Dividend Equivalents will become vested as the underlying Stock Units vest. If the 
underlying Stock Units are forfeited, all related Dividend Equivalents shall also be forfeited.  

(b) While the Stock Units are outstanding, the Company will keep records in a bookkeeping account for the Participant. On 
each payment date for a dividend paid by UGI on its common stock, the Company shall credit to the Participant’s account an 
amount equal to the Dividend Equivalents associated with the Stock Units held by the Participant on the record date for the 
dividend. No interest will be credited to any such account.  

(c) Dividend Equivalents will be paid in cash at the same time as the underlying Stock Units are paid.  

(d) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the Participant may not accrue Dividend Equivalents in 
excess of $750,000 during any calendar year under all grants under the Plan.  

6.  Coordination with Severance Plan . Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if the Participant receives 
severance benefits under a Severance Plan (as defined in Section 9) and the terms of such benefits require that severance 
compensation payable under the Severance Plan be reduced by benefits payable under this Plan, any amount payable to the 
Participant with respect to Stock Units and Dividend Equivalents after the Participant’s termination of employment or service 
shall be reduced by the amount of severance compensation paid to the Participant under the Severance Plan, as required by, and 
according to the terms of, the Severance Plan, if permitted by section 409A of the Code.  

7.  Withholding . The Participant shall be required to pay to the Company, or make other arrangements satisfactory to the 
Company to provide for the payment of, any federal, state, local or other taxes that the Company is required to withhold with 
respect to the payments under this Agreement. The Participant may elect to satisfy the Company’s tax withholding obligation 
with respect to payments in Shares by having Shares withheld up to an amount that does not exceed the minimum applicable 
withholding tax rate for federal (including FICA), state and local tax liabilities.  
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8.  Change of Control .  

(a) The outstanding Stock Units shall become fully vested upon a Change of Control (as defined in the Plan or in subsection 
(c) below, if applicable) and shall be paid in cash on the closing date of the Change of Control, except as provided below.  

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Stock Units are subject to section 409A of the Code, the Stock Units shall be paid 
upon a Change of Control only if the transaction constituting a Change of Control is also a change in control event under section 
409A of the Code (“409A Change in Control Event”). If the transaction constituting a Change of Control does not constitute a 
409A Change in Control Event, the outstanding Stock Units will vest upon the Change of Control, and any outstanding Stock 
Units that are subject to section 409A will be paid in cash (based on the value of the Stock Units on the payment date as 
determined by the Committee) within 30 days after the first to occur of (i) the vesting date set forth in Section 2 or (ii) the 
Participant’s termination of employment or service (subject to Section 14 below, if applicable). If payment is delayed after the 
Change of Control, the Committee may provide for the Stock Units to be valued as of the date of the Change of Control and 
interest to be credited on the amount so determined at a market rate for the period between the Change of Control date and the 
payment date.  

(c) For Participants who are employees of UGI Utilities, Inc. (“Utilities”) or a subsidiary of Utilities, the term “Change of 
Control” shall mean (i) a Change of Control of UGI as defined in the Plan, or (ii) one of the events set forth on Exhibit A with 
respect to Utilities.  

9.  Definitions . For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms will have the meanings set forth below:  

(a)  “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  

(b)  “Company” means UGI and its Subsidiaries (as defined in the Plan).  

(c) “ Disability” means a long-term disability as defined in the Company’s long-term disability plan applicable to the 
Participant.  

(d)  “Dividend Equivalent” means an amount determined by multiplying the number of shares of UGI common stock 
subject to the target award of Stock Units by the per-share cash dividend, or the per-share fair market value of any dividend in 
consideration other than cash, paid by UGI on its common stock.  

(e)  “Employed by, or provide service to, the Company” means employment or service as an employee or director of the 
Company.  

(f)  “Stock Unit” means a hypothetical unit that represents the value of one share of UGI common stock.  

(g)  “Retirement” means the Participant’s retirement under the Retirement Income Plan for Employees of UGI Utilities, 
Inc., if the Participant is covered by that Retirement Income Plan. “Retirement” for other Company employees means 
termination of employment after attaining age 55 with ten or more years of service with the Company.  

(h)  “Severance Plan” means any severance plan maintained by the Company that is applicable to the Participant.  

10.  Grant Subject to Plan Provisions . This grant is made pursuant to the Plan, the terms of which are incorporated herein by 
reference, and in all respects shall be interpreted in accordance with the Plan. The grant and payment of Stock Units and 
Dividend Equivalents are subject to interpretations, regulations and determinations concerning the Plan established from time to 
time by the Committee in accordance with the provisions of the Plan, including, but not limited to, provisions pertaining to (i) the 
registration, qualification or listing of the Shares, (ii) changes in capitalization of the Company and (iii) other requirements of 
applicable law. The Committee shall have the authority to interpret and construe the grant pursuant to the terms of the Plan, and 
its decisions shall be conclusive as to any questions arising hereunder.  
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11.  No Employment or Other Rights . The grant of Stock Units shall not confer upon the Participant any right to be retained by 
or in the employ or service of the Company and shall not interfere in any way with the right of the Company to terminate the 
Participant’s employment or service at any time. The right of the Company to terminate at will the Participant’s employment or 
service at any time for any reason is specifically reserved.  

12.  No Shareholder Rights . Neither the Participant, nor any person entitled to exercise the Participant’s rights in the event of the 
Participant’s death, shall have any of the rights and privileges of a shareholder with respect to the Shares related to the Stock 
Units, unless and until certificates for Shares have been issued to the Participant or successor.  

13.  Assignment and Transfers . The rights and interests of the Participant under this Agreement may not be sold, assigned, 
encumbered or otherwise transferred except, in the event of the death of the Participant, by will or by the laws of descent and 
distribution. If the Participant dies, any payments to be made under this Agreement after the Participant’s death shall be paid to 
the personal representative of the Participant’s estate, or the personal representative under applicable law if the Participant dies 
intestate. The rights and protections of the Company hereunder shall extend to any successors or assigns of the Company and to 
the Company’s parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates. This Agreement may be assigned by the Company without the Participant’s 
consent.  

14.  Compliance with Code Section 409A . Notwithstanding the other provisions hereof, this Agreement is intended to comply 
with the requirements of section 409A of the Code, if applicable. Any reference to a Participant’s termination of employment or 
service shall mean a Participant’s “separation from service,” as such term is defined under section 409A. For purposes of section 
409A, each payment of compensation under this Agreement shall be treated as a separate payment. Notwithstanding anything in 
this Agreement to the contrary, if the Participant is a “key employee” under section 409A and if payment of any amount under 
this Agreement is required to be delayed for a period of six months after separation from service pursuant to section 409A, 
payment of such amount shall be delayed as required by section 409A shall be paid within 10 days after the end of the six-month 
period. If the Participant dies during such six-month period, the amounts withheld on account of section 409A shall be paid to 
the personal representative of the Participant’s estate within 60 days after the date of the Participant’s death.  

15.  Applicable Law . The validity, construction, interpretation and effect of this instrument shall be governed by and construed 
in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, without giving effect to the conflicts of laws provisions 
thereof.  

16.  Notice . Any notice to UGI provided for in this instrument shall be addressed to UGI in care of the Corporate Secretary at 
UGI’s headquarters, and any notice to the Participant shall be addressed to such Participant at the current address shown on the 
payroll of the Company, or to such other address as the Participant may designate to the Company in writing. Any notice shall be 
delivered by hand, sent by telecopy or enclosed in a properly sealed envelope addressed as stated above, registered and 
deposited, postage prepaid, in a post office regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service.  
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, UGI has caused its duly authorized officers to execute and attest this Agreement, and the 
Participant has executed this Agreement, effective as of the Date of Grant.  

I hereby accept the Stock Units described in this Agreement, and I agree to be bound by the terms of the Plan and this 
Agreement. I hereby further agree that all the decisions and determinations of the Committee shall be final and binding.  

   

   

              
    UGI Corporation     
               
Attest              
               
     By:         
   

Corporate Secretary        
   

Robert H. Knauss     
         Vice President, General Counsel     

      
   

Participant      

WPD-6  
Screening Data 
Page 2133 of 2401



   

EXHIBIT A  

Change of Control with Respect to Utilities  

For Participants who are employees of Utilities, or a subsidiary of Utilities, the term “Change of Control” shall include the events 
set forth in this Exhibit A with respect to Utilities, and the defined terms set forth used in this Exhibit A, if not defined in the 
Plan, shall have the following meanings:  

1. “Change of Control” shall include any of the following events:  

(A) UGI and the UGI Subsidiaries fail to own more than fifty percent (50%) of the then outstanding shares of common 
stock of Utilities or more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities of 
Utilities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors; or  

(B) Completion by Utilities of a reorganization, merger or consolidation (a “Business Combination”), in each case, 
with respect to which all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the respective Beneficial Owners of 
Utilities’ outstanding common stock and voting securities immediately prior to such Business Combination do not, following 
such Business Combination, Beneficially Own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of, respectively, the then outstanding shares 
of common stock and the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the 
election of directors, as the case may be, of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination in substantially the same 
proportion as their ownership immediately prior to such Business Combination of Utilities’ outstanding common stock and 
voting securities, as the case may be; or  

(C) Completion of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Utilities or sale or other disposition of all or 
substantially all of the assets of Utilities other than to a corporation with respect to which, following such sale or disposition, 
more than 50% of, respectively, the then outstanding shares of common stock and the combined voting power of the then 
outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors is then owned beneficially, directly or 
indirectly, by all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the Beneficial Owners, respectively, of Utilities’ 
outstanding common stock and voting securities immediately prior to such sale or disposition in substantially the same 
proportion as their ownership of Utilities’ outstanding common stock and voting securities, as the case may be, immediately 
prior to such sale or disposition.  

2. “Affiliate” and “Associate” shall have the respective meanings ascribed to such terms in Rule 12b-2 of the General Rules and 
Regulations under the Exchange Act.  
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3. A Person shall be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of any securities: (i) that such Person or any of such Person’s Affiliates or 
Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to acquire (whether such right is exercisable immediately or only after the passage 
of time) pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not in writing) or upon the exercise of conversion 
rights, exchange rights, rights, warrants or options, or otherwise; provided , however , that a person shall not be deemed the 
“Beneficial Owner” of securities tendered pursuant to a tender or exchange offer made by such Person or any of such person’s 
Affiliates or Associates until such tendered securities are accepted for payment, purchase or exchange; (ii) that such Person or 
any of such Person’s Affiliates or Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to vote or dispose of or has “beneficial 
ownership” of (as determined pursuant to Rule 13d-3 of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act), including 
without limitation pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding, whether or not in writing; provided , however , that 
a Person shall not be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of any security under this clause (ii) as a result of an oral or written 
agreement, arrangement or understanding to vote such security if such agreement, arrangement or understanding (A) arises solely 
from a revocable proxy given in response to a public proxy or consent solicitation made pursuant to, and in accordance with, the 
applicable provisions of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act, and (B) is not then reportable by such 
Person on Schedule 13D under the Exchange Act (or any comparable or successor report); or (iii) that are beneficially owned, 
directly or indirectly, by any other Person (or any Affiliate or Associate thereof) with which such Person (or any of such Person’s 
Affiliates or Associates) has any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not in writing) for the purpose of 
acquiring, holding, voting (except pursuant to a revocable proxy as described in the proviso to clause (ii) above) or disposing of 
any securities; provided , however , that nothing in this Section 1(c) shall cause a Person engaged in business as an underwriter 
of securities to be the “Beneficial Owner” of any securities acquired through such Person’s participation in good faith in a firm 
commitment underwriting until the expiration of forty (40) days after the date of such acquisition.  

4. “Exchange Act” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  

5. “Person” shall mean an individual or a corporation, partnership, trust, unincorporated organization, association, or other entity. 

6. “UGI Subsidiary” shall mean any corporation in which UGI directly or indirectly, owns at least a fifty percent (50%) interest 
or an unincorporated entity of which UGI, as applicable, directly or indirectly, owns at least fifty percent (50%) of the profits or 
capital interests.  
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Exhibit 10.31 

UGI CORPORATION  
DESCRIPTION OF COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENT  

FOR  
LON R. GREENBERG  

Lon R. Greenberg is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of UGI Corporation. Mr. Greenberg has an oral compensation 
arrangement with UGI Corporation which includes the following:  

Mr. Greenberg:  

   

   

  1.   is entitled to an annual base salary, which for fiscal year 2009 is $1,067,500; 
  
  2.   participates in UGI Corporation’s annual bonus plan, with bonus payable based on the achievement of pre-approved 

financial and/or business performance objectives, which support business plans and strategic goals; 
  
  3.   participates in UGI Corporation’s long-term compensation plan, the 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan, as 

amended, with annual awards as determined by the Compensation and Management Development Committee; 
  
  4.   will receive cash benefits upon termination of his employment without cause following a change in control of UGI 

Corporation; and 
  
  5.   participates in UGI Corporation’s benefit plans, including the Senior Executive Employee Severance Plan and the 

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and Supplemental Savings Plan. 
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Exhibit 10.31 

UGI CORPORATION  
DESCRIPTION OF COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENT  

FOR  
PETER KELLY  

Peter Kelly is Vice President — Finance and Chief Financial Officer of UGI Corporation. Mr. Kelly has an oral compensation 
arrangement with UGI Corporation which includes the following:  

Mr. Kelly:  

   

   

  1.   is entitled to an annual base salary, which for fiscal year 2009 is $426,400; 
  
  2.   participates in UGI Corporation’s annual bonus plan, with bonus payable based on the achievement of pre-approved 

financial and/or business performance objectives, which support business plans and strategic goals; 
  
  3.   participates in UGI Corporation’s long-term compensation plan, the 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan, as 

amended, with annual awards as determined by the Compensation and Management Development Committee; 
  
  4.   will receive cash benefits upon termination of his employment without cause following a change in control of UGI 

Corporation; and 
  
  5.   participates in UGI Corporation’s benefit plans, including the Senior Executive Employee Severance Plan and the 

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and Supplemental Savings Plan. 
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Exhibit 10.31 

UGI CORPORATION  
DESCRIPTION OF COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENT  

FOR  
JOHN L. WALSH  

John L. Walsh is President and Chief Operating Officer of UGI Corporation. Mr. Walsh has an oral compensation arrangement 
with UGI Corporation which includes the following:  

Mr. Walsh:  

   

   

  1.   is entitled to an annual base salary, which for fiscal year 2009 is $648,440; 
  
  2.   participates in UGI Corporation’s annual bonus plan, with bonus payable based on the achievement of pre-approved 

financial and/or business performance objectives, which support business plans and strategic goals; 
  
  3.   participates in UGI Corporation’s long-term compensation plan, the 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan, as 

amended, with annual awards as determined by the Compensation and Management Development Committee; 
  
  4.   will receive cash benefits upon termination of his employment without cause following a change in control of UGI 

Corporation; and 
  
  5.   participates in UGI Corporation’s benefit plans, including the Senior Executive Employee Severance Plan and the 

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and Supplemental Savings Plan. 
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Exhibit 10.31 

UGI CORPORATION  
DESCRIPTION OF COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENT  

FOR  
ROBERT H. KNAUSS  

Robert H. Knauss is Vice President, General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of UGI Corporation. Mr. Knauss has an oral 
compensation arrangement with UGI Corporation which includes the following:  

Mr. Knauss:  

   

   

  1.   is entitled to an annual base salary, which for fiscal year 2009 is $340,340; 
  
  2.   participates in UGI Corporation’s annual bonus plan, with bonus payable based on the achievement of pre-approved 

financial and/or business performance objectives, which support business plans and strategic goals; 
  
  3.   participates in UGI Corporation’s long-term compensation plan, the 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan, as 

amended, with annual awards as determined by the Compensation and Management Development Committee; 
  
  4.   will receive cash benefits upon termination of his employment without cause following a change in control of UGI 

Corporation; and 
  
  5.   participates in UGI Corporation’s benefit plans, including the Senior Executive Employee Severance Plan and the 

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and Supplemental Savings Plan. 
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EXHIBIT 21 

SUBSIDIARIES OF UGI CORPORATION  

   

   

                  
            STATE OF 
SUBSIDIARY   OWNERSHIP   INCORPORATION 
AMERIGAS, INC.      100 %   PA 

AMERIGAS PROPANE, INC.      100 %   PA 
AmeriGas Partners, L.P.      (1 )   DE 

AmeriGas Finance Corp.            DE 
AmeriGas Eagle Finance Corp.            DE 
AP Eagle Finance Corp.            DE 
AmeriGas Propane, L.P.      (2 )   DE 

AmeriGas Propane Parts & Service, Inc.            PA 
AmeriGas Eagle Propane, L.P.      (3 )   DE 

AmeriGas Eagle Parts & Service, Inc.            PA 
AmeriGas Eagle Propane, Inc.            DE 

AmerE Holdings, Inc.            DE 
AmeriGas Eagle Holdings, Inc.            DE 

Active Propane of Wisconsin, LLC            DE 
AmeriGas Technology Group, Inc.      100 %   PA 
Petrolane Incorporated      100 %   PA 

FOUR FLAGS DRILLING COMPANY, INC.      100 %   PA 
ASHTOLA PRODUCTION COMPANY      100 %   PA 

UGI ETHANOL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION      100 %   PA 
NEWBURY HOLDING COMPANY      100 %   DE 
UGI ENTERPRISES, INC.      100 %   PA 

EASTFIELD INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC.      100 %   DE 
EUROGAS HOLDINGS, INC.      100 %   DE 
UGI BLACK SEA ENTERPRISES, INC.      100 %   PA 
UGI CHINA, INC.      100 %   DE 
UGI HVAC SERVICES, INC.      100 %   DE 
UGI ENERGY SERVICES, INC. (d/b/a GASMARK ® )      100 %   PA 

Energy Services Funding Corporation      100 %   DE 
Hellertown Pipeline Company      100 %   PA 
Homestead Holding Company      100 %   DE 
UGI Asset Management, Inc.      100 %   DE 

Atlantic Energy, Inc.      100 %   DE 
UGI Development Company      100 %   PA 

UGID Holding Company      100 %   DE 
UGI Hunlock Development Company      100 %   PA 

UGI LNG, Inc.      100 %   DE 
UGI HVAC ENTERPRISES, INC.      100 %   DE 
UGI INTERNATIONAL (CHINA), INC.      100 %   DE 
UGI INTERNATIONAL (ROMANIA), INC.      100 %   PA 
UGI INTERNATIONAL ENTERPRISES, INC.      100 %   PA 

UGI Europe, Inc.      100 %   DE 
UGI International Holdings BV      100 %   NETHERLANDS 

UGI Bordeaux Holding      100 %   FRANCE 
AGZ Holding (4)      99.99 %   FRANCE 

Antargaz (5)      99.99 %   FRANCE 
Wogegal      100 %   FRANCE 
Aquitaine Rhone Gas      100 %   FRANCE 
Gaz Est Distribution      100 %   FRANCE 
Norgal      52.66 %   FRANCE 
Rhone Gaz      50.62 %   FRANCE 
Sigap Ouest      66 %   FRANCE 
Sobegal      72 %   FRANCE 
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            STATE OF 
SUBSIDIARY   OWNERSHIP   INCORPORATION 

FLAGA GmbH (6)      100 %   AUSTRIA 
ECO Energietechnik GmbH (7)      100 %   AUSTRIA 
FLAGA Suisse GmbH      100 %   SWITZERLAND 
Zentraleuropa LPG Holding GmbH (Austria)      100 %   AUSTRIA 

Eurogas s.r.l. (Romania)      98.15 %   ROMANIA 
Progas S.A. (Romania)      77.99 %   ROMANIA 
Flaga Cesky Plyn s.r.o. (Czech Republic)      100 %   CZECH REPUBLIC 

LPG Technik spol s.r.o. (Czech Republic)      100 %   CZECH REPUBLIC 
Flaga Progas spol s.r.o. (Slovakia)      100 %   SLOVAKIA 
Progas Logistik s.r.o. (Slovakia)      100 %   SLOVAKIA 
Termofarm K.f.t. (Hungary)      100 %   HUNGARY 
Progas Eurogaz Sp. z.o.o. (Poland)      100 %   POLAND 

Progas Eurogaz Terminal Zaborze Sp. z.o.o. (Poland)      100 %   POLAND 
UGI ROMANIA, INC.      100 %   PA 

UGI PROPERTIES, INC.      100 %   PA 
UGI UTILITIES, INC.      100 %   PA 

UGI ENERGY VENTURES, INC.      100 %   DE 
UGI PENN NATURAL GAS, INC.      100 %   PA 

UGI Penn HVAC Services, Inc.      100 %   PA 
UGI CENTRAL PENN GAS, INC.      100 %   PA 

UGI Central Penn Propane, LLC      100 %   PA 
UGI Petroleum Products of Delaware, Inc.      100 %   DE 

UGI STONERIDGE I, LLC      100 %   DE 
UGI Stoneridge II, LLC      100 %   DE 

OPERATION SHARE ENERGY FUND (a non-profit corporation)      100 %   PA 
UNITED VALLEY INSURANCE COMPANY      100 %   VT 

(1)   AmeriGas Propane, Inc. and its subsidiary, Petrolane Incorporated, hold a combined 44% (approx.) interest in 
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. 

  
(2)   1.0101% owned by AmeriGas Propane, Inc. , the General Partner; and 98.9899% owned by AmeriGas Partners, 

L.P., the Limited Partner. 
  
(3)   99.9% owned by AmeriGas Propane, L.P. and < 0.1% owned by AmeriGas Eagle Holdings, Inc. (GP) and an 

unrelated third party. 
  
(4)   A nominal share is held by each of Lon R. Greenberg, Peter Kelly, François Varagne, Robert W. Krick and Robert 

H. Knauss. 
  
(5)   A nominal share is held by each of Lon R. Greenberg, Peter Kelly, François Varagne, Donald J. Groth, Robert H. 

Knauss and Matthew A. Woodward. 
  
(6)   Josef Weinzierl owns a nominal share. The remaining shares are owned by UGI International Holdings BV. 
  
(7)   Josef Weinzierl owns a nominal share. The remaining shares are owned by Flaga GmbH. 
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Exhibit 23 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (No. 333-144781) and Form S-8 
(Nos. 33-61722, 333-22305, 333-49080, 333-104938, 333-118147 and 333-142010) of UGI Corporation of our report dated 
November 20, 2009 relating to the financial statements, financial statement schedules and the effectiveness of internal control 
over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.  

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP  
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania  
November 20, 2009  

   

WPD-6  
Screening Data 
Page 2143 of 2401



Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATION  

I, Lon R. Greenberg, certify that:  

Date: November 20, 2009  

   

   

1.   I have reviewed this periodic report on Form 10-K of UGI Corporation;  

2.   Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not 
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;  

3.   Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in 
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this report;  

4.   The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  

  (a)   Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed 
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated 
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is 
being prepared;  

  (b)   Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be 
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

  (c)   Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by 
this report based on such evaluation; and  

  (d)   Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has 
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; 
and  

5.   The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons 
performing the equivalent functions):  

  (a)   All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial 
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and 
report financial information; and  

  (b)   Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the 
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.  

          
  /s/ Lon R. Greenberg     
  Lon R. Greenberg    

  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of  
UGI Corporation     
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Exhibit 31.2 

CERTIFICATION  

I, Peter Kelly, certify that:  

Date: November 20, 2009  

   

   

1.   I have reviewed this periodic report on Form 10-K of UGI Corporation;  

2.   Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not 
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;  

3.   Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in 
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this report;  

4.   The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  

  (a)   Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed 
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated 
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is 
being prepared;  

  (b)   Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be 
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

  (c)   Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by 
this report based on such evaluation; and  

  (d)   Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has 
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; 
and  

5.   The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons 
performing the equivalent functions):  

  (a)   All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial 
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and 
report financial information; and  

  (b)   Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the 
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.  

          
  /s/ Peter Kelly     
  Peter Kelly    

  Vice President — Finance and  
Chief Financial Officer of UGI Corporation     
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Exhibit 32 

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer  
Relating to a Periodic Report Containing Financial Statements  

I, Lon R. Greenberg, Chief Executive Officer, and I, Peter Kelly, Chief Financial Officer, of UGI Corporation, a 
Pennsylvania corporation (the “Company”), hereby certify that to our knowledge:  

*     *     *  

   

   

  (1)   The Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended September 30, 2009 (the “Form 10-K”) fully 
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and  

  (2)   The information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results 
of operations of the Company.  

          
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER    CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER     
           
/s/ Lon R. Greenberg    /s/ Peter Kelly     
   

Lon R. Greenberg    
   

Peter Kelly     
           
Date: November 20, 2009    Date: November 20, 2009     
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